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S CHANGING. } Nm’”
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@ Personal
Group

SUPPORTING THE UK WORKFORCE
THROUGH OUR BROAD OFFERING
OF EMPLOYEE WELLBEING AND
ENGAGEMENT SERVICES.

page 10

2021 HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Highlights Operatianal Highlights

GROUP REVENUE BASIC EPS Significant new contracts Continued expansion inte Public
secured Secter with 16 new client wins

£/ ' 1

574.5m 11.5p

Launched Hapiflex,

PROFIT BEFORE TAX DIVIDEND PER SHARE

2021 results impacted, as

£4' 3nf] "1 (_}'GD anticipated, by areduction to

insurance income
Offering to the SME sector

Face-to-faceinsurance praduct

ADJUSTED EBITDA CASH & DEPOSITS
salesrecommenced

£61m £22.9m
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WHY INVEST IN PERSONAL GROUP?

A PROGCRESS!IVE, PROFITABLE
BUSINESS ADDRESSING A
RAPIDLY GROWING MARKET.

Offering a broad marke: propoesition spann.ng
reward consutarcy, employee senefits ana
nsurance This end-to-end solut-or makes
Personal GroLp mare attractive to chents and
‘nereasicgly more reslient to markat forces

High retertion rates o insurarce orgoucts,
Strang revenya visiilily tharks 1o recure ng
revenues from 5aas Licences and strong repeat
ausiress an provision of nome technelogy sala-y
sacrfice progucts

34%

O
OF OUR CLIENTS TAKE ADVANTAGE OF TW0O OR MORE
OF OUR SEGMENTS

Group Crief bxecutwe's Statement! page 14

Demand for our services nas never been greater as
employers pul an increased focus oniMprov ng
their employee vaLe propesitions Employers
Incredsingly see @mployee benefits ard wedbeing
Services as essential for recruting aed retaning
staffina competitive Talen* market

Post-pandermic, we're seeing sustanad demand
for our afforeable irsurance products, both fram
employers.00kirg tO Make therr workfarce maore
resiligny, angd eMaoyees whro want spme firanc 2l
secuniiy in case ofill health or deasn

W

CF EMPLOYEES WORLDOWIDE PLAN TO LEAVE
THEIR JOBS THIS YEAR*

Our Markets i page 18

* mierosaftstudy

Adigtal solution that allows ernployees to access
3 wealth of financ.al, physical, mentaiand soc+ac
benefits through an easy to use platform and app

Easy *or rew offerings and busingss ! nes (2 0e
irtegrated Into tne puatform

An-ua recurring revenue across the GroLp's
digital platforms now stands at £3 6m Wweare
mproving and acd-ng to our d.gital nlatformsad
the e - see b 20-271for the successfulaunch
af tnelatest itesatior, Hapiflex

539,051

ACTIVATED USERS ON HAP1 AND SAGE
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Our Busiress Vodel | page 22
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Cash generative with regular income generated
from insurance premiums colected by our clients
through payroli deduction and annual digital
subscriptions paid in advance,

This together with strong f'nancials underpins a
wongstanding pol cy of paying a s.gnificant level of
orofits as @ dividend as well as providing firepower
for growth

£22.9m

CASH AND DEPOSITSWITHNQ
DEBTAS AT31DECEMBER 2021

Boarc and senior leadership have adeep
understanding of the business, and a proven

track record in scaling-up businesses weutilise a
combined wealth of knowledge anc exper ence 10
help the business acnieve success and keep it
rmowving forward

Cur semar leadership comprises a mixture of
-ecert exper:enced external appointments and
thase with a nistor ¢ understanding of our
ausness

180+ yrs

COMBINED EXPERIENCE
INTHE INDUSTRY

We have outined aclear strategy todrive
sigrificant growth and momentum is building
with 86 new ctients secured across the Group n
20271and further progression made on
partnerships

We are diversifying customer bases and channels
to markel to future-proof our grow:r and our
focus for the next few years will be on dnving
insurance, transforming reward and benef ts and
accelerating our SME offer

>1.5m reach

AMBITION TO SUPPORT OVER 1.5M EMPLOYEES
WITH QUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

CFOstateTent | page 32

Meet our 3card | page 50

QurStrategy | page 24
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WHATWE DO

To Protect the

Unprotected and Connect

the Unconnected.

What we do

Provide benefits and services focused on improving employee health, wellbe'ng and engagement As a socially resoonsible
business, we ensure that our offerngs acrass the Group are farr, -easanaile and accessible to all corners of society.

Cur business has four core focuses

Consultancy and
software solutions

Innecte - 'nnecto offers expert
consultancy on all th ngs pay and
reward, aleng wtn asuite of
C.ouC-Dasec 53as toois

Clents can Chogse a nespoke
sQlion tg Ne.p trem cevelop
ard.molemert fair, cons stent
anc nest fizreward nrogrammes

A winning team creating a brighter

Delivered to employers
directly and through
channel partners

Hapi - Amarket \eadirg, fuily
custamisable, employee
angagement p.atformandapp
Haaiflex, offering flexo.e
senefils, s also available for
mare coMatex recuiremerts

Sage Employee Benefits - An

emp.oyee engagement product
designec for the SMF marcet

Redad anout ~necto'sword page 8

Reac oot ~ao flex | page 20

future for the UK workforce.

Onweekly or monthly
rolling contracts

Insurance - Hospita. plan,
corvalescence plan, and deatr
benefit pol cies, urderwritten oy
Group subsidianes

Simple olans that are securea for
the afer me of the poucy,
providirg pecpie witn peace of
~und f t"e unexpectec hapoens.

Jead aboLl NSurarce| page 30

Access to consumer
technology

Let's Connect - Cnabies
employers to provide a benefit
scheme Tnat allows tner
emp.oyees Lo access the larest
carsumer tecnnowygy and oiher
g erc oroducts from leading
manufacturers and spread the
coSt etrer by salary sacrfice o
net Day arrangements

Read tme case study page B
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How we're going to get there

OUR STRATEGY

Driving insurance
sates through new
and existing channals

Transforming reward
and benefits

Our growth strategy is focused on widening our footprint across a broader range of industries.

Accelerating our
SME offer

Reaq more about Our Strategy | page 24

OUR VALUES

and how we want to operate.

Our core values ensure that everyone understands, and is aligned with, who we are

(oD

Solid

Trustworthy, respected
and dependable. We keep
Gur prom ses and get it
nght the first me - every
tme

®

Driven

Motivated, amb tious and
determined, deliverirg
what gur cuents anc
customers need in an

ever-changirg tandscape.

V),

Genuing, approachable
ang passionate, ePsusing
people feel comfortable
anc confident when
talking to us.

A

Expert

Professional, precise,
knowledgeable, iearr ng
all the time to make sure
we are delivering viable,
quality solutions to our
c.ents

0S5
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STAYING

BETTER
CONNECTED

HYWEL DDA UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD

our work with Hywel Dda emphasises the relevance of technology benefit to the public sector. Let's Connect havea
particular depth of experience with NHS Trusts, and when combined with a Hapi platform sale so employees can access their

entire benefits offér in one place, the impact on engagemeant across the organisation is remarkable.

OPPORTUNITY
Hywel Dda is a health
board that supports the
health of West Wales,
across the counties

of Carmarthenshire,
Ceredigion and
Pembrokeshire.

They employ 13,000 staft.

£487K

EMPLOYEE SPEND
CONLET'S CONNECT
{2071)

SOLUTION

Hapi provides a quick and simple way for Hywel Dda to
connect with every employee.

Hywe! Dda initia.y implemented the Hap platform o showcase

the wide range of nerefits they offer to their amazing workforce.

Providing benefits that employees wont and use

Hap offers access To nurdreds of gk streetanc online retail
discounts, including restaurarts, days out, and Cirema schemes,
WNICT Nave proved popular atross the orgarisat 1 With instant
e-vouchers cownloaded stra.ght to empicyees’ smartphores,
Ir's easy to shoo arc save Local offers w llnow be acded fo
orirg w-der commur ty benefits arourd tneir mainLocat ons

Emp.oyees can aso save w I salary sacrif ce schemes, runnirg
twiCe @ year, They can save maney or a néw biee via 2 Cycle to
Work scheme, encourag ng a heaith er. greenes commuste
Emoloyees also nave access to tne latest nome technoiogy
snrough tech oenefit arov der _ar’s Connecs - so far Hywel Cca
tas acheved empayer savings of ar esumated L1 with over
3,500 staff en-olied ir the scneme s nce it begar.

Looking forward, Hywel Dda are also excited about using
Hapi to expand their weilbeing offer.

Like atter neal:bcace organ sations. they faced huge Cha_erges
thraughous tre COYV' D-19 2arcemic 'I's ™portant [osunpor?
“nair staff's menial anc orysicat we lress so they can contirue
cc performatiner Dest By making it easy 1o access heat~ang
weiloeing benef.ts. the orga~isgton hooes ta mp ove rates of

5 ckness absence ard staff turmoven leadirg o oetier putcomes
fortherr service users

%COME

Hywel Dda are reaily pleased w th
row Hapi bas heiped to del vera
winning peref (s offer to every
e~oloyee, with conseguent ga s
far engagement ard proguctivizy.

With Hapi, staff car make the most
of tneir senefits, waarever and
whenever s converent far them,
Hywel Dda a.50 now has a directline
of communication via oush
noLIf.CatoNs SO everyone has access
o relevant nformaticn, evenrarc to
reach frantl-ne employees

Afinal word from the client:
"HywelDda are wal, or the way to
creatng and aelivaring a benefis
package that wll Pepus ecrurt and
“eraIr gur amaz-ng workforoe We've
gone Gregt wor .nereating a culture
of co.laboration oetweer —R.
maragemen: and front! ne staff
whiCh noturr cenerates greater staff
engageren: and satisfactior”

2ea0 morz onune |
hetps:/www. hapi.co.uk/content-hub/
case-studles




Strategic Report

Governance Financial Statements

“The organisation has historically
struggled with engagement with
certain groups of staff but Hapi
integrates our entire benefits offering
into a single app and delivers push
notifications, making it accessible for
all employees spread across our large
organisation and not just those who
have easy access to a computer”

Rob Blake*
Heag of Culture anc Warkforce Experience at Hywel Dda University Health Board

INVESTOR ANGLE @

Let's Connect has a parucular depth of
exper ence with NHS T-usts ard its work
with Hywet Dda ernphasises the relevance
of technology benefit to the public sector,
When combined with a Hapi platform sale
SO eMployees can access ther entire
benefits offer in one place, the impact on
engagement across the orgamsation 1s
remarkable

07




08

Personal Group Holdings P1¢: Annual Report and Accounts 2021

OUR PURPQSE IN ACTION corrnLed

KEEPING A

PERSONAL

and no plans to slow down, the

BOUGHTBY MANY

fnnovative insurtech business Bought By Many sells pet insurance policies. With impressive growth over the last four years
t robust reward architecture that would enable them to keep

ded teimpl

attracting and r g talented

pany P
Lren g8

OPPORTUNITY

Bought By Many is a fast-
growing organisation
scaling at pace and thus
recognises the importance
of ensuring the right roles
arein placeat theright
level to support growth.
They want toensure that their
employee deal s effectiveat
attracting arc retairing taler:
Inacomaietlive mar<ert,

706%

UK MANAGERS
HAVE NAMED
WELLBEINGAS A
TOPPRIORITY

loyees, ingto

SOLUTION

It was important that any sclution would suppert
the agility and growth aspivations of Bought By
Many, balancing rigour with fiexibility.
Irnectowoerked closely with the People Team and the
Senior _eadersnip Team to firstly impiement a ot
evaluation framewar«< to size reles and understand tne
organisation shape of the business Evaluate™ sa
rODUSL 0D eva.uanon scheme, de.vered via Innecto's
proprigtary software 1t proviges an analytica:
framework wnich prowdes the ngour without 2
lengthy evalual on process that would wor<age nsta
fAST-TI0V PG DS ~ess

The second pnase to the arogect was to bencmark
sneir roles to urderstanc how the Bougn® By Many
employee deal compares with the exte-nal market. The
cutputs were celivered througn 2aylab™, our cioud-
based pay nsights tec: Tk s argughr therformat on
to ife, presentirg ©ina visual way wh chwas easier o
apserb and erablec the senior team o easuy share the
CULEC™MEs with therr mea™,

TFe 0% evauat on framewo k ard t e external
sencamarkrg then feq nic zne day "2v ew DTCCEss,

g virg confidence to the Ser or Leacersh o Team and
emp.gyees that pay degis.ons were farr, consistert. and
rgoted ir Cata

date their fast-growing business.

OUTCOME
Tne progct providenast-ang
foundat.or or which Bought By
Mary cou.d base reward deCisiors
go ng forward Th-augh the

comb nation of Evaluate™ and
PaylLab™, 3ought 3y Many nave the
sofiware to ensure future “oles are
sized ahyjectivery and that gay s set
N lme wtn the market and their pay
stance 3oth Evaluate ™ and Paylao™
car be easily updateda as the business
grows trerefore supporting the
neec to recruit at pace N ane with
the amoiicus growth aspirat ans.
Tre adait cnal insghzoroviced by
Evawate™ nto orgar.sational snane
and des g will he.p Bought By Mary
Lo thire throlgh wnat ther”

argar 20Nz, sirugture needs to
ook - ¢e poth now and nthe future
a5 tne JUSINess Grows

(-

2ead maracnlire |
htips: /7 www.hapi.co.uk/content-hub/
tase-studies
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“It was important that any solution
would support the agility and growth
aspirations of Bought By Many,
balancing rigour with flexibility.”

Julia Ingatl*
Chief Pecple Officer at Bought By Many

INVESTOR ANGLE @

‘nnecto’s enviable client List includes many
nousehold names within retaii, financia
seryices, not-for-profit, profess:onal
services, sport ard media. As a former
stast-up, Bought By Many s a goocd
example of a fasi-growing business using
Innacto's expertise and digital anawytcs to
secure arobust pay infrastructure which
will underpin their future growth

BOUGHTBYMANY

We're changing to ManyPets
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OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION <ot nuaa

BIGBENEFITS FOR

SMALL

COMPANIE

CLINISUPPLIES

Clinisupplies are a great example of an SME using access to Personal Group benefits through our partnership with Sage to

give them an edge in the war tor talent. The UK's SME sector is vast but frag

ted - the busi

wi've developed with Sage

gives us access to this previously yntapped market. Our growth this year is only the start of our SME story, a5 we improve the
attraction, retention and lifetime value of our clients,

OPPORTUNITY

SOLUTION

Clinisupplies provide med-cal
devices for the continence,
urclogy, and wound

closure markets Tneyare
neadauarteced nWwatford
with 120 staff split between
the J<and Incia

Climisuaplies wanted to pull
together tnerr empoyee
berefit offer ngsintoa
cohes ve anc easy to access
Jac<age, as wellas saving HR
time ard resource by
manag:ng them ir one piace.

The company has a
‘org-standing culture of
recognis ng excellence viz
rewara and recognitior, aut
wantec tocentralsetne -
schemes and make shem
easier tg adm n ster They aiso
wanted o provde wellneing
resources for staff, be.ping
tnem stay heaithy arg
Drocuct veeven rdifficult
crcumstarces.

Reward & Recognition

— storically, Clin supplies had avaniety of reward and recogniticn
schemes. Sage Smolayee Benefits enab.ed them to centralise anc
expand the rreward and ~ecogritior offerings, usirg 1L Lo Motivate
employees and celebrate tne rhardaworc

Now, whenever employees receve an award or are "ecogr seg for
their efforts, they can qu ckly arc easily redeem their award
through 5age Employee Benef ts from tneir choice of retailers.
2020's conference was he.d virtual.y because of COVID-19
restricTions, but Canisupplies sent employees vouchers ta buy food
and drnk Lo enyoy at home, as well as £50 nAmazon vouchers -a.t
adm nistered through Sage Employee Benefits So far over £43,000
nas Deen approved in awa-ds'

Personal Group worked witn the client to personalse these awards
TG Ma<e them as easy as poss ole toissue ard marage. Carsupplies
a150 regularly use e-carcs peer 1o Deer Lo say thank you or
“2CoGrse excel.ence

Wellbeing

Sage Emp.oyee Benef ts al.ows Chrisupples Lo host the majorily
¢*the rhealtr arc we.being serefitsir ore p.ace TheEARSLS
alorgs'ce a week.y newsletter offerirg adv ce 01 nealthy Lifestyle
choices. Employees Can also access 2477 G0 appo ntmerts for
tremseyes ang ther fam €5 wa v ceo or ohone cal.

Cinsunpues’ we Loe ng offer ng fizs with tneir company etnas of
suzporting nealtk ang the -esources were Jart:cular.y we.come -n
treage of COV D-"9 Hawirg T al. none place makes * easy fo- steff
to access and HR teams To adm ™ ster

OUTCOME

95% of Cunisupplies’employees are
actvatec on Sage Emoloyee
Benefits After taking up a six-menth
free tral, they have trans tioned Lo a
paid subscription for several reasons.

- Patform provided what they were
looking for and mo-e

- § mplaity of having nany senefils
inone place

- Saves HRteams' time and resource
and1s easy to agminister

- Sca:aple to future needs

Flexioility to add or take away
ucences montn by month

=

2eac moreanling |
https:/www.hapi.co.uk/content-hubs
case-studies

m

NUMBER OF UK
SMES USING SAGE
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“Sage Employee Benefits has

very quickly become part of our
process. We've had excellent
feedback in our employee surveys
about the platform - it supports
positive engagement and makes
it simple for employees to access
their benefits”

Amanda Cass*
HR Director at Cl'msuppues

INVESTOR ANGLE @

Cunsupplies is a great example of an SME
using access to Personal Group benefits
through our partnership with Sage to give
them anedge in the war for talent. The
UK's SME sector s vast but fragmented -
the partnershp we've developed with S5age
gIves us access o thes previous.y untapped
market. Our growth this year s only the
start of gur SME story, as we improve the
attract on, retent:ian and Lfetime value of
ourclents.

4R
- ol
Clinisupplies
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

SUCCESSFULLY SUPPORTING
THE UKWORKFORCE WHEN T
WAS NEEDED MOSTT

'nthis, my first statement as Cha.rmar of
Persana. Group, [ am del.ghted to report on a year
of excel.ent strateqic nrogress for the business
Desprte g longer-tnan-exoecled lockdowr i
H*and some challenging conditions througnout,
tneleamacheved a greatdeal.r 2027,
acceleratirgus towards astrong return to
growth in the years ahead

As a3 Lruly purgose-lec busiress the most
IMoorzant achievement to note 1s the suppart
we've continued Lo provige 1o emoloyees a.l over
t1e country inwhat has been a very diff cult ume
for many we nave continued 10 pay out claims in
full, suppl.ed invaluable welibeirg supoar:,
improved Lves with access to beref ts of all
varneties, and provided the means to keep
scatlered colleagues conrected

We have toucned the lives of more tnan a miLion
peop.e In some way this year, 8 prouc achievement
nling with gur guid.ng vis on O Create a drnighter
future far the UK warkforce.

vwould Like 1o take this opportur Ly to sincerely
thank every member of the Personal Group team
who has made this nappen, a.l our partners, cl ents
and of course our supportive sharenolders

Focused on growth

Whilst our results for 2021 were mpaciec, s
articipated, by a reguction L0 QUr INsUrarce
Income as a aIrect consequerce of 15 montns of
COVID-"9 lockdowns, we have del vered good
growth:nmany other key met ics  Lota. u™que
cuent "umpbers and activated benefits plaiform
users, for exampie, This demaonstrates the
underlylng nealtn anc ppurismIr tne Dus ress.

Looking beyond the day-to-day, returrng te anc
deuvering long-term growth has beenal tne
forefront of our minds We are therefore gelightec
1o nave won 86 new cl ents across the Group'n
2021 - more than ever pefore We have biroadened
our offering significartly and further defired our
strategy snpursut of tnat ambition with rew
targets for 2025 Having experenrced a reductian
i the size of ourinsurance book as a result of
COVID-19, we have now recommerced face-to-
face sales .nearnest and are determinec to not
arwy buiid back to ristonc policyhouder mrumoers,
butto surpass therm.

Providing broader support,
widening our footprint

Our progress this year ouisice of .nsurance has
peer driven by twa e.ements in particular The
first of these 1s the broadening of our offering
Over the year we have nirocucec a host of new
benefits and d'stribution channels We've also
ceveloped a more multifaceted version of our
penefits platform Hap, to address the needs of
ta.ent-dniven argamsations thas been very well
recewed. This work builds on our unique sewling
0Q.M0 rousing & very Iraac ~ange of réward,
penefits a1d insurance solutions within one Group

The secand driver nas been success 1N expand.ng
Into new Industries. In the public sector we've

had 16 new c.iert wins ang "ava opoortunities n
play on three key Government frameworks Qur
partnesshipwith Sage has a's50 progressad further
- we currently pravide 20,000 employees with
Sage Emp.oyee Benefitsand havearguze to
market tQ reach the 7 5m employees working 1 UK
SMES between 10-250 empuayees naddiion, we
have made .mMmoortant iIrrgacs into talent-driven
BusInesses with Ma’e companies takng ua
Inrecto's serv ces and early wins secured for our
Hapif.ex proguct

“The growth in the market

underpins our prospects

asa busin ess. ”7

Martin Bennett
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EMPLOYEES WITH ACCESS TO ONE

CORMORE OF QUR SERVICES

1.2m

DIVIDEND
PER SHARE

10.0p

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT
SCORE

72

A winning team

Supporting, communicat ngw th, ard rewarding
our own people has been akey focus this year. We
implemenrted a flexible hybnid working policy to
cater for @ broad vanety of oersonal preferences
and spent time reaffirm.ng cur core values as a
team. Knowing we are a.l aligned with a clear
PUrpOSE <0 serve underpins our aoility to deliver
sustainaole growth gong forward

The senigr team was bolstered by a numbe~ of
new gperational-lead appointments. Pleasingly,
these were a mixture of exoerenced external
appointments alongside several nterra;
premotions As aleadership team we are always
pleased to reward our pecpte and provide career
pregression opportunities

At Board level, twas honoured w0 step into the
Chairman roig in May 1t1s a great team to be part
of and I would Like 1o take ths opportunity to agan
thank Mack Winlow for his service 1o the bus:ness
for many years.

Progression on ESG

| have been greatly encouraged by the strdes
made in this important area of The business, one
thatisaprionty at Board .eve.

Qver the course of the year, we have made
good progress agairst a number of Mitiatives to
“educe our carbon footprnint, foster an inclus.ve,
progressive and d verse working envrrgnmenrt
anc to ensure a robust corparate governance
framewark, aliernancirg our wder
Envirarmentat, Social and Governance

{ESC) strategy

<ey highlignts 'n 2021 ncluded installing sclar
panels at gur headquarters, establ'shing a

Nom nation Committee, progress from our
diversity and inciusion waorking group and a
contiruation of gur long-establishec commitment
to tne wider community thrgugh our work with
partner charities PACT and The Memus.
Foundation

Wwe have an excellent foundation on which we can
continue to build, and wiludrive meaningful charge
3Cross our business going forward.

A market in growth

Part of the reason | jained Personal Group a year
aGo was the Group's remarkable growth
apportumty. During 2021 the market accelerated
further - it Fas never been more important for
organisations to look after their pecole. Whether it
15 due to the war for talert, wage inflatior, the
impacts of Brexit or a nost of other factors,
companies everywhere are fighting to retain their
talent and appreciate that caning for employees’
health, wellbeing, and building a sense of
community has become a non-regotiable.

The growtnn the market underpins our orgspects
as a business. We have a first-class, proven anc
aroad cffering to cater to this growng demand
and we loog forward tocapitalis ngonthe
opporturity

Dividend

I am pleasea to anngunce tnat the Board has
recommended a fnal ordinary dividend of 5 3
pence per share which will be paid to shareholders
on 26 May This makes a tota: ordinary arvidend

for 2021 of 10.6 pence per share anc whilst tnis
d-vicend reflects our reduced profits far the year it
doesstilrepresent asigr f cant proportion of our
earmings per sna-e as the 30ard seeks Lo continue
our givigend paymentsinling with historic
pay-out ratios

Qutlook

Notw. thstarcing the inCreased macrp pol tical arc
economig uncertanty, ircluding the ongoing
conflict in Ukraine, whichwe will contirue to
monitor c.osely Lo enable us o take anprooriate
s5teps t¢ manage any impact this has on the Group,
laaking anead, as a predominately people-basec
UK business, zne Board anc . are confidert about
the Group's prospects. Our market has never been
more relevart, we have astrgng and driver team
Ir place ang a clear strategy driving us towards
growth, We ook forward to continuing o arov'de
more support to more people nthe UK aver tne
caming year, nelping them to thrive both in work
and in.ufe

Martin Bennett

Non-Executive Chairman
28 March 2022

Further information

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
IR0V ROW ver —Casuid up 00 <15

Read more | page 28

ESG
THIEEREGIOas AR s NnGarien il ek
20N, ¢ uals

Read more | page 38
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OUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

"‘PERSONAL CROUP IS A PURPOSE-LED
BUSINESS - WE'RE AWINNING TEAM
CREATING ABRIGHTER FUTURE FOR
THE UKWORKFORCET

2021 saw the pandem C-related restnclions
contirue unti mid-July, which had a sign.ficant
effect onour, and our ¢l ents’ business aperatians
As aresult, and as previously icertified, our profits
weraimoacted comparaed with pre-pandemic
.evels, Pleasingly though, while we w [l corlinue
ta see the impact an our (nsurance busiress
premium income INto 2022, we have now

entered tne recovery pnase and expect ta see
Group earnings returr to year-or-year growth
from Fv22

The pardemic has also drought 'nto even sharper
focus the imperative Lo puilc towarcs ou” key
strategic goals of widening cur offer anc making 't
more relevant tg more sectors and sizes of
business - we're building significantly bigger
growtr prospects in the medum-termanrd am
delignted to report on the substantial progress
we've made this year,

ram particylarly pieased by the re-building of the
insurance boox, wh.ch havirg Deen held back by
restrictions for 15 monias, began i wuly 20217, anc
the grow:h and develapment of our small ana
medium-5ized business (SME} offer Working
together with Sage, we have grown from 30 to
1,500 cl:erts gayirg far the Sage Empuayee
Benefits piatform this year, reacning ¢ 2C,000
employees and witn a firm formuia now

establ shed for scaling the business between us

Further information

HAPIFLEX 0wt flexile berefiis saiut an 1o aert-drven
Drganisaliong
Read more page 20

CFOSTATEMENT o drrsonal Group C-0) Saram vage
Reac Towe | page 32

INSURANCE BUSINESS 2rac n.erview wiin CO0 1am
VLGN OF Sur aMDILGus Graw 't 2@an
Read More page 30

Juning the pandemic, we became Closer taour

¢l erts, and by ustening to our HR Direczor market,
we have griven deve.opment of our products and
services in|:ne witn thar ngeds, anc now have
cempelling of fers for SME, public sector,
enterpnse arc talert-driven organsatons we
stand aut in the warkforce benefits market due to
the preadth of our of ferirg, whicn INnc.UCES &
reward consuitancy capability, market-lead-ng
techrolegy platforms, employee-paid \nsurances
andLet’s Correct, gur buSiNESs DrovICINg aCeess
“oconsumer tecnnology through saiary sacr fice
As aresult of how we are evolving as @ business,
we have revised the way we report our segmenta.
results, whIch s desenbed In mote detal nihe
CFO stazement on page 34.

While COVID-"8 mpacted our business in the
sho-t-term by affecting our traduonal face-to-
face insurance sales mode!, at the same Lime 't has
orought a welcome long-term focus for
employers on the importarce of supaorting ine
resilierce of employees Never has the imoacriarce
of supportirg your team, impiementing effect ve
remuneration schemes and ensuring they have
access to impactful berefits deen more apparent
Tis s criving nCreasec cemand for our offer ng
and uncerpins our confidence for the future

Sales and Operational review

Pay and Reward: Innecto

Clents ofter start working with us as they
evaluate how effectve the- overall pay and
rewa d strategy s, engaging TIrougn rnecto, ou”
COrsuLtancy business nnectodel vered astrong
performance i 2027 as demana returred quickly
36sT-handemic and we d-ove sates of carsultancy
services up towerds 2079 levels

17 was also pieas ng to see that our aigital analytics
005 Now generate an Avnyalised Recurring
Reverue (ARR] of ¢ £450¢, reflecting the high
value clients piece on detalled pay analysis and
penchmarking. Inrecto wor work from 49 new
clients througn the year, demonstrating that gur
market 2rGoasitian § strangly resonating with our
target market This year as well as general pay and
reward progucts, we've segn cuents mplement ng
resoons ole reward strategies, looking hard at
gender and etnricity pay gaps and us g ou” loois
0 nep tnem map progress year-or-year

we've icertfied a strong drive towa“ds

consider ng tne 'Social element of ESG metrics n
manag g pay farly Tne -abus: relationskhips
we've bullt with key decision-makers who return
for advice year after yea ailows us to also
cross-sel. wider Group propos tions and we
anticipaie a year of continuec growth n pay arc
reward in 2022, especiacy as employee turnover
act vity and pay inflatior drives mare focus an
attracting, rewarding and retaiming the workforce.

Benefits platforms

We are at the forefront of the increasing
awareness of the ‘berefits of benefits’ Gone are
tne tracitioral cays of densionand cass for a
select few, today clents are working w tn us to
fire more INnovative solut.ons te Imarove the
wellbeing of :heir employees, recognising that the
2ande~ne has prought changing patterns of
working from hgme for the majonity of ther
off-ce-nased staff cmoloyee communication
charnels have signif canty ncreasec n
“MpEriance Ir reach ng emoloyees wherever they
are, arc ou” benefits platform s frequertly used
as part of Tne emp.oyee communications too.kIt
for ¢irect-to-employee messagirg



NEW CLIENTS

N 2021

30

Hapi and Hapiflex

We were delighted to bring the next generatior of
cur 'Hap' platform - our flexib.e benefits solution,
Hapiflex - to mar«et in September 2021, with a
number of cient wins aready secured in Q4
Hapiflex s a urmque patform that delivers arange
of flexible benefits directly to employeesvia a
mobne and desktop app. It builds on the

funct onality of the Haprapp while putting the
gecisian-making process firmly into the hands of
employees, making it easy to build a benefis
package that suits therr indivicual needs Hapiflex
allows us to target a new market sector
argamisations looking to offer ther empigyees a
mare complex penefits offer These tend to be
talert-dr ven grganisatiors, with greater average
earnings per employee thar our traditional
‘enterprise’ customer. You canread more about
Hapflex on page 20. Meanwhile we saw 20 Hapr
platformsales in 2021, proof that our employee
engagement platform s comoetitive In the market
and meeting the needs of new clients

Sage Employee Benefits

Tne SME business we've developed with 5age has
qgone from a standing startlastwirtertoa
growing business serving 20,000 paying
employees. S Es are facing the same struggle to
recruit workforces as bigger organisations, anda
benefits platform gives them an edge in the war
for talent. The growtn this year 1s oniy the start of
our SME stary, as we improve the attraction,
retention anc Lifetime va.ue of our clients.

Strategic Report

Governance

ACTIVATED USERS ON HAPI AND SAGE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

539,057

we helpour clients create a winning employee
deal that xeeps staff nerforming at their best, day
after day, In 2.\ 17e5 ang sectors

Affordable insurance

Qur insurance Dus:Ness Is the resilient, recurring
revenue engine of the susiness, which served
ovar 93,000 insurance payers n 2021 withmore
than 230,000 policies in force We resumed
face-to-face insurance saes in July, and althougn
1t has taken time to fully re-start the ergine after
agapof 15 montns, we are working towards
achieving full strengthin the team and conversior
rates are high

we're serving new clients aiongside exisung; our
partnership with Royal Ma:: Group s particularly

successful. With individual salespeopie’s average
daily sales up 8% on 2019 -pandemic

numbers, 't sclearer than ever that our

simple insurances are hghly valued by

our customers, and our purpese. to

‘protect the unprotected and cornect

the unconnected’ has never been

mare mportant.

what's more, these sales are not all
substitutional - we're seeing higher
levels of people with more thar one
pol-cy and therefore higher levels of
policy premium ncome. This trend
re-emphasises that cur products are
re.evant to the market we serve,

“We are at the forefront of increasing
_awareness of the ‘benefits of benefits”

Deborah Frost

Financial Statements

NO OF INSURANCE

PAYERS

03147

ard:nvaluadle inroles which don't offer sice pay
and ¢eath inservice as part of their starda<d
benefits pactage.

Througn the pandemic lockdowns we develooed
maore routes te market - virtual v sits, telesales,
anain-app nsurance Wh Lst face-to-face sales 1s
stillour primary cistribution method, we've
developed effective, lasting and lowe -Cost new
chanrels to acd 1o our sales model which also
a:lows us w0 reach a wider proporticn of
customers We ook forwarg to seemng the results
of gur develop.ng Insurance strategy over the
meciem term as ear.y signs are premising.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT 2ot g

“WEARE FOCUSED ON BUILDING A
BUSINESS WITH ROOM TO GROW IN THLE
MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM, AND THOSE
FOUNDATIONS ARE NOW IN PLACE

Other owned benefits: Let’s Connect

During 2027 the segment began to retur” to norma.

wrad.ng as schemes began to operate at pre-COVID
levels wtn 20 new cl,enis won nthe per od

The supply shortages which heavily mpacted the
seconrd half of 2620 continued to affect the
business dunng the deriod However, this was
mitigated by broadenrg the productrange to
ncarporate white goods, gym equipment anc
outdoor furn ture

This brogden ng of the aroduct 6ffarng coupleg
with new Business wirs and an expected return to
full supply of sought-afier technology products
gives "eason to be opumistic for the segrment's
performance moving nto 2022

Further information

OUR STRATEGY incou aboul our smditious sFree year plan
Reag more | page 24

Growth strategy

we a'm te bui.d warkforce resilbeénce for cients,
help ngemployeestrrve in wark and in ufe

Qver the three years | have .ed the business, we
have tens stently executed o= aur strategy 20
WICEr Qur DusINess proposition beyord nsurance
sales thrrougn our enterarse clierts Desp te twa
years of pa~demic restricions, we adcec 86 new
clients across tre Grouwd n2G21ang cont:nue to
5e€ v dence gf ew Cl enlinteres: .n "ew SecIars.
We are focused onbuild ng a business with room to
grow rtheredumand long-tesm, arg those
fourdationsare "owir p.ace

As our business Mogel has evolvec, we have
IMProvec C.ar ty aDout business acquisition
rargets These fa., into three main areas’

INCreasing tne scale of tne Dusiness throug: the
againon of clients and customers with cross-sell
opportun Ly,

accelerat'ng growtn inte a chosen area sLcn as
o g.tal msurance or oroviging dccess to specific
techrology, and

adding 10 thirg-party suppuUers to our benefits
propasitien,

We are actvely looxing at opportunities under
these main headings

Our refresheq strategy to sunstartially grow ine
Dus-ness over the meaium-term is based on three
key areas far growth:

1. Driving insurance

- Quroverarching strategy continues Lo focus on
cavelopng and maximising opportunities ‘or
growth. Qur insurance business has gart cular
“2sanarcea - gur core e~terpnse markets, ang we
are continuing to develop cppertunities with
new anc existing accourts through dif‘erent
aoproaches whist st retaiming our central
employer of fer of face-to-face meetings witn all
errployees

In addition, we are geveloping new progucts 31c
chanrels to market in arde to reach new
audiencas througn differert types of emp.oyer
Thsgivesus greater disir bulion opoortunities
and al.ows cross-sel.ng from Let's Connect ana
nnectoc. et Dases

- Continuirg to improve noucyhoider ~etenlign s
funcaTental to gur growth We have mace
Impartant strides by nstening to pol-cyholders,
offes ng payment hoticays whera reeded and
75,7 NG we nave payment Dack-ud beyond
campany oayron Our Keed My Cover aiternative
oayTent method resuitea n £71mof premiwm

ncome, wh-chwould previously have beea lOst,
berng col.ecred by direct debitir 2021anc s now
in place for 28% of policyholders who currently
nay trrough payroll Our goal s to s.grificanty
Increase the percentage of policyholaers witk
alternat ve payment mei~og¢s on their account,

2. Transforming Reward & Benefits
{platform growth)

- Workforee benefits s a “ast develoning ared
where we are creating innovation with gu”
product ra~ge: kap and Hapiflex, Add ng new
market opportuniies as weu as a clearer offer oo
our exISTirg NArkets 15 how SPowing tractior
with increased sales 0d ar v og bottam-1 ng
growth in the mecum -term.

3. Accelerating SME offer
The SME market ntre UK isvast, and mainly
under-served due to the challenges of reaching
the sector at scale. Qur partnershipwitn Sage
allows us to directly reach tre seven milon UK
eMpIoYEeS USING S3QE se°v.Ces at real SLIC Cost
Owver 2021 we movea tnrougn the stari-up prase
and can ~ow reaLy Cap tause on growtk by
professionalising gur jaint operation "o mee: the
feecs OF tins Market we nave nvestad =~ réw
Lalent Lo drive digita. Customer accuisit on and
IMArove our CUSTOMEr jurney

Awongside this refreshed strategy, we are today
dnTouncing a "Lmoera®aspiratons ‘o the
Tid-term:

T Qver 80% emiloyee ergagement

Over 75% custoTer aporova: rating
Serving »1 5 emoloyees

Dv-g ~-year sremiLmincome gves £35m
LMock g £8 TDA gowh

VR W N



Overview

A winning team

Employee engagement scores were at 72% tnis
year, and the Board anc | 8-e focused on puilding
this beyond 80% over tne next three years, which
N turr will drive custome satisfaction, client
satisfaction and increased iInnovation and
commercia.ty.

The Senmiar _eagership Team has deen t.ghtened
and refreshec in the last few years, bringirqg new
skil.s and perspectives o the Group. We now have
an excellent team 1 olace t0 execute on our
growth ambition.

Strategic Report

Governance

Outlook

Cur strorg team, tegether with the technology
we've deve.oped, the partnership we have with
Sage, our yea-s of expenience and strong balarce
sheet, combired w tn a hugely support ve external
market ervironment, give me great confidence .n
what we can ach.eve in the next three to five
years. We recogn'se tnat the reeds and required
skill-sets of the business evolve, and we will
continue to Invest In pecole at d:ffecent levels ta
effec: the change we reed

Financial Statements

I'would Like to thank the senior team, our peaple
and the Board for their suoport, chalienge and
enthus:asm for the Goals we've set ourselves. We
are excited abour where we are going next

Deborah Frost
Group Cheef Executive

28 March 2022

HOMEBASE SEES THE VALUE OF FACE-TO-FACE VISITS

Homebase is a British home improvement retailer and gorden centre with stores across
the United Kingdom and reland. They employ over 5,600 people,

As well as the opportunity to se.w. our insurance
progucts, site visits are designed to del ver ROl for the
cuent's nenefits package - both n boosting take-up
numpers, and mak ng sure emp,oyees appreciate the
value of their deal compared to a compet tor.

Us'ng the backend HR Hub, we can see 6bvious SpIKes
inactivation levels resulting fromthe Employee
Engagement Executive (EEE) visits. Having them take
employees through tne platform 11 cearly drives the
activation and usage numbers that botn we and the
cllentwant tosee.

We've nad feedback from site maragers that the tEES
are always polite ang efficient. They wark a-ounc peak
Limes to mMake sure the client's productivity 15 ot

affected and there's absolutely no 'hara sell’ when .t
comes to the insurarce policies.

Infact, our client had positive feechback from employees
who did choose to take Up & healtn insurance slan. in the
wake of COVID-18, It's not surprising that employees
value the opportunity to protect themselves and their
famil es at an afforcable price

Wwe ook forward ta build ng on this success by
contiruing to increase registrations and activat ons
n2022.

Reac "no-re online |
https:/www.hapi.co.uk/content-hub/case-studies

“We've completed our first site visits schedule with
Homebase and we're delighted with how the rollout is going”

Liam McGrath - Chief Operatng Officer, Personal Group

17
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OUR MARKETS

THE DRIVE TO LOOKAFTER EMPLOYEES

HAS NEVER BEEN GREATER AND

UNDERPINS A CONTINUALLY INCREASING
DEMAND FOR OUR SERVICES.

Market drivers

Trends in tne worle of wor¢ nave asignificant
impact on e Group, often creating new
oppo-tunit &5 for the bHusiress

Overall, 2021 saw tnhe cortirued acceleratior of a
core theme: the need foremploye s o Imorove
their employee value propositions. The drive 1o
look af ter emiployees, creating areal, positve
‘mpactor aves rather than as a 'tick-box’ exercise
nas never been greater, and underpirs a
contrually :ncreasing demana far our services.

Key themes

Increased importance of employes health

and wellbeing

2021 saw a wicesoread recogr.Lion of the role
olayed oy the emiployer in providing different
forms of health anc wellbeing support, with
mental neaith provisions in particular emergirg as
one of the key growtn areas

Tn s means provid ng wellbeing services that place
emphasis on exetc se, sleep, Fealthy foog, and
mental hea.th support, which have a s.gnificant
IMpact on preventing ungderlying conditions

Maintairing 3 team that s 'wew uncerpins a
business's orgoirg operations ard 15 lso
Increasingly seento be part of tne employer's
moraj resporsibilizy

Dersonal Group offers employers access 20
WOorkp.ace wellbe ng initiatives des gned Lo J00st
morg.e, effectiveress, and res .ence across thair
operatiors

Agevelaping nuance of Interest s the increased
~esponsibility for employers to @1sure that bealth
ar¢ wellbe ng berefits genu nely have a
meaningful impact an their peoole (as aroven
the data) as opposed to a token effort

The ‘Great Resignation® and the war for talent
What nas been called “The Great Resignation” saw
4 7% of the UK workforce voluntarily resigning
from ra@s in 2021, cue Lo a coambination of
nereasing ecoromic instability and a saiftin
workers' oriorities foliowing the anset of the
pangemc * At the same time, demand for new
cardidates s oursIrpping suoply. 'r response,
companies have furtner recognised the
impoertance of employee nealth protectior,
empoyee denefits and wellbeing suppart gs a tool
A the attraction and “etentior of staff

Building resilient workforces

L ving through a globa. pandemic has created a
shifoir the rminds of many oeople, tne thought
they may become Ll "someday” nas been replacec
Dy a real'satign thatit could Maopen "any day" Witn
“hisin mind, tae Group's hed th protection
offerings have contirued to resonate strongly

We've seen sustanec nterest 1 our protection
plans from emoloyers who want Lo keep workers
safe ard productive, but a mited berefits budget
means they are unaole to provice cover for il
healtn By partnerinrg with Persana, Group, cuerts
can provice therr staff w th easy access to
affprcable ngiv cua. po.Cies 8t no extra cass o
“he employer Employees .50 valde Tne chance ©o
safeguard “hemseves fromthe mpactof _heaith
arthe rearrngs

* Pips //lordor:ovesbusiness. com/par demic-fuels-great- resigration-ir-uk-|0b-market-as-work farce-rethirks-career-priont es/

Flexible working

COVID-19 has changed the game on flexible
working - mary employees w L nevergo back to
five days ir the off ce Hyond workirgis nere to
stay and HR managers are facing the challenge af
aworkforce that s more aiscornected tnan ever
AS such, us-ng technology Joth to communicate
with employees and to geliver wellbeing serv.ces
nas emerged as a key trend Aswell as providing
v tal support, it a.50 encourages continued
participat on weth te business's values and
onilosophy The acvartages of nt-oducing a cgita.
patformsuch as Hapi are therefore increasingly
relevant.

Diversity and inclysion

The nse of flexible working Nas also posed a threat
to the progress made by many businesses interms
of diversity and Inciusion, bus-nesses Must row
cons ¢er now they wiLl preserve social equ:ty ng
disrupted ervironment. Despite many busiresses
pledging to priontise diversity and inclusion
programmes tnroughout the pargemic, Justore ir
siIX employees nciverse categores reparted
feeling approprately suppertec » .ate 2020 **
Throughout 2021 and keading into 2022, 4R
maragers 1eeded to thnk strategically about
employee beefits anc support and now they canr
Mace sure these drovis s are reachng theer
Deoodle anc oroviding meanirgful suoport.

T Prips/fwww.rickirsey com/featured-insights/diversity-ard-inc.usion/diver se-emp.oyees-are-struggling-the-most-during-cavid-19-heres-Fow-companies-can-respond
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Our markets

Persgnal Group affers 3 uriquely holistic Marer praposition, spanimg msurance, employee benefits, and rewarg corsultancy, allowing us tg address
every sector of UK busiress and offes relevant, mely and price-aporoariate services tnat help companies address trese cey themes

Product offering by vertical

RO ail Group,
answick

Fair-deal health and life
insurance products

Digital benefits platform
-Hap

Sandwelt st
Birmingharn NHS Trust

Other owned benefits
{Let's Connect)

Digital benefits platfarm
- Hapi {Hapiflex versian
most relevant)

See Homebase case study

See NAS case study | page 6 &

Refinitiy

Pay and reward consultancy
{Innecto)

Digital benefits platferm
- Hap (Hapiflex version
rmost relevant)

See Bought By Many case study |

Digital benefits platform
[Hapt white-labelled as
‘Sage Employee Benefits')

See Clmisupplies case study |

page 17 Lun,vemzy of York | page 20 page B8 J page 10
34%
(0]
OF CLIENTS ARE CURRENTLY SERVED BY TWO OR MORE SEGMENTS
Enterprise Public Sector Talent-driven SMEs

One of our main markets s the
industrial heartlands of the UK,
across sectors such assoc al care,
foed manufacturing, transpart ang
logistics. We are aroud to offer a
benefits package ard affordable
employee paid .nsurance protection
to these employees, many of whom
don'tsitbeMnd adeskand might not
nave access to the Denefits package
offered ncther sectors Cur
Hospital Cash Plan, Convalescence
Plan and Death Benefit Plan increase
these employees' financiairesilience
against unexpected costs.

The ONS estimates therg are13m
empioyees In UK companies over
1,000 emp.oyees. We are a.ready
trusted by large housenold name
arganisations like DHL, Stagecoach,
and RpyalMail

With sustaned pressure on the NHS
Inthe last 18 months, coupled with
theimpact of staff shortages due to
illness and setf-1salat on, NHS
employees are vulnerable to missing
out on the discounts and benefits
that others take for granted. Qur
NHS offer s a customised platform,
empawering employees with easy
accass to core NAS benefits We
have also developed an NHS
framework strateqy to provide
access to PG cet's Conrect and other
salary sacrifice benefits orovided by
third parties. The launch of Hapiflex
with the Un versity of York this year
W14 3i50 heyp us gain access to more
of the UK's 5.6m public sector
waorkers, providing serv ces for
employees wi th more disposable
ncome

Qur work with fast-growing
talent-.ed businesses mainly takes
place through Irnecto, our pay and
reward censultancy, For such
enterprises, atiractirg and retaining
the right talent s key to their future
success, a challenge that has only
been exacerbated by recent nigh
levels of churn across the UK
workfarce ‘nnecto’s intewgert
consultancy and digitat analysis
solutions help organisations
understand the r reward position
better As companies seek Lo
safequard social equity in a disrupted
wOorking environment, rnecto's
gender pay gap and gther

legislat ve-led transparency
reporting 1s more reievant than ever,
providing berchmarking data to
guide compar-es 1o best support
their peome and preserve equity

We target tne UK's vast but
fragmented SME market through our
partnership with Sage, the UK's
largest provider of payroll and
accounting software for small
businesses Through this
partnership, we are able toreach a
signif-cant number of our target
market the 255,000 UKSMEs
between 10-250 employees.
Together they account far around
7.5memployegs.”

Currertly circa 1m SMES nave access
to Sage accounting services. We also
have plLans to wicen au- parLnersnip
to include other arganisat:ons whick
work wthir the SME market, such as
DUSINESS services and membersnip
organisations.

*Gov uk statistical release October 21
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LAUNCH OF HAPIFLEX

AFTER ASUCCESSFUL LAUNCH WITH

UNIVERSITY OF YORK, WE WERE DELIGRTED
TOBRING OUR NEXT GENERATION FLEXIBLE
BENEFITS SOLUTION, HAPIFLEX, TO MARKET
INSERPTEMBER 2027,

Hapiflex is an easy to use platform that delivers a range of flexible benefits directly to employees via
amobile and desktop app. It builds on the functionality of the Hapi app, but puts the decision-making
process firmly into the handx of employees, making it simple to build a benefits package that suits their

5,030

EMPLOYEES AT HAPIFLEX CLIENT
UNIVERSITY OF YORK

Sep 2021

FULL LAUNCH OF HAPIFLEX

individual needs.

-apiflex al.ows us to target organisatn.ons laoking
1o offer their employees a mere complex oenefits
offer These terd iobe talent-led organisations,
weth greates average earmings per employee thar
our tradional @nterprise Customer.

Whetner t's commuting by Jike, noliday tradng, a
tech scheme or affordable salary (Gans, Hapflex
brings together arange of pre-selected benef ts
all none place, enabling employees tosee a
coemp.ete overview of therr chosen package
Th-pugh therr oersonalised Tota, Reward
Statement, they can see what penefits they
currently nave, v ew the progress of an
applicat:on, adyust their chowces with n pre-set
weadows or check out any new offers

Offerirg more benef it options coesn't mean Mmore
adin for the HR ream. With everytnirg hosted on
2 s rgle n.atform, it's eas er to coordinate tne
many d'fferent scnemes Personal Group can
accommeeate existng providers Or agree new
ceas asnecessaty The intuitive back-end system
nelps HR teams reduce the hours spent
coordmating benef ts pacxages across the
DUsIress anc Nasa dasnpoard that shows wn ¢h
benefits are the masSt poou.ar Tng datahe.pswir
analyss, night ghis aly gaps and ersures the very
Jestberef ts are being offerec to staff HR can
2.50 5e¢ real iime rotificatons of any requests,
share Tatal Rewa-d Statemerts and irteg-ate

d rectly w t1 payroll

wulie Stayte, Cnief People Gfficer at Persona.
Group says, "Now more than ever, employees are
expecting their employers to not orwy provide a
comopesitive salary but also add-tional peres that
2rove how mMuch tney are vawea Beirgable to
cragse benefits tnat surt ther own ind-vdua.
Ifestyle s key to nelping emoloyees feel engaged
and mptivated Thisis wharg Adapifiex can heln”

Haoiflex makes teasy ta comm™municate with
employees There s the oplion to schedule regula”
messaging, including push notifications, whicn
~elps keep usage anc engagemeant up The
mMessaging, which caninclude employee surveys
and ather business infor=auon, car be sent

¢ rectly to empioyees, whicn s key for reaching
remote o hybra workers”

sulie adds, "Hapifiex builds or the oring ple that
when a person feels supported -~ financially,
mentally, emot:onally, physically, socially as wel.
asIm therr career - they are morelikely to thrive
both in work and 1 Ufe. By respending o
employees' needs and offering tnem the benef ts
they really want, dusinesses can ergage and

Tot vate their workforce at tne same tme as
SPOWING NOw MUCh tey care”

“Hapiflex brings together a range of bespoke
benefits allin one place.”
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CASE STUDY

HAPIFLEX

LAUNCH

UNIVERSITY
OF YORK

After a competitive tender process, the University of
York chose to partner with Personal Group to develop
and deliver flexible benefits to their workforce of
5,030 staff,

Personal Group have desigred their pletform,
white-labelled as Rewards Extra, around theirr
organisation’s unigue needs and workforce profile with
the new platform, t's gu ck and easy for employees to
choose and manage their choice of benefits from
transport, health cover, EAP, financial wel.being,
discounts and chanitable giving.

Rewards Extra launchedin September 2021 anc we're
celignted with the rollous so far The University of York
areworking w.th Personal Group to continually optimise
their employee offer, erab.ng the™ to recruit ard retain
thevery besttalent intherr sector

Read mare online |
https://www.hapi.co.ul/content-hub/case-studies

Governance Financial Statements

“Hapiflex enables us to
make inroads into new
sectors - it’s perfect for
talent-driven businesses.”

Karen Thornley
Cwef Commercial Officer, Personal Group
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

PERSONAL GROUP™S OFFERING IS
FOCUSED OVERALL ON IMPROVING
THE LIVES OF THE UKWORKFORCE,

Qur unique resources; We use these rasources to:
The Group provices JK arga=isations with the full-service salution tney need to Provice g broad rarge of employee ergagement ancg
stand ous as ar empicyer of cnoice. wellbeing offerings to a.isectors of the JK workferce

Our aurpase provides the guiding igrt for Cur ab lity te offer a very wide ~ange of
Qur DLSIress and aligns us berind one goal berefits and solutions with nong Groun
1sattractive to clients orovides a point af
differentiat:on ard sets us up “or furtner
polt-gnecquis Liars

Our clear strategy prowvides motivatien
for all staffa=d attracts nvestors

"S5 3 vawable route to market which allows

app
us to capitalise or our SME offer

Haoiflex, launcred in 2027, san
2xtension to the olat“orm orowd ng even
greater flexiniity ard cha ce

)
%]
c
g
@
k4
]
AQigrea, selunon that allows ermpuoyees Duriorg term relalionshie with Sage sroviges E
to access a wealt™ of financial, physica,, access toc Fmillion emplayeeswithir the P
menta, and soc il senefits through an LX'svastbut fragmerted SMI marker g
@asy-lo-use platfarm and sMartphone
o
I

Weare aut mgnised by the FCA for Curstrong and exderie~ced team ensures
‘msurance cistribut.on, asignificant qua.tyce. very 0f our ofFfer ngs across e
2a7r et toentry o competitors rire GroLp, Umcerpirn Ny our Prand as & (rastwaortny

employee deref 15 space partner
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How our work creates value:
QOur employee benefits and employes insurance nroducts serve hundreds of
<housends of UK employees, helping them thave in work and inl fe.
PAY & REWARD

Innecto Digital subscriptions - eMployers pay an annual subscription for
digital analysis and predictive 5aas tools for use in making pay decisions.
Innecto consultancy ncome - eMployers pay for a full reward service - from
pay benchmarking to the development of job evaluation and benus schemes,

BENEFITS PLATFORM

Hapi subscriptions - employers pay monthly or annual subscriptions per
employee for use of the Hap platform and app.

Can be white-labelled through a corporate partner, eg. 5age Employee
Benefits,

Commission on third party transactions - we earn @ margin on some of the
discounted vouchers availadle to employees through Hapi and commussion
anany third-party financing arranged or employer purchases of partner
solutions.

AFFORDABLE INSURANCE

Employee-paid .Insurance plans - access to our insurance products |s made
avallable through anindividual's wider employee benefits offering. Premiums
are paid by the employee via a weekly or monthly payroll deduction.

OTHER OWNED BENEFITS ‘
Employer-paid home technology salary sacnifice sales - employers pay up

front for ther employees’ technology and other purchases with employees

making subsequent monthly salary sacrifice payments back to their

emplayers.

Asigrificant
prapor tion of revenue
i€ 38%) 15 Dass through
voucher resaig on Hapi

and therefore has no
Mmpacionearnings

M ~ffordable insurance

[ IBereftsalatform

Bespoke, integrated and intuitive delivery
of a broad and affardable suite of
employee services to help employers Lo
attract, motivate and retain staff and to
deliver on their E3G commitments

An engaging, supportive and challenging
erviconiment for our people Meaningful
purpose-led work with great oppariunity
for persona, caresr prograssion

Adjusted EBITDA

contribution

34%
OF CLIENTS ARE
SERVED BY TWO OR

MORE SEGMENTS

“iPay and Reward
[_Jother owned benefits

Helping customers thrive in work ard ir
life Peace of mind for nol.cybolgers with
our fair-deavirsurance products and
enhanced access to benef.tsanc
JISCOUNIS V1a severa. cnannels

Strong financials underping v genc
payments and provice firepower for
growth Increasing reslience tnrougn
contirued develoament innew channels,
offerings and audiences

23
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OUR STRATEGY

WE ARE BUILDING ON OQUR
SUCCESS WITHACLEAR THREE
YEAR STRATEGY.

OUR ASPIRATIONS

Wwe are focused on buillding a business with room to grow .m the mecium and long term and Nave la d out what our business w' Ll need to ok (ke Lo meet

Qurasalrat.ons

PERSONAL GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

OUR MEDIUM-TERM OURVISION
ASPIRATIONS
WHERE WE PLAY
Over 80% employee
engagement TIER1 TIER2 TIER 3
great place to work SMES (10-250 TALENT- ENTERPRISE/
EMPLOYEES) DRIVEN PUBLIC SECTOR
We have a market- Thraough Haniflex Qurcore markets
Qver 75% customer leading partnership we offer a bespoke offer campany-pawd
. with Sage with benefits solution to wellbeing benefits
appraval rating ambitious plans for UK-hased companies and employee-paid
. growth in the SME with a sophisticated insurance to UK-based
great to work with market. We will add full-service offer enterprise clients
agther partnersand a consultancy, salary between 2,000 and
direct-to-market offer sacrifice and other 140,000 employees
. third-party solutions
Serving >1.5m

employees
HOW WE WIN

We help people thrive in life and in work - ourselves
and our clients’ employees

making a difference

Drive in-year premium

income over £35m - We make it easy for our clients and prospects to choose us,
by creating a market-leading offer, meeting all Reward and
protecting the Benefits requirements
unprotected

- Qur proposition, enboarding, and lifetime service for 28
clients is industrial-strength and scalable

. - Qur satisfyingly simple insurance products are backed by
Unlocking EBITDA outstanding claims and service experience

growth - We make it easy to do business with us through any channel

OUR
CAPABILITIES

High performing
customer, sales, and
client service teams

Leading-edge
technology

End to end processes
that work every time

Supplying products
and services people
need to help them
thrive in life

Purpose-driven Board
and SLT with great
supporting teams

Effective governance
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HOW WE WILLDELIVER

Financial Statements

Qur refreshed strategy to substantially grow The business over the medium-term s based on three key areas for growth.

1.

DRIVE
INSURANCE

2.

TRANSFORM REWARD
& BENEFITS

3.

ACCELERATE
SME OFFER

a. Increase channels to market
direct mail, virtual visits,
digital, face-to-face

b. New products
eg Cancer Protect, new
company paid product

c. Improve retention

and communications to
retain higher numbers

d. Improve penetration levels
currently estimated at c.10%
of available employees

improve policyholder journey

a. Increase client base
reach new markets with clear
‘best in class' offer

b. Increase each client's spend
on rewarg and benefits
by offering new ideas and
services including innecto
and Let's Connect

c. Increased range of offering
providing a broader range
of benefits to our
customer base

a. Qur target market covers
€255,000 UK SMEs between
10-250 employees. Together
they account for around
7.5 m empioyees. *

b. Maximise our relationship
with Sage

c. Improve lifetime value (LTV)
of subscribers

d. Add new channels
to address market needs

*Gov uk statisticalrelease Gctober 27




26

Persgnal Group Holdings Pl¢ Annual Report and Accounts 2021

STRATEGIC PROGRESS

MAKING REAL PROGRESS ON
OUR STRATEGIC GOALS.

Client proposition Innecto s the largest independent pay and reward censultancy i the UK, Our employee benefits solution, Hapl, is a market-leading
employee engagement platfarm
We offer a comprehensive suite of consultancy services including reward
strateqgy, pay structures, pay benchmarking, job evatuation, gender pay and The app-first technology enables employees Lo accass their
executive remuneration Innecto specialise in working with cients whoare benefits and wellbeing services wherever and whenevyer
going through significant change or growth and need to update their pay they nepd to which works particularly effectively in our core
and reward arrangements to meet business dermands. clients where employees are often not working at a gesk, and
with the increase in hybrid and home-working, we see a
202 clients include Airbus, Airtanker, Taylor Wessing, Bought by Many, distinct requirement for employers to be able to host a
Canada Life, Avanti West Coast, and Bloomsbury Publishing central hubwith employee information in one, easily
Innecto has also developed a suite of digital analysis and predictive Saas acresseq iocatior.
tools for use in making pay decisions. During the year, we developed ‘a new For larger clients, the platform s fully customised and white
tool, Advance, which allows employers to simplify and speed up decision- labeiled with their own bespake mix of benefits ang
rnaking around the annual pay review precess. This was launched 10 early branding, whereas our SME clients buy a standardised
2022 product pre-populated with key benefits as 5age Employee
Many clients start work on their reward propasition with pay, following an Benefits through our partnership with Sage.
with bonus and finally benefit provision Innecto brings cllenFs Into the Hapiflex is our new version of Hapi, 2imed at more
Graup at an early stage In therr tl_'nnkmg and tends to work with key d.ecnsmnf sophisticated client users who want to be able to offer
rnakers, We are umque among mid-tnarket benefit providers n offering flexible benefits ta therr empleyees which ncludes opting in
complete pay, reward and benefit solutions. to specHic benefits fie buy/sell heliday) on an annual cycle.
2021 prograss - Growth in consultancy incorne of 50% on 2020 - Launch of Hapiflex, the Group's new Benefit Management
- 49 newclients System, allows full mtegration of a range of company-paid
- Thira aigital product daveloped; HR pay review tool ‘Advance’ launched in benefits (i pension, Cycle to Work, Let's Connect, season
ticket loans etchinto the Hapi software allowing greater
early 2022 choice for emplayees, an impraved Customer journey and
- dgclients gn ether Evaluate™ and PayLab™ with a retention rate of 84%. valug-add one-stop process for clients and their
- Annual Recurring Revenue [ARR) of £0.43m at Dec 21{&0.25m Dec 20 «72%). employees. This allows Us access Lo new markets who see
the offer of flexible benefits to their teams as key to their
employee value praposition
2022 plans - Many arganisations have come out of the pandermic keen to review - SME growth. Drive relationship with Sage to add more

existing reward practice in response to the tight labour market and are
focusing heavily on reward strategy reviews and benchmarking.

- Focus on employee lifetime value has seen an uplift in consultancy
projects loGking at benefit provision, recognitian and pay progression

- Successful taunch of new Innecto Digital product Advance, a pay review
software salution, 2022 will see the evolution of how we are positioning
our ptatformsin the market and a continued focus on connectivity nfall
Innecto Digital products, Once connected, clients will have a seamless
Journey thraugh reward, alongside APIs Into HRIS systems, which will
provide significant cross-sell opportunities for multiple preducts.

202215 Innecto’s 20 year anniversary

chents, )mprove sign-up ang retentian Expand further
SME channels.

Hapi growth: Integration of manual back-office processes,
Increased functionality on marketing capability driven
centrally to drive sign-up and usage including integrating
digitalinsurance

- Sourcing and integrating traough AP third party
partnershigs to add innovation to praduct offer on Hapr at
speed Drive higher revenue values earned per platform
through improved product range and offer of benefits plus
Hapiflex sales 3t higher revenue per user
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Qurinsurance products provide peace of mind and security for employee groups
who don't receive deathin service or sick pay from their employers. Qur simple
products, which don't require amedical or premium underwriting, are paid
through payroli deduction. The premiums and payouts are reiatively low value,
but fill anwmportant gap for the communities we serve.

Our unigue sates approachis to conduct benefits rotlout directly inthe
workplace with employees, both introducing them to ther benefits package
on Hapi, and offering the chance to buy insurance there and then, face-tg-faca.
This fulfils our purpose of Connecting the Uncannected, and Protecting

the Unprotected, and helps employers communicate their key messages

about employee wellbeing and the key benefits they of fer employees at the
same time.

Since COVID, we have heen developing other channels tg market, including
virtual visits, direct mail and telesales We are alsc trialling Digitat Insurance
sales through our Hapi app

This sector rafers to suppliers within the platform whnich are also owned by the
Group. At present thisrefersto Let’s Connect, the Group's Salary Sacrifice
Technology business, but the reallocation of segments allows this area to grow
as the Group moves forward

Qur benefit proposition provides employees with the opportunity to exchange
some of their salary each month for the latest technology devices fram leading
manufacturers.

Empioyees are able to save Nationai Insurance - up to 12% - and proves very
popular, as they are able to spread the cost over a fixed period of time.

Employers value how the benefit drives employee engagement and helps them
create an excellent employee value proposition, which both attracts and retains
staff.

Other benefits include having access to the latest devices for remote working,
communications and learming.

- Returntothe field was impeded by lockdown until mid-July where we
gradually saw a re-start of face-to-face visits with clients. Re-starting the
engine on the field sales team after a hiatus of 15 months was chaltenging,
and we were still hampered by employee shortages, both ours and clients' as
aresult of COVIC through the summer and autumn. Individual colleagues are
performing very well withindividual sales delivery up c8% based on 2019
tevels which is encouraging as we continue returning ta normat, and Logk
forward to 2022 with confidence.

- We went live with a digitalinsurance trial with our largest client in July.

- Attracted new clients as aresult of public sector framewarks gained in 2020,
Successfully part of joint Personal Group-wide tender for Kent County
Councit Framework - goes live in 2022

- Adced 20 new clients.

- Due to global technelogy shartages, we expanded our product set - launches
of white goods, high end garden furniture and gym eguipment which helped
to retain margins and meet client expectations.

Driving Insurance initiative focused on widening and deepening all aspects of

our Insurance customer operation:

- Improve penetration with existing clients through extension of digital
insurance and cther routes to market

- Innovationin products with third party trials of other insurance products.

- Review first year poiicyhoider retention journey to ensure that we support
the customer asreguired in the initial stages of their partnership with the
Group.

- Cross sell/upsell across the Group, including Hapi/Let's Connect on the Kent
Framework as a viable public sectar choice to EdenRed.

- Assupplies of technology products impraove in 2022, the maves made n 2021
to broaden the product range of Let's Cannect will allow greater choice and
more seasonally relevant product marketing throughout the year.

- The Group continues to actively consider acquisition into other areas to widen
Its owned offering.

27
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATCRS

THE GROUP METICULOUSLY
ReVIEWS TS PERFORMANCE,
MEASURED ACROSS ANUMBER

OF KPIS.

LEAD INDICATORS

As part of our strategy for detivering long-ter m sustainable growth, we identified a number of lead indicators, the improvement of which will enable us to grow both our
revenue and profits and build future value for the business.

n ber2021 31D 2020

Lead indicator Why we chose it Restated*
Totalunicue client numbers Wirning new clients and reta ning ex st ng ones w L be <ey Lo us Jeing able to 387 358

Yrow our pusINess,
Numbe- of clients served by two or  Encouraging c-ass-selling across the Group will erable us 0 ach-eve increased 132 120
mare lines of business penetration across ou” existing ¢l erts as wel. as makirg usan mpartant part

of clients' employee wel.beirg proposition
Tota:number of emdloyees 1o ircreasing the number of emp.oyees we provide services to will be furcamental 1,210,980 1,159,691
whomcne or more of our servces o us achieving our growth aspirazions as well as helairg us achieve our vision of
aremace ava:naole heing aw.nn.ng team ¢reaung a brighter future for the UK workforce.
Activatec userson Haprang Sage  Increas:ng the numaber of activated users on —ap and Sage Employee 3enefits 539,051 484,773
Emaloyee Benefits will help us drive greater returr on the Group's $aas digitally enabled progucts
Numbper of iInsurance payers Re-Irv goraung growtn rinsurance poJcyholders, wogether w thaconsister: 93,147 103,497

Focus on retentior, will nelp us INCrease the size of our nsurance business. We
nave chosen Lo use payers instead af our Nistonc measure of paac-as toreflect
that the major ty of qur orem ums are collected through payroli deduct onanc our
~etentign rates are large.y determined by the actions of the rdiv dual payer

*Inling with our appreach to a more holistic wiew of our clients we implemented Salesforce across the Graup in 2021 As a result, some of the 2020 comparators far these

metncs have been restated

TOTAL UNMIQUE CLIENT NUMBERS

387

NUMBER OF INSURANCE PAYERS

93147 539,057

ACTIVATED USERS ON HAPI AND SAGE EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS
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OTHER KPIS

In addition to our lead indicators we continue to measure against a variety of additional KPIs both across the Group and within the various business segments.

[2020 £271m] 2020 [2020 24 4%)]
2019 £30.3m| (2079 £9.0m| [2018 22 1%]|
ANNUALISED PREMIUM INCOME’ ANNUALISED NEW BUSINESS PREMIUM® CLAIMS RATIO

£24.4m

£3./m

24.5%

[z020 BO.5%]
[2018 76.6%]|

YEAR ON YEAR INSURANCE RETENTION

80.7%

2020 £1.6m

ANNUALISED RECURRING REVENUE
FORSAAS LICENCES

£3.2m

[2020 57.320]
[2012 31,319]
LCORDERS

33,155

[

. Annualised premium income refers to the annualised premwm of poucresin ferce at the end of the financral year net of IPT

Annualised new business premiums are a key performance indicator as, whilst no direct reconailation to earned premiums for the year can be carried out, they are a primary driver of earned premiums
In future years and, as such, are a key measure for the Group. Sor a weekly premium, the measure s calculated as the value of the premium (net of IPT) x S2, for a marthly premium, the value of the net

premium (net of IPT) x 12
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Q&AWITH LIAM MCGRATH, CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

A CONVERSATION WITH LIAM MCGRATH,
PERSONAL GROUP'S COO, TO DISCUSS
THE CHANGING MARKET, NAVIGATING
OPERATIONAL CHALLENGES AND THE
GROUP'S BIGGEST OPPORTUNITIES.

BRIEF BIOGRAPHY

As COO, Liam leags Personal Group's
Insurance arm Personal Group Berefits
He was previgusly Group COO for
Advanced, orovicer of business software
and services 1o over 19,000 customers
where ne nad respons.oilty forall
custemer syppo-t and professional
services

Liam has heldarge cperational rolesin
retail f nanc al services for over 15 years
work ng for prands such as Equiniti Group
plc, RB5, RSA anc GE Consumer Finance

What were Personal Group's priarities
over the last year?

it's been areally busy first seven months
When | oined Personal Grouo pack in May
202", the loosering of (ockdown restriciions
from the pancemic had just begun which
erablec usto get the irsurance field sa.es
team oack out to work, There was ac.ea”
priority for us 1o get back to face-to-face
meetings alorgside our virtual sales charnels
ard we were able w0 act cuickly and flexibly 10
successfu.y restart these sales

Inadd Ton to this we have been think'ng
careful.y about how we're going to grow
the insurance business significantly over
the nex: three o four years, and ulzimazely
what that requires from a channel and
proguct perspective. Recaognising the

world s ¢ifferent posST-pandemic, we know
the div si0n must be multi-cnannel, and
aporopriate o multiole markets Driving this
forward s very much frort of mind.

0On the employee penefits platform sice,
we've been really busy winnirg new clients
ang successfutly .auncn.ng Hapiflex, a more
complex version of e benefits platform
far ta.ent-driven orgamsations. The Sage
narznership contirues to go from strength
Lo strengtn as well anc cur pay and reward
DusINess NrectoIs tnrving

Q

What are the key goals for Personal Group's
insurance business and how will you
achieve them?

Driving irsurarce througn new ang existing
channels - spec ficaly, getting in-yea-
premium income to over £35m -is central to
ourstrategy T'sanambizous targes but ‘'m
confident in our capab Jty of having reauy
=igh performing sales and service teams trat
nlays directly to how we win with gur s mple
products and outstanding service.

we have denufied 12 growth levers: these
wil. enable us to orotect anc grow the core
of gur insurance business as wellaserter
agjacent anc new marcets At the same t.me
as -ncreasing penetratior into existing clients
and maximisirg policynowger retentior,
we'l_be adding new products that serve our
customers' needs Our diversified charnels
to market - face-to-face, direct mail, virtua
v s.tsand m-appinsurance - willenableus to
reach mere customers than ever before

How much has the industry changed
during your career?

The insurance anc emoloyee benefits

and we lbeirg inrdustries have changed
exponent ally ir the 1ast 2C years Previous
oenefits packages haa nothing comparec
o wnatyou can access row N termsof
discounts, f.ex penefts ard derks

“Growth is at the top of the
agenda and we are clear how
‘we willachieveit.”

Liam McGrath
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Advancements in technology have been
the key arving force across noth industries
and have enabled a lot of the progression
to happen. Consumers row have direct and
instant access Lo INsurance or empoyee
benefits frem their ohore

Alongside that, the breadth of offering nas
significantly increased, particuar.y Ir the past
24 months with the rise of ‘asurtech We've
3.50 seen Innovatior In the way cover 1s sold
and provided - at Personal Group we're now
able tosellinsurarce palicies via our Hapl app
to employees of existing clients

What attracted you to Personal Group?

| was atiractec to Personal Group due to it
being a strong purpose-griven tusiness that
prioritises people. With businesses now more
focused on their employees than ever befere,
the opporturity in the protection services
and empaloyee aenefits markets s huge Tnat
reauy attracted me to the role too. Everybody
| Mgt during the recruitment process was
genuinely passicnate about tne busingss,

How has Personal Group adapted to
meeting customer demand during the
COVID-19 pandemic?

Fo.lowing the national .ockdowns we've

seen people beceme mare concernea about
being land focused on therr martality
Peaople are subsequently seeking out the
protectior irsurance offerings that are
available Personal Group's combined offering
of wellbeing services and employee insurance
means we car help emnployers safeguard their
aroduct v ty with a ~esilient workforce

We've also seen tne pandemic drive a wa- on
talent, meaning emp.oyers can's simoly use
bas ¢ salary to atiract the nght employees.
You now need to be looking at what your
employee value propostion 1s ara how

you maximise that. All of these factors are
translat ng into more demand, and ultimately,
more new business.

What do you see as the biggest challenges
and the biggest opportunities facing the
UK workforce today?

There s still a:evel of uncertairty Lngering
fram the pandemic, forcing pesple to think
apout where they want "o be and how flexibly
they want towork This s contributing to the
significant challenge for employers to attract
and retain the right talent

Or the oaportunity side, the pandemic

has driven ¢-gital adaption. This has forcea
businesses to inngvate and cigicalise, creating
new gpportunities for employers and therr
workforce to take up software-based sUDpOrt
structures

What challengeis top of the list for
Personal Group's insurance business and
how are you tackling it?

Growth s obviously at the top of the agenda
and we are clear now we will achieve this
we must become mare multi-channelled, we
must serve new audiences, and to do this we
reed to mnovate Thisisalready underway,
and together with the growth in the market,
we have agreat opporturity available ta us.
I'm excited about our new routes to market
and the range of organisation s.zes anc
sectors we Can now serve

What makes Personal Group different to
other market players?

The quality and breadth of cur offering
Competitors In the employee denefizs space
can'toffer the same level of Insurances we
can, and canversely those we a"e competing
against in the INsurance space don't arovide ar
overly attract ve employee berefits offering
We can take a holistic view of what will help
an employee thrive and cater to the vast
majority of those needs.

Whaere will Personal Group go in

the future?

The marke: for employee benef ts and
wellbeing is .arge anc rapidly growing
Employers in all sectors see perefits package
and employee experience as key tools for
attracting, recruiting and reta:ning talent.

Qur affordaoie nsurance s meeting a
arke:need. According to In-depth research
by Mirte:, 65% of peopte without health
protectior would not be willing to oay mare
than £30 per month!

Cver time, | would ke to see Persona. Group
regardec as one of the top three players .1 the
market; cons.derec a household nrame that

15 front of mind for clients and emp.oyeeés.
Financ al growtn also remams a priority of
course, with acear goal to drve insurance
ircarme through rew and existing charnels

We have a orilliant opportun ty 1o capitause
on the nard yards we did through the
pardemic, to bullc a clear and successful
orand with our market-beating range of
aroducts and position ourselves as the
opvicus choice for clients,

1 Assessing InLerest ant A fordaolizy Amorg Nor-palicyho.ders, '"Amauns wiling o pay for healzninsurance oy non-nolicyhowders’, M nie Repor”, July 2020
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

WE MAINTAINED OUR STRONG

BALANCE SHEET THROUGH 2027

AND REMAIN WELL POSITIONED
FORFUTURE GROW TH.

Group revenue

Group revenue for the year of £74.5m (2020

£77 5m)reflects avariec nerfarmarce across tne
d'fferent bus ness areas and tne continued
contribuuen from recurring revenue streams.

As anucipated we saw a reguctior to ea ned
premium as a direct canseguence of 15 montns of
COV'D 19 wockdowns restricting our ability to carty
aut our traditional face-to face sell ng of
‘nsurance. Desp te i71s, as at 31 December 202T1we
continue to rave gver £24m of annualised
premiurmincome, the majonty of wnicn are
renewabie o1 weecly or monthly rolling contracts

Qussice of insurance, al( other aveas of the
Dustngss continued Lo grow. Digrtal p.atform
suBscription iIncome from our internally developec
benefits platform nereased oy over 40% year on
year, driver mair.y by our exoansion Mto the SME
sector through our partnershio with Sage Our pay
and reward subsidiary, Innecto, also put nastrong
pe-formance with the combinatior of consultancy
nco™e and digital subscriptionircome from their
proprietary R solus ons up Dy a third Annual
recurring reverue across aii the Group's digrtat
pratforms now stands at £3.6m Sales of
techrology and other procucts to employers as
partof their emeloyee benefit arovision through
the Group's subsidiary Let's Connect alsa
~ebourdec somewhat from the suppiy chain
1ssues faced in 2020 although these remamed in
parTcur ngits peak trading per od Iradait on,
incame fram voucher resate through the benefits
slatfarmcontinued to grow angwhilsi ths
precorwrantly represents pass-througr revenue,
it does continue to demonst-ate the value of the
prov SIen to our cl ents

2021 2020

Group resutts £'000 £'000

Revenue 74,513 M.524
Ad|usted EBITDA" é,us-& 10111 )

a;eranng profit 4,374 8,630

Profit before tax 4342 8,557
Tax (745) f ,663)"

lTr{;er for the year 3,597 - 6894

Adjusted EBITDA"

Acjusted EB TDA* for the year was £61m
(2020: 10 1m)

Tre key ariver of the dec.ne was the reduction in
premiurm Ircome and conseguential uncerwnrting
profit, which was compounded by the nereasec
cost of scaling up the field sales team back up
towards pre COVID-19 .evels inthe second naif
of tne year. Offsettirg this, we saw ncreasec
contr sutior from both our pay and ~ewarc

* Adiusted EBITDA 1S defined as earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation of intangible assets, goodwill
Impairment, share-based paymeant expanses, corporate
ACqUISICION costs amd restructurng costs

“As anticipated we saw a reduction
to premium income as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 but despite
this continue to have over £24m of

_annualised premium at the end of 2021"

SarahMace
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GROUP REVENUE

£74.5m

Jusiness and PG Let's Connect, inL.newith therr
ncreased revenue contributions. Quts.de of thus,
thereduction in adjusted E3ITDA also reflected
investment in both our sales and market-ng team
and the general infrastructure and pecple within
the business to ersure we are Ir the best olace
poss:le to suppert future growth.

we beteve adusted EB:TRA® remains the most
appropriate measure of perfarmarce for our

bus ness, reflecting the unaerlying araf tab L.ty of
the business and removing the impact of one-of f
items ansing from past acauisitions on the Group's
~gported profit before tax. The definition remains
unchanged from previcus years.

Profit before and after tax

Profit oefore tax for the year was £4.3m {2020
£8.6m). Trug reflects both the reductionin
acjusted EBITDA" and the increaseg amortisatian
charge arising from continued investment in (ne
Group's proaretary software. The tax charge for
the year was £0.7m (2020 £1.7m}, and prof t after
tax for the year £3.6m (2020 £6.8m).

ADJUSTED EBITDA

£6.1m

EPS

Resulting earnings pe+ share was 11.5p
{2C20 22 1p). The calculation is detailed n Nate 13,

Dividend

The Board has recommended a final orcinary
cividend of 9.3 pence per share, making a total
ordimary dividend for 2027 of 10.6 pence per share.
whilst th.s dividend reflects our reduced profits
for the yea” t does exceed recent pay-ou: ratios
anc reflects both the fact that the Group remains
strongly capital gengrative and the snort-term
impact of COVID-19 on 125 results

Balance sheet

Asat 31 December 202" the Groun's balance sheet
remamed strong, with casn and geposits of
£22 9m (2020: £20.2m) and no dept

The Group’s main underwrting subsidiary,
Persona; Assurarce Pic (PA), cortinues to ma ntan
aconservative solvency ratic of 357% (unaudited),
with & surplus aver «ts Solvency Capitat
rRequirement of £3.5m

EARNINGS PER SHARE

11.5p

The Comoany nas consistertly mamntained a prudent
pesitior inrelat:on to ts Solvency | requiremert
Persona: Assurance {Guernsey) Limited, the Group's
subsidiary whichunderwrites the death benefit
pol.cy, also maintaired a healthy solvency ratio of
220% {unaudited}, under tsownregme.

No impairment was deemed necessary far the
goodwil balances held inrespect of the acquisitions
of Let'sConnect and Innecto as deta led in Note 14

201 2020
Profit before tax £000 £'000
Profit before tax 4,342 8,557
Finance costs - 32 73
Depreciation o 966 1,003
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 205 205
Amertisation (other) 300 265
Share-based pay;w:nt expense o i - 169 8
Adjusted EBITDA* 6,094 1am

Alternative performance
measure

Adjusted EBITDA, which is referencec
thraughout th s document, 1§ n
a.rernatve inon-Generally Accepted
Accourt ng Practice (ron-GAAD) financial
measure used by the Group when
rev-ewing performance, evidenced by
exgcutive management bonus
perfermance targets Assuch, this
measure S Important and snoulc be
cons.cered awongside the IFRS measures

Adjusted EBITDA takes into account
adjustments, nagditien Lo the stangard
IFRS measure, which are considered to be
non-underying Lo trading activities ard
whicharesignificantin size. For examp.e,
goocwillimpairment i1s a non-cash tem
reevant to historic accuisitions, snare-
Dasec payment expenses are a non-casn
itert wh-¢n have histor.cally beer
significant in size but can fluctuate dased
onjudgmental assumplions made about
share price and have ng impact on total
eguity, corporate acquisit:on €osts anc
reorganisation costs are botn one- off
Items which are not ncurred Ir the regu.ar
course of busiress
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S STATEMENT o™t o=z

THE RECURRING REVENUE FROM
SAAS SUBSCRIPTIONS CONTINUED
TOSHOW YEAR-ON-YEAR
GROWTH ACROSS THE GROUR.

Segmental results

Ta reflect how our business nas evolved, and [Mat \n many cases our clients Ut se our sery ces acrass multole pusiress a-eas, we have changed the way we
present our segmental fesuits We are now reporting faur core segmenrts as detalled in the table below

=ar each of the segments, the adjusted EBITDAY contr sution compnses the gross profit of tnat segment together with any costs associated directly with the
operatior: of that segrment. in add.mign, sales and marketing costs ang other central costs that are not airectly atiroutable to @ segment, suchas Finance, HR,
cepreciation, amortisatior and Group Board expenses are no longe- allocated to a segment ut are snown sepa“ately as 'Group Acmin & Centra. Costs' '

We believe the qevw bresental-on provices greate~ [-ansparency to enaste the impact of top ('ne growth on adusted E31TOA contribution for each area of the
bus.ness to be understood.

Segment Description Income Streams
Pay & Reward Provision of a full reward service to employers through the Group's  Consultancy, digital platform subscriptions
pay and reward subsidiary, Innecto
Benefits Platform Provision of a benefits platform tc emplayers both directly and Digital platform subscripticns, commussions from third party

through channel partners, currently Sage for gur SME solution benefits which sit on the piatform

A directly owned benefit, provision of simple insurance products Premium income

underwritten by Group subsidiaries

Atfordable Insurance

Qther directly owned benefits. sale of technology and cther
products to employers as part of their employee benefit pravision
through the Group's subsidiary, Let's Conpect

Other Owned Benefits Retail sales directly to employers, commission received fromthe

introduction of third party finance

Dec-21 Dec-20 Dec-21 Dec-20

Revenue £'000's E'000's Adj EBITDA Contribution £'000's £'000's

Fay and Reward 1,236 875 _Pay & Reward 303 (255)

Benefits Platform ) - 3,303 72.354 Benefits Platform 2,098 2,092
Affordable Insurance 24,870 28.830 Afforcable Insurance 1,012 15,082
mm;ﬁ 18,214 16,420 Cther Owned Benefits 730 469 :
other T a0 3w Group Admin & Central Costs {8,228) (a_ézg

Revenue pre voucher sales 47,661 45.7897 Other 179 (312) '
Voucher resale 26,852 22,735_ Total Adj ESITDA 6,094 10117

Total Revenue 74,513 71,524
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Pay & Reward: Innecto

‘nnecto, the Group's pay and reward supsidiary,
putin a strong perfarmance in 2021, with .ts
consultancy 'ngome up 50% on 2020 as gemard
fromHRIs lackirg toretain and attract their
emmoyees reignited Digital subscription Income
fromits oroprietary HR sowtions also 'nereased by
33% on the previous year. Anrualsed Recurning
Revenue on these productsstood at £0.4mas at
31 December 2021and 1s set toincrease with the
introcduction of a furt~er proguct, Advance, in
January 2022,

Benefits platform

Revernue from digizal platform subscriptions and
comrssions from third party benefit supoliers
which it on the benefiis platformrose to £3 3m
In 202142020 £2.4m)

whilst subscriptions for our enterprise platform,
Hapi, remained re:atively static in 2021, the
ntroduction of Hapiflex provides an opportunity
to both target a new market sector and to yield
nigher margins from a mere sophisticated and
complex product.

The ma-n driver of the growth -n revenue in this
area of the business was the expansioninto the
SME market with Sage Employee Benefits, the
Group's SME proposition being tagen to market
through its partner Sage, and this 1s set ta
cont'nue with the signing of a new five-year
contract ir February 2022,

As at 31 Decemper 2027 the Annualised Recurring
Revenue from cigital platform subscriptions
across all channeis stood at £31m,

Desoite increasec revenue Adjustec EBITDA
contriputior remained flat year on yearat L21m,
reflecting Investment made in the infrastructure
to suppart the platform, outside of captal.sed
nvestment, for future growtn,

Strategic Report

Governance

Insurance

As anticipated, premiurm ircorme from the Group's
care insurance susiness in 2027 reduced by £4.1m
to £24 7m (2020 £28.8m)

This reflectec the fact that the lockdowns
enforced on us by COVID-19 had a d."ect ‘\mpact en
our ability to write new Insurance sales through
our traditioral face-to-face maaei for 15months
from the end of March 2020 Whilst we were able
to rmitigate this in part through our adoption of
virtual visits and telesales, our annualised new
business insurance premiums 0 2027 were £3.7m
{2020: £2.4m, 2079; £9.0m), with aroung "5% of this
coming from the new, alternat ve channels Cur
face-to-face sales actuvity recommenced in
earnestin July 2021, with availability strorg across
curincreasec employee base, and have
subsequently seen the insurance book starting to
rebuild As at 31 December 2021 we have in excess
of £24m of annnualised premium ncome
renewable or weekly or monthly rol.ng contracts

Qur retenuion rates for existing polcyholders
remained strong durng 2021 wth poth fisst year
and year-on-year retention rates up on pre
pandemic levels, This reinforces the value that
oolicyholders place on our simale, low-cost
ngsptal, convalescerce and ceath benef it plans,
that have been particular.y relevant to our
poucynolder base of essertialand key worxers
during the pandemic.

Notwithstanding the short-term mpact of
COVID-"9, the Group's .nsuUrance NCome remains a
high guality and relatively stable revenue stream
tathe Goup.

Claims ratios for the year remained stable at 24 5%
{2020: 24 4%). The 'ncreased Loss ratio on death
benefit continued into 2027 but, as :n 2020, was
mitigated oy ar offsettirg "eduction for nosp ta.
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and convalescence in comparison to historic
averages, reflective of tne capacity of the NHS
being urmitec as a result of COvVID 19

Adjusted EBiTDA contribution of £11 0m for the
year (2020 £1571m), reflects both the reguction in
underwriting profit and the additional costs
associated witn the scaling back up of the
face-to-face sales team in the second hatf of the
year towards pre-pandemic levels.

Other owned benefits: Let's
Connect

Let’s Connect, which provides technoiogy and
other products to employers as part of their
employee benef L provision, saw revenues
increase to £18.2m (2020: £16.4m), redounding In
part from the supply chain 1ssues they experienced
In 2020 put also benefitting from the return of a
number of schemes which had deferred in 2020
due to the pandernic.

Whilst some orgaing nationwide supply 1ssues
remained throughout the year, broadening the
product range hetped mitigate the 'mpactand saw
order numbers up 21% on pre-pandemic levels,
demonstrating tne continued poaulanty of the
oenef t for employees

Acgjusted EBITDA contribution increased to £0.7m
(2020: £0.5m) reflecting the tigher revenues
together with a slight increase in gross margir.

Group administration expenses
and central costs

Ihe:ncrease N Group administ-atign and central
Costs T K8 2m {2020 £70m) predominantly
reflects the additional investment mace Ir Sales
and Marketing dunng the year

Sarah Mace
Chief Finrarcial Gfficer
28 March 2022
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RISK MANAGEMENT

THE BOARD RECOGNISES THAT THE EFFECTIVE MANAGEMENT
OF RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES IS CENTRAL TO OUR CULTURE
AND DECISION MAKING AND KEY TO ACHIEVING THE GROUP'S
STRATECIC OBJECTIVES.

Itis important that there is a strong risk
management cutture embedded throughout

the Group. We focus on ethical behaviours, the
fair treatment of colleagues and of customars.

We continue to identify, assess, manage and
appropriately mitigate the key risks to the
Group inachieving its objectives.

The Board 1s respons ble for dent fying the risks
Lo 1ts strateg.c objectives and far setting the
overalrsk appetite and tolerance levels The
Board delegates gversignt of risk maragement
to the Riscand Compliance Commitiee The
effectiveress of the r sk management system
may also 2e “dependently assessed by the
Internal Audit Funczion.

The -isk environment s maraged in a Lwa-prongec
approach: top-dawr risks that threater the
strategic plan and pottam uo financial,
operanional, regulatory and nor-insurance risks
which araidentif ed yeitin business areas.

Risk Management Three Lines of Defence

Therisks are captured on ar sk register where the
inherenz risk 1s ident-f-ed, ard the residual =5¢
rated after identifying ooerauona. controisanc
mMitigat ng actions

Resaons bility to maimtan the register as well as to
implement and manitor Mitigat.ng actions sts
with each mempéar of the Senior Leadersnip Team,
Each month a Risk Forum is held wnere the Senior
Leadersnip Tearm giscuss the key risks, botr cu-rent
and eme-girg Vit gatirg activiiies and time.nes
forimpiemenrtat.on are agreed 5o that tne Groud
canconbinue 1o ach gve its strateg.c object.ves.

The risks facing the busiress are discussed at each
Board meeting and n greater detallat the
guarterly Risk and Compliance Committee
meeting The 3oard s satisfied that, through the
processes set out asove, it can effectively ident fy,
assess and marage current ard emerging ris<s

Risk governance

naccardance with ‘ecognised good practice, tne
Group coerates a 'three Lires of defence’ approach
which gefines accountability for risk managemens
w.thin roles. The Group's ris< governance Is
overseen by a Risk function neaced by the Head of
R'sk, with independerce assured through direct
anc separateaccess (o the Char of tre Askand
Compliance Committee

Tne Group's fisk maragement framework and Owr
Ris< ar¢ Sowvency Assessment [ORSA) processes
are proportignate to the risks that the Group
faces

Tne R skstrateqy, appetite and framewaor < are set
outir asuite of policies covering the material risks
which ex stintre business, =ach poLCy 15 subyect
toarnual review and approval

- Identify, assess and manage the risk
on a daily basis.

Develop and implement policies and
procedures,

- Ownership of business practices.

Ensure activities are consistent with
objectives.

Implement controls.

'

Risk identification.

i

Developing and oversight of the risk
management framework.

'

Risk reporting to Risk Forum, Risk
and Compliance Committee and te
the Board.

Providing guidance to the first Line of
defence.

'

‘

Assurance of the effectiveness of
policies and procedures.

- Independent assurance of the
effectiveness of the first and second
lines of defence.

- Independent reporting to the Board and
to the Audit Committee.

- Advisary rote.
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Below follows a desgription of the key enterprise - sks the Groun has managec in 2621

Key risks
[with animpact of
E500Kk+within the
nextyear)

Current and emerging

Mitigating activities

Changein risk

Costs and lasses
Caronavirus
{COVID-19}

The ciaims ratios of the Group's Hospital, Convalescence and
Death Benefit plans are allimpacted by the pandemic
situation, The engoing impact will be dependent onthe
continued success of the Government’s vaccination
programme, the circutation of the current and new strains of
the virus, and infectfon rates. Looking forward to when the
NHS recammences its schedule of routine treatments, itis
possible that there will be an influx of claimsin relation to
those routine treatments.

In additien, there is animpact on the Group's ability to
undertake face-to-faceinsurance sales as weil as an impact
onthe PG Let’s Connect and Innecto businesses.

Both our insurance subsidiaries hold significant surpluses above thelr
capital resource requirements and scenario and stress testing has been
carried out to assess the likely financial impact on the Group.

Strong operational resilience enables the Group to maintain services
and support to its customers and policyholders.

Alternative routes for sale of insurance products have been launched
and new partnerships are being developed.

The long-term impact of COVID-19 is uncertain however we know
people are more aware of the importance of good physical and mental
health. We continue to offer free access 24/7 to a digital GP service.

v

Decreased
in 2021

Inability to
undertake/
maximise
workplace
marketing and
selling

New sales opportunities cannot be fully realised as the
traditional face-to-face method of selling is challenging
or no longer available,

New sales opportunities cannot de fully realised as on-site
access is restricted or prohibited by law or by the client,

The risk associated to both points above persists due ta the

A new digital sales channel has been intreduced to a key client and
s expected to be offered more widely during 2022,

The retention of existing clients and customers has been a focal point.
Insureds who are leaving their employment have the facility to retain
their covers.

New opportunities to work with introducers are being sought, to run

ongeing implications of COVID-19 and the s quent
changes in working practices.

lengside the arrangements already in existence.

<>

No change

Threats to
information and
to physical
security
arrangements

Poar, weak or outdated technology systems and
arrangements lead to disruptive cyber attacks, ransomware,
security breaches and/or fines, or restrict business
inhovation.

Home working and hybrid working by ail staff have increased
the potential threat to information security,

Data processing protocals facTlitate homewarking.

iT systems are regutarly tested for security from attack. The systems
are backed up regularty and hosted on third-party datacentres,
Disaster racavery plans are in place and tested annually. 189 27001
accreditation is held.

Awareness training and testing of staff has beenincreased and adapted
to reflect the current environment.

A number of internal and external audits have been completed in 2521
in light of the increasing threat of a cyber attack. The threat s
ingreasing wortdwide and is not specific to the Group.

<

No change

Recruit, train and
retain staff

The strategle plan te double the premium income from
insurance policies Is dependent on increasing the size of the
face-to-face sales force, Resourcing is challenging across at!
functions/roles in what is currently a candidate led
environment, which has resuited in arapid increase in salary
expectations of external hires, In turn this creates issues due
to internal pyudgets and comparaters.

‘We have particularly seen this with Tech roles where there is
a candidate shortage across the UK; which again drives
expectations much higher than the norm alongside more
recruiter approaches being made directly to our staff
offering enhanced packages, creating a high risk of attrition.

Introductlon of a Strategic Workforce Planning (SWP) approachin late
2021 mapping our people strategy ta our business strategy. We aim to
optimise the current workforce together with a clear view of the skills
and capability needs for now and future to deliver our strategic
objectives in the most efficient way possible.

This wili be the driver for identification and delivery of a Talent
Development Strategy which ensures that we have the right people at
the right titne at the right cost for our businegss and at the same time a
focus on retention and giving managers the tools te have meaningful
conversations with their people to avoid a vacancy unnecessarily
arising.

The Group has reviewed our recruitment and assessment tools, We arg
educating hiring managers on best practice recruitment technigues,
alongside a review of rewards and incentives for our sales force
supparted by pay benchmarking, and praviding more colleague
engagement tools such as hybrid and flexible working epportunities.

A\

Increased in
2021

Rising inflation

With censumer prices rising at 2 fast rate there is an
increasing risk of high inflation in the market place which
may have an impact on the Group through increased supply
chain costs and disruption to customers and clients through
appropriate price Increases.

The Group undertakes reqular reviewsof external threats such as
inflation and should the need arise has the ability to adjust prices
across all business sectors ta deal with increases in Inflation.

This will, inallinstances, be dene in conjunction with a review of
customer fairness to ensure that na stakeholder is disproportionately
affected.

~

Increased in
2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIALAND GOVERNANCE

A purpose-led Group

As g Group griven by a passion and
commitment to \mproving people’s nealth ard
wellbeing, 5615 af the core of our business
Qur purpose s to 2rotect the Unprofected anc
Cornect the Uncornected, We exist n order (o
createa positve IMpact or soclety

Ensurirg there s anaffordab.e, straignt-
farwarg way far all U workers ta gam
access to nealth msurance.

- Helping orgamsations provide far and
aporopr até remuneratior and oenef ts to
therr workforces.

- Supparuing the hol'st ¢ wellbe ng of pecple
e UK - bath at wore and at home

The progress that we make against our ESG
goals s therefore very mporranttous anda
prionty at Board level,

Wea price oursetves o doing thenight toung, a
value that s shared througnou’ ourert e

Qrgansatian Just as kb s drves our gay-to-day

wore, U1s also reflected ir bow we aperate as
abusiress atal’ levels

Progress in last 12 manths

Qur commitment 1¢ DeIrg g responsible

ous ness Is frort of mind and the Board 1s
committed Lo ContNUINg 20 mace Jrogress o1
ihe goas formalisec r 2020 So™e of the
RIGh.gnTs a7e outlined Se.ow

Ove- tne past year we have made progress
decreasing our catper fgotpring oy imstalling
SCiar 24rels at our reacquarters whic™ wil.
Pelp contribute towad cur "oase .avel”

energy regJirements In 2027, since
instalatizn, 5.7 Mwh of engrgy was
gerestred wo chweuld power
Td-prmes for ayear cne 8quites 20
planting 77 trees

b was the first year we had a Nomination
Committee, and therr efforts tegether with
rnat of gur diversity and Inclusior working
greup have led te gender and ethncity
representat on targets at all levels of the
orgarisaien

Emp.oyee weilbaing remars a focus forus
arc we have conninued to invest signif cartly
In training and developrient, as well as

ooy ding sest-ir-class employee benedits,
whilstintroducirg hybrid work poucies n
order t¢ create a flexible and collaborative
WOrk ng anvironment.

The Board recogn ses the Importance 6°
Cortriaut 1g 1o the wider society and across
2C27. the Compary has continuad to suppart
@ur partrer ¢nantes - PACT and The Memusi
Foundation - w 1 both financ.al donat.ons
and T'me vo.Jntaered

Next steps

we have ide tfied a number ot arcitinds ESG
targels tnal we are work ng towarcs Weara
committed 1o POICIFG G U7SEIVES dCCouniabie
and wel prowvide measda-erents of 7 ogress
aQ3 rst oJ- stated targets annuatly

ESG GOVERNANCE

Ownership of ESG matters

Under the leadershio of gu” Board, 20271 has seen
us buldirg ona clear, bol SLIC VIS onwhen &
comaes to our ESG responsibilities and progress

Tire Comipany's £5G stratagy s overseen by
Nor-Executive Oirector Mara Darby-Walker.
Maria, together weth the suppart of the wider
Board, 1s responsible for developing appropriate
po.CIes ard practices 1o ensure that we
continue to work towards our targets

Thisresparsibility 1s reflecied in tne fact tnat
orogression against these targets are Linkea
to Senior Executive and Boa e compensation,
with 15% of the 2021 Long Termiincentive 2lan
Awerds being subject to the attanment of
ESG targets.

Read more aboul Board engagemert - page 48

wewil, also be max 7q all ESG information
and goals access-ole fromour corograte
webs.te ndue caurse te aid accessibility. we
arg currently defining which UN Sustaimanie
Gevewcoment Goais qur strategy 's Linked to
anc that we wil. focus or going forwarc; these
will be arnpunced ir the 2022 Anrual Repors

Ourstrategy to de.ver lorg-term growin
2.grsc.osely w th gur ESG Opjectives and tne
Co™Dary s excited about t7e potent.a. of our
©ongoing programmes to dr ve meanirgful
change over tne ~eciu™ anc arger term.

Trrougn collaborat.on w tn ts aeop.eand
exzernal stasehclters, tne Company nas
wertf ec core foguses uncer its £5G strateqy
which sturder ‘Env rarmerta,, 'Social arc
‘Governance' p.ars, usted or pages 40-43
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OURESG GOALS AND TARGETS

ENVIRONMENTAL

Although the environmental footprint of our
business is relatively small compared to others,
reducing our impact on the environment remains
akey focus. We invested in renewable energy to
pawer the building {via solar panelstand have
started toincorporate more lower emission
options for the fleet we operate. For critical and
significant partners we use environmental
criteriain our selection process and our
environmental activities are independently
reviewed by Avieco.

S50CIAL

QOur purpose 1s helping to Protect the
unprotected and this 1s something that
expands outside of cur day-to-day waork, we
are focused on investing in our pecple and
providing the support they need bothinside
and outside of werk. Gur offering is designed
for lower income categories and to create
meaningful positive secial impact. The business
has supported vulnerable people within cur
tocal community and beyond for many years
now, and helping others, not Just financially but
by dedicating time, 15 something we take great
prige n

GOVERNANCE

As aregulated business we take governance very
seriously. Ensuring we reflect the communities
that we serve and having equal gender and
ethnic representation at different levels of the
business are key metrics for the Board.

GOAL

Improvement on reducing carbon footprnint and
energy efficiency by using electricity from
renewable sources and managing fleet usage
effectively.

GOAL

To ensure that our busmess has a positive social
impact on the commumities where we trade
and that Personal Group s an employer that
strives to of fer opportumity to people ofall
backgrounds.

GOAL

Continue to ensure and reassure our stakeholders
that our governance Is robust and compliant with
allregulatory and legal frameworks.

TARGETS
- Reduce Head Office 2019 carbon emissions
by three tonnes per annum,

- Reduce 2019 fleet CO, usage Dy 25% over
three years.

- work towards becoming net carbon neutral
by 2031.

- Nowaste production target as negligibie.

Work en environmental policy for suppliers
and partners 1s ongoing.

TARGETS

- Pledge at least 1% of EBITDA with annual
minimum of £100% to PACT (Personal
Assurance Charitable Trust) per year which
will increase funding with profitability.

- Maintaining our lgng-term pledge to our
sChool project in Kenya {(Memusi} and to
ncrease the time-sharing given back to our
local community through volunteering and
community action.

- Continue working towards egqual gender

representation at each level in the

erganisation, maintaining the split at senior
level and improving 1n more jJunior reles.

Toreflect the ethmc mix of the communities

In which we are based, improving cur

outreach, ensuring our recruitment/talent

management approach rs inclusive and
accessible.

TARGETS

Maintain current egual representation of
independent Birectors versus non-
independent Directors.

- Maintain equal representation of men and
women on the Board - sector average 15 19%.
To meet blended ethnicity representation
target of 20% (taking nto account the
different locations we traden).

Keep CEO pay as a muttiple of Personal
Group median in Line with market.

PROGRESS IN 2021

- Sotar panels installed and producing
renewable energy

- TheGroupis reviewing the fleet of cars
currently inuse with a view to transitioning
to more envircnmentally friendly cars in
2022 as the current leases expire.

PROGRESS IN 2021

- Diversity & Inclusion Woerking Group.

- The Group continues to develop its employee
proposition, ensuring that its benefits remain
competitive and that we remain an employer
of choice

PACT donation made n iIng with target

- Flexibles/hybrid warking for emptoyees
Nomination Committes

PROGRESS IN 2021

Policy regarding the gender diversity of the
Board.

The Group has made progress inits target to
reflect the local environmentrepresentation inits
workforce.

The Group has become one of only four AiM-listed
companies with both a female CEQ and CFQ.
Through our Accelerated Development
Programme the Group is developing a talent
pipeline for diverse future leaders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ot

ENVIRONMENTAL

PERSONAL GROUP'S SECR STATEMENT

The Sireamurec Snergy and Carbon Reporiing
(S=CR] regulat ons, enacted In 2078, are
designed 1o rorease awareness of erergy costs
within organisat ons, provide them w.th data o
rfarmadoptiar of erergy eff Cency megsurgs
ard to help them to reduce the rimpact or
climate change They also seek Lo orovide
greater t-ansparency for stakenolders.

Dersonal Groun recognises tnat our operanons
have an emwvircnmental Impact and we are
committed to mer tonng and reduc ng cur
EMISSIONS Year-or-year We are aware of our
reporting obl gatiors urger The Companies
\Drrectors’ Repart)anc L mited L ability
Partrerships (Energy and Carpor Repart)
Regulations 2018,

We have continued tne ~eport ng under SECR
for tna yea to meet these new requirements
and Increase the transparency with which we
communicate about our environmentat impact
to our stakenolders

2021 performance

Our carben footprint for tne 2021 reporting
yearhas been calcu.atec based on our
evwrronmental Impact across scopel, 2and 3
|selected categoriasf emiss On sources for the
UK grly Our emissigns are presented o both a
\ocaton and marke: basis O a10caton basis
Ouremissions are 3871 1CO e, waichisan
avarage impact of 2.6 tCO e per emplayee (25
tCO e per employee forscope 1and scope 2
emuss ans anly), and an a market pasis our
emissions are 380 (CO.e We nave ca.culated
erussionintensizy mets €5 QN an empLoyee
Dasis, WhiCh we w L menitor to track
performance .n gur subseaquent environmeantal
disclosures.

As the business has begun LG return to normal
trading fallowirg the locedowns resulting from
the COVID-12 panderic there has beena
consideraple acrease n scope 1S3%) achivities,
Scope 2, however, has showr 3 centinued
reduction (23%] as ce-rain of fices wit e the

Emissions and energy usage

Table 1- Energy and carbon d-sclosures for reporung year Allunits 1CC g unigss OTharwise statec

Emissions source 2021 2020 Variance

cconen Matural gas 12 128 12%)

Carm@any and .eased cars 212 24 152%

E cone T 324 212 53%
;ope 2 city T T e (23{
“ota: Scope 2 T 49 67* 123%)
tr oty TAD F T_—__\a?g

3 0%

7 r* {22%)
Total Marke: Bazed: 380 ;mﬁg%_

7Toial Locat o~ 2ased) T o 381 T 282 34%

ot Erergy Jsage 1,702,505 1,347,526 27%
T icoeperte 28 18 v

Group have noipeer utilisec or are beirg utilisec
less cue to the ntroductionof wyond work ng
across the Croun A furtner reduction has been
seer due tg tne .prrecuct'on of the solar panels
on the roof the Groua's heac offcen June 2027

Energy and carbon action

Asnoted oreviousty, Personal Group irstailed a
~nof-mounted solar PV system orto the Jonn
Orrmong House site in Milton Keynes Ths aroect
was comoleted in 2021 Thase panels were
implemented o -educe relance or gnd
electr.city and provide a scurce of 'Cvw canon
energy for the Greuo

The antirety of the Group’s fleet 1s up Tor renewa,
I 2022/23 arc sg a reviewe of what vah.cles will
oe allowed for those wno need them s unaerway
at the t me of wr ting Tae Group, unforturately,
does not beleve that exectac cars are an cption
at this stage for tssales teamdue to the lack of 3
natiorwide infrastruciure However asa
mMIMmuM, constrants 01 the CO emissions of al,
vehicles leased are Seng meluded 1IN the ded sion

2021 results

The methodology used to calcylate the GHG
€Mi55 0N5 15 M ACCOrdarce with the requirerients
af the fol.cwing stancands

werld Resources Insritute 'WRI Greanncise Gas
IGHG) Preteccl irevised versiony.

DEFRA's Cnvirormental Report.ng Guidelines.
inciuding Streari ned Engrgy and Carpon
Reporung recuiremerts March 2079,

UK office emissions bave been calculated usirg
“he DEFRA 2079, DEFRA 2020 155ue of Tne
conversion f2ctor renository

Fo.cwing ar operatioral control aparoacn
*odefining ous organsatioral ooundary.

our ca.culated GHG emiss.ons from ousiness
actvities fallwe th nthe "eport ng peniod of
Jannary 2021%¢ Daceriber 2007 ard using
repont ng per od cf ygnuary 2020 o December
2023 for companson
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PEOPLE

Culture and values

Tha Group's calture s set from the top of
the organmisation and as suth the Board
sromotes a culture based arpund four
values Sold Engaging, Driven, and
Expert Thesevalues “0rm acore part of
now Ehe business s mandaged, fom
recruitment ta traiming, and orqoing
revard ang recogmtion

Cur employees are at the heart of our
husiness and the Group's diggest asser
We carry out ar emrployee satisfact on
survey annually and feed the resu ts back
to the Boarc Despite tnemplications of
lockdown and remate wWorking, sur
emOoyae angagement scare was 72%

Cperating ethically 1S S0 very important
tous and we have In place poucies
including Treatng Customers Fairly,
whistleblowing and Ant -Br bery we alsa
have a Modern Slavery poucy which
cowvers our policy on humanrights, child
labour ane forced abour

'n 2027we made no political dorations

Wellbeing

The Group 5 core purpose 1s ta suppo-t
workforze wellbeing and ergagement,
ard our offerings toucn more than a
million LK employees

We are 4.50 focused oninvestingin and
Improving the wellbeing and cverall
satisfaction of our own workforce both
at and cutside of waork, ncluding having
conducted a thorgugn review of rewards
and henefits offered to amployees in
2027 Personal Group employee
engagement and wallbeirg » delivered
througn our indusTry leading platform,
Hapi and oLr cont nued high employes
engagerment scores reflect aur
committed and pass.orate team

Post-paried end the Groun appontec the
Hon Colonel Bame Kelly Holmes MBE
umil) as Chief welloeing Ambassador In
this role Dame Kelly wilt be helping to
guide Personal Group's wel.peing
strategy, to ensure that our offering
remains as meaningful, relevant and
impactful asitcan be

Employees nave aCCess TC a 3road rarge
of bast-in-c.ass benefits including
arivate medical and Travel INsurance,
access teanonling GP, ontions te buy and
sellnoliday aliowarces, deathin service,
lorg seryice rewards, access to an
Employee Assistarce Programme ard
diszountea gym memeerships

The Group pays all staft above tnelving
wage and delivers a programme of
culturally relevart wel.being imt.atives
Alongside flexibla working hours we have
a hyhnd workirg nolicy it place we also
have an employae healthand atety
team, as wel: as rraining for al: execut ves
onneatthardsafaty

Learning and development

Cur Chief Pecple Qficer oversees
learring and develcpmenTamongst staff,
Wwith the Group maonitorng the averags
traiming hours per emplovee ta ansure
that all employees hava easy 4CCess 1o
enkance therriearning

Despite disrLption fram the pdndemic, n
2021 Group employees complezad
approximately 6,868 traning hours This
15 3 vary positive increase o* 283% frorm
2020

The ncreaseintrainirg hours was heped
by anvcrease of “ace-to-face del very or
longer virtua. sessions, a5 0oposed o ail
virtual orjust e -learning coLrses it 2020

Wwe bave policies In prace airned to
Improve the career development paths ot
emaloyees or toimprove ther skills The
devetcpment and promotion of internal
canaidates s always encouraged as
aporopriate

During 2021 the Group began s first ever
Accelerated Learning Programmea weth
the am of upskilling and developing staff
N more jurior ‘eles i order to support
their career grawth

Diversity and inclusion

Civersity, EQuity and Irclusior has been
identified as ar intagral pa~tof e
Group’s chjective of provicing a
welcoming and inclusive working
environment wrere people are engaged,
recognised and rewaraed The Board
strives forequal ty of apportunity faral
and for the Graup toreflect the dwverse
COMMUMITIES Lhat we serve NOEonty 1S
this the rght thing 1o 40, but diverse,
nclusive teams, we beligve, are higher
performing and better for gur growth

A5 such the Board has out a nurrber of
inmflatives inplace to ensure the Graup's
desirec culture s erbancec Trase
inclucte

- A Diversity and Inclusion working graup,
toersure tnat as an oganisation, we
cantinue to celebrate and suoport
nclusivity ard diversity within our
workforce

- A Normination Committeg, responsible
for reviewing the structare, size anc
compasiticr pncluding the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity)
of the Board and mak ng
recommendations to the Board with
regarad Lo ary changes

- Apol oy regarding the gender diversity
of the aoard aming 1o keep the gender
balance neutral

Group employee breakdown
by gender as at 31 December 2021

Male Female
Directors 4 3
Managers 27 35
Employees 74 é;

045 128
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SOCIAL

Supporting our community

PACT

Persona: Assurance Charty T-ust(PACT) has conatec arounc
£2mtocharitable causes since Twas founded in 1993 The
Group nas historcally conated approx K100k to PACT per year,
which s then aliocated ir a3 numaer of ways Since 2020, the
Trust has refacused to ersure TMe maoney benng donated was
being used effectively This saw the Commitiee move from
being simply fundraisers to become partners of .ocal char.ries
we now work with, and auocate funas to, specfic orgjects
withir many ccal cnar ties with a view to cortinue
involvement beyond pure firancial support Key local orojects
around the ™ lton Keynes head office for 2021 nc.ucec

- MKWinter Night Shelter L"6kcreating the 2ersanai Group
tife Skills Brag-amme wh.ch enables ufe s« s Traming {such
as Zas C 1 Sk s, irterview praparedress, mardg rg @
nousenold buaget, cookirg; and empoyment traning
{zansta, adrm nec] for guests of Lne sheller who have ust
gained accommodaton, beaten an addict on or have the
chance "o work with one of our emoigyment partners to
reach the - full potentiaianc stand a oetter chance of
sucteecing when tney move or from nomeiessness.

MK Community Foundation - £10k creatirg the Pessonal
Group Char table Trust “urd aimed at cornecting
commur tes through tecrology, cecreas ng cig.ral
SOverly anrd mproving aCCessto C IeChnology.

The Memusi Foundation

Since 2075, Persoral Group has suppo-ted the Memusi Foundation

- & char ty that warks to provide chiidran in €onya w th 2ccoss [
qual'ty education, prov-aing a safe place for children to wearn arg qivirg
SUPPOTL to the surrouNding Community. We pledged that over adecade
we would provide £0 5m to puild and develop a rew schoal, krown as
Memus. B

2021 saw

- After eight monrths away from schoo. due to tne pandemic, the
stugents returned to the Ciass eoms.

- Tnecommunity cont'nyea to suffer from tne sk of starvation
followirg the after-effects of COVID

- After agap of 18 months due to the rest¢Lions In place, «etters and
pICTUres were sent ang received from the sponsgred Children 3%
Memus .

- Afurthe-ad-hoc payment of £2,473 was miade in Aprit 2021 for the
Smart Ad mitiat've which provides food to tne community

- Apaymentof £25,000 (ir{ eu of carcelled volunteer ng trnips; was
mace 10 Memusi.n Navember wnigh wil, be used ¢ ound dormitor es
onineMemusi B site These we. supgort 36 girls, prav ding trem
with asafe base so that they do raterd up naving 1o Crop Qut of
school due to therr ner ods, “GM or chilc ma-rage

- Severalgnlire fund-a sers arranged to adapt ta COVID restrct ons.
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GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE IS CENTRAL TO OUR ETHOS OF
OPERATING WITH INTEGRITY.

GOVERNANCE

The Board recognises the important role a rooust
corporate governance framework plays n the
successful delivery of our long -term strategy and
nas adopted the QCA Cornorate Governance Code
which we cortinue to monitor our performance
against n. e wth eachof the 70 princples.

{see page 47}

Tre Chairman and the Board 1s ullmatety
responsible for establshing the Group's
governancestructure the effect venessof
Irterna, controls, risk management, and the
d-rection of the Groun in accordance with our
purpose and values o he:p deliver our strategy.

Board composition

The composition of our Board s carefully selected
to ensure a civerse ard vared set of skills,
cultures, experiences and knowledge to promote
success w thin the business

we have targe:s to which we are working towards
toensure that our Board 1s diverse and inclusive To
support this, we have a policy in place regarcing
the gender aiversity of the Board and currently
have 14% of Boarc members and Senior Executives
with a cultural ackground different from the
loecation of the carporate headquarters

we also strive to have egual representation of
batr executive and non-executive Board members
to allow for fair, varieg and ingependent opiren
3oare members e elected with a majority vote
and have the authority to hire external acwisers or
consultants without management's approval.

202" saw the mauguration of our Nomination
Commuttee, resoonsibte for reviewing the
structure, size anc compoesition (‘nciuding the
skils, knowledge, experience ard diversity) of the
Board ang making recommendations to the Board

with regard to any changes The Nominations
Committee Report on page 57 cortains more
detailed information on the Committee’s activity
during the year

Board compensation

The Board's compensation -s determinec Dy our
Remuneration Committee, chaired by Nor-
Executive Directar Maria Darby-Walker Our
sharehg:ders have the right to vote or execulive
comaoensaticn.

For mere informazion or how the Remuneration
Committee sets appropriate compensatior, see
pages 60-63.

POLICIES

The following pol.ces are currently implemented
by the Group

Modern slavery

Tne Mocern Slavery Act {2075} requires a
commergial organisation over a certain s.ze ta
publisn a slavery and human t-aff'cking statement
for each financial year. This statementcan be
founc on our webs te personagroup.com and s
made avalable to our entire warkforce. As a
DUsINess we are committed to eradicat ng human
trafficking and slavery and ersure a zers tolerance
pol ¢y :nre.ation toour drrect and ind rect
operations and across our supply chain. Qur poucy
also extends to our wider Personal Group
community and partners. ACross the reporting
period there have been no Instances that do not
compuy with the Modern Swavery Act

Whistleblowing

We have a whistleblowing palicy in place, which
complies with loca. regulatory requ rements and 1s
des.gned to protect those who report wrongdoirg
in the workplace. Details of the pol-cy are
communicated to all workforce members.

Bob Head, ndependent har-Executive Director, 15
che designated Whistlebtowers' Champion and has
oversight of the arrangemerts He s respors.ble for:

submitting the Arnual Report to the Soard
for approva.,

aensuring and oversee:ng the integnty,
irdepencence and effectiveness of the policy
and arrangernents;

ensuring the Poucy and supportng
Arrargemenrts protect Whstleblowers from
beng vicumiset because they have d sclosed
reportable concerns,

receiv:ng all notifications made to the exterral
provider of the whistleblowing Line;

- deciding who to engage with i Persoral Group
when he receives not ficatior of a call,
depending on the nature of the report.

Anti-bribery and corruption

The Group's Anti-Bribery ang Corruption Pol ¢y
1sreviewed arnually and includes all Directors,
emoloyees and all third part.es operating on
Its behaf,

There were no Instances of bribery or corruption in
the period.

We assess all our business pariners for potential
compliarce nsks such as aribery ard corruption,
money laundering, tax evasion facilitatior, cata

privacy breaches or other reputat:onal red flags.

Further detailis includec in the Carporate
Governance sectior, pages 46-47
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Directors are aware of therr cuty under
572 of the Companies Act 2006 toactin
ne way they would consicer, 0 good faith,
would be most .kely to promoze the
success of the Group for the benefit of its
members asawhole and, ncgirg so, 10
have regard {amangst oTher matters) to:

the .kely conseguences of 115 decisions
in the long-term;

the nterests of the Groud’s empuoyees,

- tnereec o foster the Group's busiress
relationskips with suopliers, customers
and others,

- theimpac: of e Groud's operaiions g0
the community ard the ervironment,

- thedesirability of the Group mairtaiming
areputatior for high standards of
business corduct; ard

- theneegtoact farly beiween members
of the Group.

The Chairmar sets out the text of s172
Companies Act 2006 o every Board
agenda by way of a reminder

Personal Group Holdings Pic Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Below follows a descripiion of our key stakeholaer groups anc Now we engaged with them m 2027

Our Clients

Our Colleagues

Qur Suppliers

Qur Community
and Environment

Our Shareholders

Why we engage

Our pollcyholders are key to the long -term success of the Group. The retention
of existing, and attraction of new, policyholders is equally important.

‘We aim to make any interaction with Personal Group as positive and simple
as possible.

Provision of suitable and targeted employee benefits to our relevant
market sectors.

Our purpose is to help companies improve their effectiveness and profitability
by improving their staff engagement and retention. Improving such metricsin
turn improves our customer retention and encourages new business.

The Group's leng-term suctess is predicated an the commitment of our
employees to our purpose and demanstration of our valugs. In order to deliver
great customer service andimprove our already high staff engagement scores
we need to ensure that we provide an appropriate environment to attract and
retain great people.

Our suppliers are fundamental to the quality of our products and to ensuring
that as a business we meet the high standard of conduct that we set durselves.
Our Hapi platform cantains numerous third-party offerings which add value to
the averail proposition. It is important that we ensure good warking
relationships with those suppliers but also to choose partners that allow the
Group to fulfilits day-to-day operations to dellver our products and services to
the best standard possitle.

The Board recognises the importance of leading a Group that not anly generates
value for shareholders but also contributes to the wider society.

Our shareholders are key to the long-term success of the Business. Through our
investor engagerment activities, we strive g obtain investor buy-ininte gur
strategic objectives and how we plan to deliver on them, We create value for
our shareholders by generating strong sustainable profits and dividends.
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How we engaged in 2021 What matters to the Group
We provide individual face-to-face presentations of cur products to potential and existing policyholders at their - Qur products are relevant and provide cost effective
place of work. Since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic this method of seliing was impacted and sa we protection

developed virtual and telesales methods to allow us to explain our products to customers we were atherwise
unable to see. This has now been incorporated as an option in the BAU approach of the Greup, albeit now that gur
representatives are able to see pecple at their place of wark this approach has become increasingly pepularin - Efficient and sympathetic processing of claims
arder to provide a personaiised service to our potential and existing pelicyholders.

- Fair and consistent pricing

- Ease of access to customer service
The COVID-19 pandemic forced the Customer Relations Team to work from home for the majority of 2020 ang
since then we have operated a hybrid working model with staff asked to work from the office three days a week,
in times wherg Government recommendations allow, and to work from hame or the office as required for the _ Retention rates
remainder at the individualand manager's agreed choosing. This flexibility has allowed us to maintain a smooth
and suppartive autcome for our customers, especially with many of our policyholders calling from a place of
vulnerability.

- Strong net promaoter score

tn 2021 our Customer Relations Team took over 48,500 calls and dealt with over 54,000 emails and
enline queries.

We engage and build relationships with our customers and clients in several ways from face-to-face interaction - Product range, price and quality
to holding industry and other business forums and preducing white papers an topics that are relevant for their
businesses. We also recognise the importance of system security for our customers and their employees and
have ISO 27001 accreditation across the whole Group and 150 9001 covering the Employee Benefits Platform - Customer service
operated by the Group.

- Convenience and accessibility

- Fair marketing
- Responsible use of personal data

- Ethics and sustanability

We have an gpen, collaborative, and inciusive management structure and engage regularly with our employees. - Fair employment
We do this through an appraisal process, structured career conversations, employee surveys, aur Hapi site and
Company presentations. We remunerate with market-based pay, rewards and benefits and our continued high
employee engagement scores reflect our committed ang passicnate team. Following a successful trial, we have - Training, development and career opportunities
introduced a hybrid working palicy for all office-based staff. Feedback tells us that this helps employees
maintain a better work-life balance, with subsequent gains for engagement and productivity.

- Fair pay and benefits

- Health and safety
- Responsible use of personal data

- Ethics and sustainability

Wwe regularly engage in open and two-way conversations with gur largest suppliers. Key suppliers are invited to - Long-term partnerships

attend and present at our ¢lient canferences ar warkshops. -

- Collaborative approach
We have reviewed and updated our supplier onboarding process through the year, and as part of that process we _ Open terms of business
now feel we have improved our understanding of our suppliers and are able to work together better as a result. pen te

- Fair payment terms

We encourage all our employees to engage in the local community and work with cur PACT Committee to utilise - Reduce environmental irmpact
the funds in the Personal Assurance Charitable Trust to support charities at home and abroad as discussed an

page 42. We are conscious of the need for our business to focus on long-term sustainability, during 2021 we have - Investin local community

installed solar panels on the roof of our head office and are currently in the process of renewing aur fleet with - Promote environmental offerings on piatform,
emissions a key factorin any decision made. ie Cycle to Work

We are currently reviewing ways in which the Group can be more active in the local community and are - Supporting local community by creating jobs and
beginning discussions with lecal schoo!s and calleges tosupport them and to offer curselves as a work providing work experience and apprenticeships

experience possibility for their students.

Through gur investor relations pregramme, which includes regular updates, meetings, roadshows and our - Financial performance
Annual General Meeting, we ensure that shareholders’ views are brought into the Beardroom and considered in
our decisian making. We introduced retail investor roagshows for the first timein 2021, as both live and virtual
events. After successive years of closed door AGMs we are looking forward to the possibility of movingtoa - Dividend
traditionat AGM in 2022 and being able to see and take questions from our sharehalders in our head office.

- Strategy and busingss model

- Long term grawth

- Reputation of the Group

45
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE BOARD CONTINUES TO HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
ROLE 7O PLAY IN ESTABLISHING THE CULTURE

OF THE BUSINESS

Chairman's Introduction

Dear Shareholder

My role &s Chairman of Persona. Grouo 1s to
ersure tnat the Board s performing its role
effectvely. This means making sure the Oirectors
Nave the capadity, ab lity, structure, aversity and
supparLio resnond 1o the opporturities being
Created for us, whilst naving consideration of
our respons bilities under 5172 of the Companies
Acz 2006

350 Mave responsiility for ensuring the "coust
governance of the Groun through challenge and
direction of the Senior Leadershin Team Good
governance should enharce performance ard
delver positve.y for our shareholders, staff,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders
wnst still enabling achievemenrt of the Group's
strategic ams.

The 3oarc cortinues o have a s.gnificant role to
oy In establishing the cuiture of the business,
ensumirg thatit s consistent with our Qusiness
maodel and suitably cascaced through the Group
Thisis mor.tored througn engagement with the
w cer .mvestor community, through involvement
of the Board Committees and by use of the
wide-rangirg exper ence, skills a1d capab.ities of
Board members

Wwe have wor<ed on an 'ntagrated succession
plan for the Sgard and, as noted inmy Chairman's
report eaclier in this document, we have
embedded the Board changes (holh executive
anc non-executive) maae in 2020 ard 202°

Witn Mark \Winlow, Graup Charr, ceparting tne
Ddersona. Group Hola.ags Board 'in May 2021 am
pleased to have taken on nis rale. Inadait on, _izm
McGrath bas joined the Board as Chief Operating
Off cer and Andy Lothian, having stepped downr
from his executive cuzies, has remanec with the
Board in a Non-Fxecutive capacity

This year nas continued 10 see challengas as a
result of the COVID-19 parderic and the doard
nas oeer focused On supporting the Senior
Leadership Team neansuring the employees of the
Company are supportedin their roles De it from
tre office or workirg from nome. Ensuring our
staff nave the ~gnt support, not just In terms of
aquipmenrt byt also with their mental nealth, has
continued %o be a major prionty for the Boarc
durng trus time

2021 Committee meeting dates

Board 21Jan  22Feb 7 Mar
Audit ?1?
Risk & Com 1 Mar
Nomination ’
21Jan 7 Mar

Remuneration

In 2027, we continued to develop cur goveriance
processes Lo improve adnererce to tne Quated
Campanies Aliance (QCA) Corporate Governarce
Code which the Group adopted n 2018 The Board
does not cons-der that 't ¢eparts from any of the
principles of the Coce and we cortinue 1o mor to®
our performanrce against each of the 10 prirciples.
Tne Board s aole to deliver effective cecisiar
making and subsequeant drive of va.ue for
shareholcers, basec or the qual'ty information
whieh i receives.

Our last ingependent board effectiveness review
was carried out .n 2078 anc, in Lne with our
commitment under tne QCA Code (Pr-nc ple 7)we
will be concucting a fur ther gne towards the eng
of 2022 Inthe meantirme, dunng 2021 we
corouctec an internal effectiveness review and
are In tne process of addressing the pairts raised.

The Board met 10 times in 2021 and the number of
meetings eacn Jirectar atlended can De seen on
pages 50.and 57T ir agdition, the raports of the
Auc T, sk ang Compliance, No~unations and
SM&CR and Remunerat on Commirtees can be
seer later in tnis secton

Martin Bennett
Independen: han-Executive Cha -

SMay 26May 30Jun 21Jul 2BSep 210¢t 23Nov

14 Sep 23 Nav

30 Jun 14 5ep 23 Nov

21Jut

21Jul 210¢r
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QCA Code compliance

Principle1

Establisha strategy and business
madel, which promote long-term
value for shareholders.

Principle 2
Seek to understand and meet
shareholders' needs and expectations,

Principle 3

Take into account wider stakeholder
and socialresponsibilities and their
implications for long-term success.

Principle 4

Embed effective risk management,
considering both epportunities and
threats, throughout the organisation.

Principle 5

Maintain the Board as a well-
functioning, balanced team led
by the Chair.

Principle &

Ensure that between them the
Directors have the necessary
up to date experience, skills and
capabilities.

Principle 7

Evaluate Board petformance based on
clear and relevant objectives, seeking
continuous imprevement.

Principle 8

Promgote a corporate culture thatis
based on ethical values and
behawviours.

Principle 9

Maintain governance structures and
process that are fit for purpose and
suppart good decision-making by
the Beard.

Principle 1¢

Communicate how the Company

is governed and is performing by
maintaining a dialogue with shareholders
and ather relevant stakehelders,

Personal Group provides insurance services and a broad range of employee benefits and wellbeing products to
businesses across the UK. The Group enables employérs to improve employee engagemeant and support therr
people's physical, mental, social and financial wellbeing, supperting cur vision of creating a brighter future for
the UK workforce. Full details of our business maodel can be found on page 22 and on the Company website
(www personalgroup com)

Regular dialogue takes place with shareholders through initiatives including the Annuat General Meeting, investor
roadshows, regulatory announcements and the Report and Accaunts During 2021 our Chief Executive, CFO, Charrman
and other Non-Executive Directors met virtually, and in person, with key investors. we also hosted our first retail
investor eventsn Margh and September 2021,

As a Board we understand our duty to promote the success of the Company whilst considering the views of and
impact an, our wider stakeholder group of customers, policynolders, suppliers, colleagues and our community and
environment as well as our shareholders. A mare detailed summary of the Group’s engagement with all cur
stakenolders can be seen on pages 44-45.

The Board 15 responsible for identifying and mitigating risks to the Group achieving its strategic objectives. It addresses
risk management through an “Enterprise Risk Management Frarmework”, and a system of risk governance, including a
Risk and Complance Committee. During 2021, arisk based internal audit function was again provided by R5M. For
further details see page 53

The Group maintains, and 1s satisfied that, the Board has a suitable balance of independence and knowledge, with
Directors encouraged to challenge ati matters. The Board meets regularly, with a farmal schedule of matters for its
approval. The Board is supported by regular engagement with the Senior Leadership Team, and a system of formal
Board committees. Diractors are required to devote sufficient time to carry out their role.

The background and experience of the Board ensures there is an effective and appropriate balance of skills and
knowledge. Additional training is provided where needed and Board members are encouraged to maintain their
professional development. As noted an page 46 there have been two additions to the Board in the year with Martin
Bennett and Liam McGrath taking up their rotes as Chairman and COO respectively. The recent Board effectiveness
review has highlighted the need for an additional Non-Executive, the search for which s underway.

Board members are each set annual abjectives, with perfarmance feedback provided by corresponding Executive and
Non-Executive members. Board evaluation is the responsibility of the Chairmarn. internal Board effectiveness reviews
are undertaken yearly, with independent reviews at least every three years. The cansistent themes from the 20217
Internal review have been fed back ta the Board and actions are being worked on,

The Board believes Group culture is set from the top of the crganisation. The Board premotes a culture fased around
four vatues: Solid, Engaging, Driven and Expert. These values form a core part of how the business is managed, from
recruitment to training, and ongoing reward and recognition. An employee satisfaction survey 1s carried out gn an
annual basis, with the results fed back to the Board. Despite the ongoingimpact of COVID-19 and the move to hybnd
waorking the Group's engagement scores remained very high and remains a source of pride for the Beard.

The Board is collectively responsibie for the long-term success of the Group and for setting and executing the business
strategy. It fulfils this responsibility through Board and other Committee meetings held regularly throughout the year.
The meetings held in 2021 for the Board and other Committees can be seen above

The Group communicates through a variety of regular digital and traditional communications. These include face-to-
face meetings, the Annual Report and Accounts, Interim Results, investor news annguncements and information
provided on the Groug's website

47
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BOARD ACTIVITY IN 2021

THISYEAR, THE KLY BUSINESS
AND ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD
INCLUDED..

We are focused gn building a business with

room to grow in the medium and long-
term, and those foundations are now in
place

At our strategy cay in June 2021, we refleczed on our
oreviously stated strateqic 2ims and growth aspirations
towider the footprint of the business ard to double
the EB'TRA In the mic-term. We refinec this further to
concentrate on tnose areas of the business tnat we
believe nave the grastest potential to del ver cn this

This nas “esulted n the identification of three core
p.llars of focus to deliver the refined strategy

- DIVING ASUFANCE $A.85 TRroUgh rew ane exisiing
charnels

- Trarsforrung reward anc oenefits
- Acce.eralrg SME

Ir response 1o our sirategy reset, we alsa considereg
the format of our Board meetirgs to help support th g
and have conseguently reshaped the stucture of our
agerda to erab.e ar increased amount of - me ard
focus Lo pe soert on tne areas that wil. nelo deliver on
oursirategy

Zeaq more 320ut Our Siraegy page 24

Read more aooLt Ris< pages 36-37 & 53

We continued to identify, assess, manage
and appropriately mitigate the key risks to
the Group in achieving its objectives

In ing with the revised format for our Boasd meetings,
we also adopted & sbghtly different aoproach to our
work at the Risk and Cornpliance Camm ttee

We nave continued to Cover all relevant areas of r sk
ard compl ance but have focused debate on

exceptiors With the time saved we now address two
‘deep dives' at each meeting on supjects “egardec as
either new I SKS O 3reas where we perce ve we nave
Increasec risk which are key to us achieving our business
ojectives

Inaddition, through our ouzsourced internal audit
function, providec oy RSM, we have cnangec our
approach toensure that we not only focus en the
effect veness of key ‘nte nal controls but alsp those
areas of the business That are potent ally going to

w Lness the most change as we progress on our jpurney
to growtn

'm 2027 we alsoirtroduced a NO™M natiors and SMECR
Comm.tige to erable focusec d scuss 01s & ound tne
composit onof the Board arc the Group “equirements
g ourc SM&CR, whiCh hac prevousy oeen discussec as
partof reqular Boa o meetings
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The monthly review provided to the

Board includes an update on progress for
the lead KPIs introduced in 2020

In 2020, as part of our strategy for delivering long-term
sustainable growth, we idertified a number of lead
indicators, the mprovement of which will enable us to
grow both our revenue and profits and build future
vawe for the business.

In 2021 we have regularly reviewed poth these lead
ind-cators and the lower level KPls which sit beneath
them to monitor our performarce against our strategy

In addition we “egularly review and consider our KPIS
around ESG which were alsointroduced in 2020

Allof these metrics are brought nto consigerat-on by
the Remuneration Committee for the cevelopment of
anrual borus schemes and performance targets for the
Group’s long term incentive plan for the senigr
leadership team.

Reac mare apout our <ey Performance Indicators | e 28
g

Gowvernanca Financial Statements 49

The Board continues to have a significant

role to play in establishing the culture of
our business, ensuring it is consistent with
our business madel

Supporting, commurnicating weth and rewarding our
own people has neer a key focus tnis year and we
implemented a fiexible hybrid waorking policy to cater
for a broad variety of personal prefererces and spent
time reaffirming our core values as a team

Qur culture and values are also an:mportant part of
what we iook for in new candidates Lo join our Boarg
ang Senior Leacership Team and conseguenty our
appointments in 2021were a mixture of experienced
external appotntments alorgside several ‘nternal
promotions

72% employee
engagement score

We rar our yearly
employee engagement
survey n Qctober 2027,
We were delighted w'th an
overall score of 72% across
the Group

Read more about our People | page #1
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE BOARD HAS A COMBINED WEALTH OF KNOWLEDGE
AND EXPERIENCE TO HELP THE BUSINESS ACHIEVE
SUCCESS AND KEEP IT MOVING FORWARD.

Martin Bennett
IR A A

Deborah Frost

A

sarah Mace
EL P TR

Liam McGrath
Chaf g g 28

Appointed date

January 2021

(previously Non-Exacutive
Drrector appointed Charrman
May 2027

September 2015
[prevwigusy Nan-Executive
Dhrector, appointed CEQ
February 2079

October 2020
(previously Campany Secratary
from Apri. 2014y

May 2021

Experience

Martinig an experienced non-
exetutive ard charman, brirging
over 20 yearsof financial service
axperience to businesses Hehasa
diverse and extensive skill set,
stretching across commerce,
operations and finance Priorto
embarking On a nen-executive
carger in 2078 Martin soent ngarly
15 years at HomeServe plc creating
a FTSE 250 services Dusiress,
nolging CEQ, COC ana CFO
responsitylities i the Uk, USang
£urope

Before this he spent three years as
Finance Director of C.anty Groug
ana "0 years at Arthur Anderser
where he workac inauditand
transact on services

Deborah was appoiited 3roup
Chief Executive 1n February 2019

Before \0imng Persaral Groun,
Deborah had a diverse background
and long-stand.ng career spanring
aver two decades in both nausty
and censultancy She co-fourded
nnecto Reward Consulung i
2002, whicn has e become the
lergest \ndependent ~eward
consultancy i the UK

Her rele involved her securirg and
successfuly dgelvering muluipe
quohal projects for presugious
clients ingiding Boden, Caffé
Nera, Grosvenor Estate, England &
‘wales Cricket Board. ITN, and
Arsenal Football Club

Saran joineqa Personal Group N
Jaruary 2074 as Group Fnancial
Controler and Cormpany Secretary

ArevigJsly Head of Finance for
private equity owned Chicago
Lelsure Lig, shi also nas experience
.n & oroad range of Inaustries
mcluding roles at large
communicatons frm Cabe ang
Wireless and varous 'fe ana
PENSIONS COMpArSs

Saran s particLlarly proyg trat
Dersonal Group 1s ane of enly four
out of B44 Alv-Lsteo Busmesses
sFat rave Doth 3 female CEQ

ard CFG

Priorto 0ining Personal Group,
LigMwas Group Chief Operating
Officer for Advarced, tre XK's third
largest provider of busingss
software and services to over
19,000 customers where he nad
responsiiity for ail customer
suoportand professioral services.

Liamhas held large operat Onal
rales i retal firancial serwices for
over 15 years, working for brands
such as Eeunit GroLp plc, RBS, RSA
and GE Consuner Fmarce

Skills, personat
qualities and

An accouniing ard f nance
graduate, Mart.n 15 a Fellow of the
Irsntute of Chartereg ACCountants

A Chartered Fellow of the CIPD,
Deboran s arespected and
Ground -break rg trought-leader n

Sa~ah s a Fellow Member of the
Assocator of Chartered Cerufea
ACCOUNtANIS 37C AISO has &

-1am graguated with nprours in
kistory from the university of
315L0L s Qarly career was as an

capabﬂltles roward Masier's deqree I matheTartics Infant~y Qfficer wrere re
from Oxford Umversity carrpleted Dperd s andgt Taurs o
Nortrer ireiand anc taa
External Crarmarofventurep-se oig, Nere Nore Nor-Ixecutive Director a1 Astral PS

appointments

Committee
membership and
Board attendance

Lumen, and the Assac ation of
Foraigr Exchange and Daymer:s
Comparies ia-=P)

mCcm

0/10 Megtirgs atterded

10,10 Meetings atte~ded

1C/10 Meet.ngs attended

6/6 Mege? rgs atlended
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Committes membership key

B Risk and Compliance
Cammittee

Maria Darby-Walker

or Mon-g
DirecLor

[ audit

Committee

Bob Head

IO T

Nominations &
SMS&CR Committee

Governance

Financial Statements

D Remuneration
Committee

Andy Lothian
Tl b

¢ Chair of Committee

Damian Kane

June 2019
[Appointed Senior Non-Executive
Directer in January 2027

November 2016

July 2017

([previously Executive Director,
appainted Nor Execut.ve Director
In January 2027

October 2020

Maria joined Personal Group as
Non-Executive Director in June
2019 and is Chair of the
Remuneration Cormmittee.

In 2005 she started her own
consultancy, advising the Boards of
leading hrand namas on business-
criticalissues including mergers
and acquisitions, Crisis
management, brand and
reputation, ESG, equality and
diversity, and financial regulation.
Her client list included: The
Financial Conduct Authority,

The Investment Associaticn,
Unum, iglo / Birds Eye, Cadbury
and Ria Tinta amongst athers.

8ob joined Persona. Group nJuly
2016, With over 25 years in
Non-Executive Director Roles,
Boh brings an extens.ve range of
knowledge and experience ta
the Board.

s diverse working ufe has seen
M work woridwide with almaost
every branch of finangial serwices
He als0 has experience of software
ard marketing comoanies as well
as government

Andy Lothian joinec Personai Group
IN 1998 as a Group Account
Executive focusing on new
business sales and client servicing
His passion for excellence, drive,
znd commitment has seer him go
from strength to strength His
Jjourney at Personal Group has
evolved greatly over the last two
decades, through Sa:es
Management roles and eventualy
T years as Managing Director

of Persora. Group Benefits

In wanuary 20271 Andy moved nto
a Non-Execulive Director role on
the Boarg

Darmian first jeined the business in
20" as Senior Finance Manager,
witn his role evolving 1o Finangial
Controuer in 2078 He was
apoointed Finance Director and
Company Secretary .n 2020

Damian has extensive <now.edge
and experience in avariety of
industries havirg held firance
POSILONS Wt Amtech Group Ltd
and Connells Group subsequent 1o
his prafessional rairmng as an
auditor for Grant Thorton UK L2

Beyond her techrical and irdustry
qualificatiors, Maria s alsoa
qualified leadership coach and
mentor

Bob ras soud blue-chip experience
w th big brangs and busiress ard a
r chtapestry of management roles

Anzy nas extens ve knowledge and
expernence of tne important

day to dayrolethat all Personal
Group employees puay nthe
development and growth of the
business.

Darmianisa Cha~tered Accountant
and holds a degree in Economics
and Polings from the University of
Southampton

Non-=-xecutive DIrectorat
Redwood Bank Ltd, Board Goverror
atUniversity of Centrat Lancasn.re,
and Non-Executive Director “or
Amigo Leans Rle

Non-Executive Director at
Alexander Forbes and Crair of Audt
ard femcom commitiees at
Mirnag

Nane

None

[ Jm) Jc

10/°0 Meet ngs attenced

@c O

10410 Meet'ngs attended

mO

10/10 Meetings sitended

03410 Meetings attended

|_—[_| independent




52

Personal Group Holdings Pic ArnualReport and Accounts 2021

SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM

AN ADEPT SENICR LEADERSHIP TEAM
REFLECTING ALL FACETS OF THE GRGUP

Deborah Frost

Sy

See Board spread on previous page

Karen Thornley
I NI

<aren jgined Persanal Group as Crief
Commercial Officar it March 2021, bringing
over 20 years' commercial and sirategic
expenence 1o e role

Karer s also CEQ of Innacto Reward
Consulting where she s responsible for
"oV Ging INspirec <eatersnip ard strategic
drection across ad aspects of t~e company

Sarah Mace
Chd o

See Board spread on previous page

Richard Thompson

Richard was appointed as Chief Customer
& Product Officer inygruary 2022 Witha
strong technical bac<ground, Ricrard can
gentify client -equirements and dnve our
continual Improvement

Richard 15 3150 Maraging Direcror of Let's
Connect t-enas a weath of knowledge of
ILS BLSIMESS Jperations, progucts and
senwces and has .ec the execution of .arge
m..tfacetec oroects "or c.eris

Liam McGrath
b g

Ser Boara spread on prev:ous page

Julie Stayte

Julie o'ned Bersonal Group -0 August 2021
&5 Intenm Human esources Director, ana
ook on the role of Chief Peco.e Officer
from January 2022

Jule possesses awealth of experence in
cormmerc al HR and bas operated withim
demand ng, fast paced env rorrments,
1nclading work ng weth-n Fnanc &l Services,
Qetar, —ospiraliry, Avialion enc
MamLfacturirg
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RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Financial Statements 5 3

THE ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE IS TO
OVERSEE COMPLIANCE IN CONJUNCTION
WITH THE OVERALL APPROACH TO
GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT.

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to oresent the Risk and Compliarce
Committee Report for the year ended
31 December 2021

Objectives

The role of the Committee 15 10 oversee
compliance witn Prudential Regulation Authornty
and Financ al Conduct Authority requirements,
as wel. as other approp.ate requlations which
impact the Graug, iIn conunclion witn the overall
approach to governance anc risk management,
Includ:ng sett:ng the Group's r sk appetite and
monitoring and reviewing the impact of business
decisions upon the cap tal neld by the Group over
and above tne statutory mirimums

MEETINGS HELD

4 Activity during the year
we have adopted a s.ightly different approacn to

RISK AND COMPLIANCE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

ourwork th s year. we still cover the same ground
out have focused gebate on exceptions With the
time saved we 4o two "deep dives” inegach

Meeting Attendance mMeeung on sub,ects that the mempers regard as

Bob Head {Chair) 44 either new r sks or areas where we percewve we

Martin Bennett 44 have increased ris<, Each mesting we review our

Maria Darby-Walker w Lst of planned "deep dives” for sunsequent
meetrgs.

Andy Lothian 4/4

Deborah Frost 4/4 The Comruttee's Chairman ~eparts formally to

Sarah Mace 4/ the Board onits proceedings after each meeting

Liam McGrath 3/3 and during the year the Committee met four

Mark Winlow 1 times, overseeing signif:cant Grouo-wide projects

wnichincluded.

- Areview of the Group’s approach to
Envirormental, Social and Goverrance matters
and to the financial r sks posed by c.mate
change.

- Farrvalue for insusance customers

The guality of insurance sales made as our
field-baseq sales staff retu-ned to work

- The Group's resil ence against cyber threats.

- ensuring vulneraole customers are identified
anc supported duning their retatignsnip with the
Group.

- Jpdating arc further developirg the Own Risk
and Solvency Assessment [ORSA] for Personal
Assurance PIc. The ORSA process Is well
embedded anc the Committee and Board anply
their mirds to new potentigl or actuacrisks For
example, rflation s viewed as a more materia.
~isk this review compared to prigr years

- Greater focus heirg applied to the oversight of
the Healt~ and Safety Committee, specifically
ensuring Government advice ~elat ng to the
COv'D 18 pandemic was camplied with at all
times.

In addition to the above, other work undertakenr
during the year comprised.

Oversignt of tne further empedding of cata
{specificaly GDPR related) arrangements

- The continued monitorinrg of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's sk management
including emerging ard focus ris<s geing
informed by data from our Treating Custgmers
Fairly {TCF)jand Conduct Risk dashboards.

The ongoing review, consideration and aoproval of
the existing Group pol cies used across the Jusiness.

Cons.deration of managemenrtnfarmation
which confirms levels of qual.ty and compliance,
and the effect.veness of the Informat on
Secur:ty Management System.

AS In previous years, the Committeg has appued its
mind to the risk logs both in terms of completeness
and how rs<sare cptimised The Committegnas also
workeg Lignty witn the Audic Committee to ensure
that the Committees neitner dupl cate worcnor allow
things toslip between tne gaos.

Bob Head
ndependent Non-Executive Jirector

28 March 2022
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUES TO PROVIDE ASSURANCE
THAT SHAREHCLDERS INTERESTS ARE BEING PROPERLY
PROTECTED BY APPROPRIATE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT,
REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROLS.

“The ongoing disruption
caused by COVID-T19
has required a
dynamic approach to

risk mahagement.”

Bob Head

MEETINGS HELD

3

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Meeting Attendance

Bob Head (Chair) 3/3
Martin Bennett 373
Maria Darby-Walker /3
Mark Winlow 171

Dear Shareholder

Tme Comrmttee has focused on ensunng that the
cnanges to the working enyironment and needs of
rhe Group's stakehalders have been approprately
cea.t with arc reievant charges to fimanc al
management and Irterna, controls have beer
mpermenrted, ensur ng that the control
enviroament rermains fit for purpose

Roles and Responsibilities

The Auait Committee assists the Board n
cdischarging 1ts responsibilities with regard to
theoversight of

Financial reperting:

- Momizaring tne integrity of the financiai
statements of the Group, ncluding tsarnyal
and half yearly reports, ang consigering tre
clarity and completeness of disclosures theram,

- ReviewIing and challenging any cnanges to
accounting poelicies, accounzing for signif cant or
urusual transact:ons and the applicatiar of
appropriate judgements and estimaces; anc

Advising the 3oard on whetnear the Group's
financial statemerts are fair, balarced ard
urderstandaple

Intarnal and external audit:

- Overseeing the Group's relationsn'o w tr s
externaland nterral auditors, INncluding the'r
appointment, remunaration, irdeperderce
and the effectiveness of tne aud.t arocess;

Developing and 'mplementing & pelicy on t~e
sudply of ron-audit services by tne externa:
auditor, and

- Monizoring ard "eviewirg cne effect.veness
of the putsourced interna, audt funct crin
thecontext of the Group's overali rsk
ma=agement system

Internal centrols:

Reviewing the adequacy anad effactiveness of
the Group's interral financia, cortrols ang risk
management systems, anc

- Qeviewing the Group's arrangements with
regard to emp.gyee/corractor wnisllealowing,
fraud detection, prevention of br bery and
money-.aurgering

Membership and meetings

The Audit Commiitee comorises the Independent
~on-Executive Directors ang meets at least twice
ayear

The Directars' profiles and qualficatiors are
eluded on page 50.

Risk 1s covered at the Risk Commitiee but ail
members of the sudt Committee are also
members of the * sk Committee, which ensures
tight co-ordinatign

Three formal meetings were neld durirg 2021 and
al comnmittee members were n attendance
Additionally, the remainirg Board members, Head
of Risk and Compary Secretary were prasentatak
meezings.

The meet ngs of the Cammittee are desigred Lo
facwitate and encourage communication @meng
the Committee, tne Group, the Groun's
cutsourced nterral audit functior {*SM) ard the
appainted external auditor. The Committee meets
with Theintérnal auditors and the external
auc.tors, wirh and withgout management presert,
tod scuss theresy.ts gf their examinatigns, their
evaluat.ons of the Group's irternal control anc the
overal quatity of the Groud's finaraia. reportng. ©
acditior, the members of the Auait Comritlee
alsg Meet separately 0 CONs Ger ary s5ues
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Activities of the Audit Committes

during the year

The Committee discussed w th the Group's
internal and external auditors the averal. scooe
ang plans for their respective audits Inaddition,
the key waork uncertaker by tne Committee during
the year under review and up 1o tne date of this
Annual Reportincluded

- Review and aparoval of the 2020 Annual Report
and Accounts and 2021.nterim Results
statement.

- ApprovaiLof the Solvency and Finarcial
Conditign Reoortand Own Risk & Solvency
Assessment

- Review of internal audizs carnec gut by RSM

During 20271 RSM undertock audits, Ir ane with the
agreed scope, over areas Incuuding remote
workirg, nternal controls of Innecio, HR & payroll,
conductrisk management, premium collection
and suppler management

The Cammittee received reports from the nternal
auditors throughout the year and was satisfied
with the effectiveness of irternal contrals andr sk
optimisation. It supports the recommendations
made by the internal auditors and s satisfied witn
the plans 'n place and the actions taken ar planned
by management irn response to these
recommendations and mon.ors the clearance of
the items raisec to ensure that they are resolved
onaumely basis

The appreach in developing the internal aucit plan
for 2022 was based on analysing tne corporate
objectives, rsk profile ard assurance framewo k of
the Group, as wel! as other factors affecting the
Group Theamistocover alls gnificantr sk areas
at least once every three years.

Tne Audit Committee regularly discusses the
performanrce of 'ntermal audit wtnir the
Committee, witn maragement and with internal
audit. Given the s.ze of the Group we believe that
an gutsourced-nterna, AUCIt funct.on gives us
access o more areas of experise thanan
internally resourced department

Significant reporting issues and judgements
‘nfulfilung 1ts oversightresponsibil ties, the
Committee has reviewed and discussed the
audited consoudated financral statements and
the related schedules within the Arnual Repor:
with Group management, includirg a discussion of
the appropriateness of the accountirg orinciples,
the reasonabieness of sigmifcant ;udgements
and the clarity of aisclosures in the f nancal
staternents. With the exception of COV D19,

the areas the Aud't Committee have been
concerned about are similar to prior years and
aredetailed later in the ~eport

COVID-18 cont nued to have asizeable mpact both
on G-oup and its counterparties

Key Group 'ssues inc.uded.

- Aswith the pro-year tne amount of new
Insurance business tnat cou.d Je wrtten was
materially affected cue to the continued
lockdowns and restrictions on movement during
tne first half of the year This impact was festin
2021 by the amount of new business that could
he written put given frstyear profitability s
marginal the ful. effect or orofitability wil, be
feltin future years rather thar in 2021

wnilst the office recpened for mast of the
calendar year, the nauonal move to a hybrid way
of warking has meant cont:nued attentian has
been paid to cyoer r'sks as well as aperational
resiuence to deliver what we nave promised our
clients and customers,

Consideration was gwen to goirg concern, the
adequacy of capitalin a variety of scenaros and
the abaily to pay a dividend whilst maintaining
our targe: of two tmes regulatory capital.

The carrying value of goodwill inthe Group's
f nancizr statements was reviewed in line with
tne difficult rradirg ervironment.
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The Cammittee reviewed the recommendations of the finarce furctior and recewed reports fram tng exterral aud tar o0 ther firdings Tne sigrrficant “egorting

mattess and :uggements the Commuttee considered during the year .ncluded

Carrying value of goodwill and other intangibles

Note 15 & 16

As a result of business acquisitionrs, the Group has recognisec signINicant balarces
for goodwal Goodwi. must be testec anrual.y forimparrment; other intangib.e
assets are cested when there arg INdicators that they may bgirpaired.

The assessment of potenna mparment recuires anurrber of judgemerts and
2sLHMates Lo be Made in getermmmng [he relevart future casn flows and the

discount rate to be applied

The presentation of “Adjusted EBITDA" alongside statutory profit.

The Committee reviewed the key firancial assumptions underpinning ¢ash flow
Drojections, the giscount and long-term growth ratas app.ec theretd and the
results of sensitivity aralyses The Committee was satsfied that, considering the
sufficient headroom avai:abig, nC HmMparMent was required, and apprepnate
disclosure has been rrace [see nate 15 to the financial statements for details)

Page 32 & Note 4

Adjusted EBITDA, in this cantext, .ooks Lo adjust for nan-underlying trading
activity withinthe financials [or year whick are rraterialin size, in greer o
fair'y remuneraie the management on underlyirg performarce

The valuation of the claims pravision

The Commztee corsicerad the approach adopted ang was satsfied that the
approach continues 1o help provide a clear and moreg balanced view of the
underlying per‘ormance of the business than simply profit after tax Iz also
corcloded that the approach is beng apphed consistently fFrom year 1o year ard
the rationa.e is clearly preserced ard regcorcited back ta the IFRS puttlishec
numpers

“he Corrmmitiee s supportive of the revisea segmental reportung which proviges
greater Lhderstancing of the make up of the Group for the reader af the finangial
statements

Note 25

The Group retains a provision “or the grass estrated Lhablity ansing fram claims
epIsodes In the current and preceding Ninancial years whiCh have nat giver nise 1o
claims paic tisesumatec based On the Currentinformation, arc the uitimate
vabilily may vary as @ resull of subseguert rformation anc everts,

Due to the ongong COVID-19 pandemic and the nature of the Group's Insurance
policies the Committée has reviewed the methadology and calculationsrelating
ta the claims prowisions reld by the Insurance entilies within the Group te ersure
that thercurreg but not reporteg claims reflect npr or.y the histoncal trerds of
the insurance poLcies soLd but also angaing review of the dataarourd COVID-18
and o particuldr tre recent rise of the Omicren vanart The Cammitice was
satishied that the amount reserved “or across the Group s appropnate giver the
data available

Externalaudit

ZY LB we-e firs: gapgiried for tre 2018 finarcigl
year. We value continuity srovidirg the Group gets
value for money botr for the formai reportirg and
Lhe thirg-party assurance that the bus ness hasa
good cantro.emerorment.

Tne Commuttee cons:ders a numbe- of areas when
review g e exierral aud tor eapporatment,
namaly therr performarce '~ gischarging tThe audit,
the scope of the audit and terms of engagement,
tner rdebendence and oDect vity, and tne -
reappo rtmenrt ard remureration 'n gad L o0, we
are seex Ng mMore vawue from zne gudit ard
encourage 2 cor:ro. based approach rather thran
substantive where it scosteffect've to co so

The external auditor reports to the Committee on
actiors taken £o compuy with professional and
reqculatory ~equireaments and is "equ red to rotate
tne tead aud partner every five years

The Comm ttee nas confirmecit ssatisfed
with the ndependerce, opjectivity anc
effectiveness of £Y _LLP as auditor and weil
supoort a “esclution Lo retain them at the

forthcomirg Anrual Genera, Meeting,
Tnere s alsp an active, ONGoIrg CI3leGUEe belweer

the Comruttee and tne exteésnal auditor or actiors
o marove the effect veress ard efficency af

rhe external audit process. In acd tion, the
Committee considers © sk areas that mig-t

nform the auc iz strategy and dsCuss this with
tneexzena. audtors.

NG non-autit services we e provided oy The
external aud torsdung tr s financ al yea-a-
singe they were ongiraly adpo Ntea

Bob Head
Indenendent hon-Zxeculve Drector

28 Mach 2022
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THE OBJECTIVE CF THE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE IS TO
RECOMMEND FOR SELECTION BY THE FULL BOARD,
DIRECTOR NOMINEES AND TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE
WITHTHE REQUIREMENTS AROUND SMECR,

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to presert the inaugural Nominat ons
Commitiee Report for the year ended 31
December 2021 The Committee met for the first
time n2021and twas int-oducectoenasle
focused @isCUSsIONs arguna the composizion of
the Board ard the Groun requirements around
SM&CR which had been previpusly discussed as
part of other Committee meetings

Objectives
The a:rms and objectives of the Nominat ons
Comrmittee s to:

- ensure there s a formal, rigorous and
transparent procedure for the appaintment of
new Cirectars to the Board ard new members
of the senior management team;

“The Board is satisfied
thatits current
composition includes
an appropriate balance

- provide aversight of Beard compaosition,
membership and 30arg and senior / execulive
apoointments;

of skills, experience
and capabilities.”

- .ead the process for appoiniments, ensure plans
are in place for orderly succession to both the
3pard and senior managerment posinons, and
aversee the development of a diverse ptpeline
for succession,

Martin Bennett

- provice irdependent gversight of the Group's
compliance with the Sen.or Managers and
Certificatior Regime,

MEETINGS HELD

’I ersure all Board recruitment re.ated orocesses
are transparent, crecible, effective and re.iable,

NOMINATIONS and

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

determing whether emp.oyees who are subject

Meeting Attendance to disciplinary procedures have breached the
i Conduct Ruwes applicable to tneir rale and
Martin Bennett (Chair) /1 PR
wnether disrissal 1S an appropriate outcome.
Maria Darby-Walker /1
Bob Head 171

The CEQ, Nan-Independent NEDs and
Company Secretary are rormally present
at the meetirgs

The Nominat.ons Committee, assisted Dy external
executive search agencies as required, pr marily
manages appointments to the Board, but all Board
members have the oppor tunity to meet
shortlisted candidates, ensuring a wide range of
feedback in the appontment process. All
Executive Directors are engaged on a full-time
basis. Non-txecutive Directors have letters of
appointment stating the'r annual fee, the
mimmum reguired t'me commitment and
confirmatior that tneir appointment is subject to
satsfactory performance. Their appointrment may
be terminazed with a maximum of six months'
written notice at any time.

Tne remuneration of the Chairman anrc
Non-Executive Directorsis determined by the
Board following proposals from the No™inations
Commuttee, within the Lmits set out in tne Articles
of Association, based on a review of the ievel of
fees paid by comparator compares,
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Activity during the year

The Committee's Cha.rmar reports formalwy to the
Board or 't proceed ngs after each meeting and
during the year ine Comm ttee met once, getall of
what was reviewed by the Comruiiiee sas
follows,;

Board succession

We actvely manage our 308rd succession plan, ta
ansure that our Board has an appropriate and
diverse vange of skills to enable us to deliver our
strateqy for the benefit of all of aur stakeholders
We are a smal.and cohasive Board, ard take care
taensure that atl new memoers of our soard are
aligred o aur culture and sNare Qur vawes,
wiatever Ifair skills artd background Gur 3oard
‘nduction process, undertaker by al, new
members UpoT ARDOINTMEent, is an ImMmportant way
to get our new Board members up to sneed and
valued by pur Non-Cxeculive Direciors Wehave a
formal olar for how Board membership shoula
gdevelop Wwhich aims to halance contiputy of
service witn a regular refresnment of s«uils and
experience neeced 1o deliver cur evolving
strategy. We ‘egu.arly review the Dalance of skills
on the Board as a whole, taking account of the
future needs of the pusiness, and the knowledge,
experience, .eng-h of service ara performance of
the Directors We are sat'sfied with the plan whicn
nas resulled irn the placement of LIam McGrath on
the Board anc are configert that the search for a
further ndependent hon-Execuzive Directorir
2022 wil. prove effective

Board and Director effectiveness

The CEQ recewves a formal evaluation of therr
performance during the year, whih s conducted
by the Charman. Imaddrtion, tne CEO d scusses
with the Non-Execut ve Directorsthe
oerformance of individuals of the Executive team
and any changes that she proposes to make to this
team, Wh St this activity 0oes rot take place
farmally within the meetings of the komnations
Committee, tcoes form part of its worcin
overseeing Fxecutve team development ang
sUCCESSIoN process, and the pipeure of talent
avalable for succession to the Boara. The
performance of our Boarc anc the Committeesis
evaluated by the Cnair and be nas concluced that
the Board 1s furctioning wel., 15 Cynamc, has a
bread-h and depth of complementary sk ils ang
experience and that there sa strang trust
between the Non-Executive Directors arc the
£xecut.ve Diractars in the runn ng of the Groud. A
key act.on to the effectiveness of the Boarc will
oe the decsion an fiiling the Non-Executive
Director nositior left after the retrement of Ken
Rogney An .nternal Board effect.venass rev ew
was conducted 'n 2027 w th a formaiexteal
rewview Que in 2022

Diversity

we fully suppor: aiversity as animportant
coriributiar to good quality decision making and
Inngyative thinking Diversity has "any d'me~s ons
and we part cularly value divers.ty of thougnt,
wrich In turn s assisted by diversity of background
and experierce, as well as of gender and ethnicity
We alreacty have on gur Board a diversity of gerder,
s«ills, expeqience, personality, anc cogritive
Approach ACross the Dusiness, teams are diverse
with an even spl; of males ard females ir
managemenrt 00sLIoNSs HoWever, we are
CONSCIoUs that our senior leadership papulat on
does not currently reflect the broager etn~ ¢ mix
of pur emoloyees and our customers ard we will
seek [0 address this. We Cont nue Lo review how
we can further broager our approach,
encourag g diversity ard relusior trroughout
che 30ard ang the bus ness

Culture and values

Sreservalion of our culture has always beena
priority, wnich stems from the va.ues irstillec by
the Board Our culture s brougnt to Ufe through
our shared values and busiress principies which
the Beard monitars tnrough Board reports anc
agenda ite™s, engagement with employees, anc
vigits o the Group's offices QOur culture ard values
areanimportant part of what we loak for ir new
candi¢ates to 101N our Board, 50 that they ™ay
promaote ana engage with the developmert of
these aspetis throughout the dusness 17T 5
important that they are aligreq with our values so
that they can be role mocas for allour enployees
and stakenolaers

Certification & conduct rules

tis important for the engoirg success of the
busmess that rigorous certification processes and
srain ng and overs'gnt of compliance with the
conduct rules are comowgted and mon-tared by
tne Committee We have worked hard to art.culate
the conduct ru.es as part of the wider Group
values ard nave no tolerance for any breaches

of therules.



Overview

Strategic Report

TENURE AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Nominat ons Commitiee considers the length of service of Board memopers at least annually The tenure of tne Directors s set out selow

Member

Appointment

Last AGM renewal

Governance

Up for renewal at 2022 AGM

Financial Statements

Board role

Martin Bennett January 2021 AGM 2021 Non-Executive Chairman
Ceborah Frost September 15 AGM 2021 Chief Executive
{previously NED, appointed CEO Feb 79)
Sarah Mace QOctober 2020 AGM 2021 Chief Financial Officer
Liam McGrath May 2021 N/A For ranewal as first year Chief Cperating Officer
Maria Darby-Walker June 2019 AGM 2020 For renewal by rotation Senior Non-Executive Director
Bob Head Nevember 2016 AGM 2020 For rengwal by rotation Non-Executive Director
Andy Lothian July 2017 AGM 2021 Non-Executive Director
{previously Executive Directar,
appointed NED Jan 2021)
Martin Bennett

ndependent Non-Executive Chairman

28 March 2022
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THE COMMITTEE'S OBJECTIVE IS TCO ALIGN OUR REWARD
STRATEGY WITH THE DELIVERY OF PROFITABLE AND
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH FCR THE BENEFIT OF ALL OUR

STAKEHOLDERS,

“We remain focused on
aligning reward with
the business’s long-
term sustainobility

and growth.”

Maria Darby-Walker

MEETINGS HELD

A

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Meeting Attendance

Maria Darby-Walker (Chair) 4/4
Martin Bennett 3/3
Bob Head 4/4
Mari Winiow 1

Dear Shareholder

On benalf of the Board, 1 am pleaseac to prasent
this year's Remunerat.on Committee report The
Remureration Report provides a comprehensive
picture of the structure of our remuneration
framework, tsalignmentwith (e busiress
strategy and tne rest of the workforce, as weli as
the decisions made by “he CommiLiee as a resuit
of busiress performance for thus year and the
intended arrangements for FY22

Aims of the Remuneration Committee

The pr.mary purpose of the Remuneration
Commtiee s to review and make
recommendat.ons regarding the remune-ation
policy for the Group, specifically regarding the
Group's framework of Executive Remuneration

Tne Committee's overall objective 15 ta align
reward for the Exetutive Team with the delivery
of profitable sustainable grawth for qur
sharghplders and empioyees through the Group's
remuneration framewark whiech.

- Offers compebitive sa:ary Datkages to atiralt,
rezain, anc motivate talented people.

- Dperates straghtforward, transparent, and
effective reward schemes that 'ncentivise
delwvery of stretching annuactargets ard
delvery of gur longer-term business st-ategy.

Ir adgition, the Committee.

- Offers the chance for all employees to
Darticipate ir share scnemes so that everygne
Tninks and acts o run it uke we gwr it - one of
aQur coTeempigyee values

- Oversees ard revews tne comMmissior a~d
aonrus arrargements for customer-facing
ASUrANCE Sa.85 eMp.Oyees 1o ernsure anrope”
balarce netweer mativat g staff whilst
mak ng szlas of the hignest gual'ty (e Deyong
SmMowe regulatory compuaarce;

To that end, we currently operate the following
remuneration framework

- Anrualsalary and assoCated benefirs {au
empioyees)

- oef.ned contribution pansion scheme and other
nenefits sucn as Lfe cover, pnvate medical
insurance (all employees)

- Performance tased annual ponus Lnked 0
deuvering stretching f'nanaiatl, pusness
devewapment, argservice onented targets
{selected employees).

Comryssan, bonus schemes and incentives for
tne customer-facing surance teams lselec ted
sa.es and sales support employees).

Snare schemes

- PG Share Gwnership Plan{au employeesy,

- Company Share Opton Plan {selected
employees), and

- Long Termincentve Plars (LT.Ps) (selected
SEen'or executives - see page 63 for furtner
details)

We have cartinued 10 consige” comparisons of

remuneration for senior employees of simila- sized

quoien compan.es M relatéc sectors whan

estab.sning the levels of packages set. Gur most

reCent executive Dencnma ¢y exercise was

undertaken in December 2021
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Composition of the Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of the
iIrdependent Non-Executive Directors, with the
Chief Executive, Chief People Officer, Company
Secretary and ary non-independent Nan-
Executive Directors invited to be .natlerdance at
nimes. The Remunaratior Committeg gperates
within defined terms of reference, which were
updated last year. It met four times in 2027, with
ad hoc calis taking place whicn reflected the
changing circumstances around the pande~ic

None of the Committee has ary personal firarcial
interest, confl.cts of -nterests arsing from cross
Directarsh-ps, or day-te-cay invoivement in
running the business anc, as such, the Committee
1s deemed to be independent.

The Board getermines tne remuneration of tne
Non-Executive Directars afzer benchmarking
external market research. Non-Executive
Jirectors are rot involved in settng their own pay
and do not participate In the Honus schemes or the
LTIPs, or in any other share award scheme.

Performances for the year

As has been reviewed elsewnere inthisreport in
20321 the business continued to have a challeng'ng
year due to the COV!D-19 pandemic Despiteth s,
due to a number of business abjectives and KPIs
being met, the Remuneration Commuttee dec'ded
that a proportion of the Ser or Leadersh.p Team
bonus commensurate with the targets ach eved
should be paid.

2021 annual bonus

Since the end of the nationa: lockdowns the Group
nas Deen working hard to create rew routes to
market and improved product offerings whitst the
rewarcs of this work are stil. to pe reflected in the
profit of the Group, It 1s the cpraior of the
Committee that staff should be rewardec for the
wor performea to pus the Group in a favourable
posSITGN Moving into 2022,

Strategic Report

Governance

Financlal Statements

As aresult of ths, thase with bonuses as part of
their employment rece'ved amounts
commensearate to the objectives be'ng reached

In agditior an all-staff bonus for those employees
with no eligibility for other comm.ssion or bonus
structure, was palg at one week's salary for al.
eliqible employees.

Payincreases

The Remuneration Commitiee decided that no
Company pay review should be applied to the
Board for the financial year 2021, although all
other employees received a share of a pay Ircrease
pot of ¢3% of payrall.

However, 1t was agreed during tne year 1o Increase
“he salary of Group Chief Sxecutive Oeborah Frost
as of 1October 2022 to £330,000 following
bencnmarking and a performance review

Other Committes activities for the year

The Committee has been actively engaged in
reviewing the changing nature of reward ana
bereftsin light of changes In packages as a result
of the pandemic and waorking frem home
becoming an industry norm Tne Comm tiee isir
~egular commur catior witn the Chief Pecole
Officer to ensure that the Greup understands tne
market norms and offers packages whicn are
competitve offers for gur employees

The Committee discussed, and approved the issue,
of a number of Company Share Option Plan {(CS0P)
optons toserior staff guring the year. This s
expected to provide further -ncentive for the level
of maragement below the Senior _eadership Team
in fulfitling the Group's goals moving forward

Dur ng the year the Group util sed a new employee
engagement survey tool which, in aire with onor
years, showed exceptionally hign scores from tne
employees of the Group The Committee regularly
reviews tne necessary actions the Group needs to
take to preserve and enhance our empoyees’
wWOork ng environment

The year ahead

in recognition tog of the growing mportance of
ESG report ng For bus.nesses, we will also ensure
that any long-termincentives for the busiress are
c.osely onxed and augned to our ESG strategy
whuch the Compary s currently developing

The Remunerat.on Caomm ttee remains focused or
aligning reward with delivering .ong-term
sustainability and growtn of the business,
compined with our on-going pragressive div«denc
poiicy. Where any material changes are made to
the Remuneration policy, we will cortinue 1o
disCUss cur INtentions with our ma;or sharenolders
and gwve them the opportunity to comment

Service contracts

The Executive Directors have service contracts
that can be termirated on 6 menths' notice with
the except.on of the Chief Executive who has a
12 morth notice period.

These provide for term nation payments
equ valent to the notice perocs basic salary and
contractual berefits.

The Non-Executive Directars b ave letters of
appointment that car be termirated on six
months' notice

o1
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Membership of Board and Directors' interests
The membership of the Board througnout the year's set out below

Theinterests of the Drectors and therr farvugs (Includirg trarsactions committed to before the year end and shares held in the PGH emoloyee share ownership
plar) in the sha<es of the Company as of 3" Decemper 2020 or aate of appointment if Later, and 31 December 2027, were as follows
Ordinary shares of Sp eachin
Personal Group Holdings Pl

At31December At 31December

201 2020
Deborah Frost
(Chief Executive) 304,063 304,919
Sarah Mace
(Chief Financial Officer - Appointed October 2020) 12,030 1,807 .
Andrew Lothian
(Non-Executive Director - Managing Director PGB Sales until December 2020} 37,532 38128

Bob Head
{independent Nomn-Executive]

Maria Darby-Walker
{Senior Independent Non-Executive)

Marun Bennett
(Independent Non-Executive Chair - Appeinted January 2027)

Liam McGrath
(Chief Operations Officer - Appointed May 2021)

At 3" December 2027, the mid-market closing stare prce was 325.00p per share (3" Decemuoer 2020 206.00p)

Directors’' remuneration
The Sxecutive Directars’ remuneration packages currently nciude compenents of a bas ¢ salary, ar~ual bonus, a compary car ar car allowance If aoplicaple Lo the
~ole, Long Term Incentive Plan (i TIP), nor-matcned pension contribut:ans and ufe coOver as appropriate.

Tne ~emureration of the Directors Listed by 'mdividual Director is as follows.
Share-based

Salary gains on Pension
and fees exercise of contributions Total Total
2021 Bonus 2021 options 2021 2021 201 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Deborah Frost 304 T3 - 10 a7 310 '
saanmacer w7 T T mm
GemMcGrath T w m - 5 145 o
Ana(emn -~ - T“ ~ - - a1 266
Bobread = - - - 50 3
Maria Darbyf\valk;_““hh__z_h - - - 49 *—4?
7 Martin Bennett *** I 78 - - - 78 T
mn(uw 33 - - - 3z - 8'1—
‘MkeDugoae - T R T
Wenkooney T - R as
_W“ T —_k—*“%y—sgﬂ —7_;;__‘___‘__*_‘-_-‘_‘_’26 o 1,062 ‘-77(-];-

* Sarah Mace was appointed to the role of Chief Firancia, Officer Sarak had worked for the busiress as Group Financidl Cortroller ard Compary Secretary previously, the values above shaw therr sa.ary ard
Fees For their time as & Birectar of the Graup
=* Andrew Lothar was Managirg Directar of PGB, and ar Executive Board member, urti: 31/12/20 at which point e retired from his Executive rale ard became a an Indeperdent Non-Executive Director

***Maruc Benrett became a Nor-Executive Director it uanuary 202* ard became Chair ir May 20727 fol.owirg the departurd of Mark Winlow
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Directors’ share options
csop
0~ 3" Decemoer 2021 options gutstanding were as folows:
Number Exercise price Earliest
of shares pence per share exercisable date
Andy Lothian 65,026 498 00 14 February 2017
Sarah Mace 6122 490.00 28 January 2017
Deborah Frost 8,746 34300 29 November 2024
Liam McGrath 8,746 343.00 29 November 2024
LTIP
0On 31 Decernber 2027 options gutstanding were as follows
Number Exercise price Earliest
of shares pence per share exercisable date
Deberah Frost 235,662 5.00 01 January 2024
Deborah Frost 29,615 5.00 31 March 2022
Sarah Mace 62,438 5.00 01 January 2024
Liam McGrath 52,032 5.00 1 January 2024

The options above are subject to the performance crtena of the TIR.
Long Term Incentive Plans

LTI 2021

Tne plan rules and heads of agreement of @ new _ong Term Incertive Plan were finalised in Apr.. 2027, Tnus LTIP has been establshed norder toreward and
ncentivise the semigr execul-ves 1o deliver sustainable growth for the Company and ta create material value for shareholders, and replaced (TIP 2 wnich expired
withgut any payments made under the scheme 1nMarch 2020. The scheme accommadates performanrce cond:tions acress market, financial anc ESG measures

whicn suppaort the growth of the busiress

In April 2021 tne f rst tranche of LTIP 2021was arngunced aweng with a further add tion inauly 2021 following the appointment of Liam McGrath to the Board. The

options In these two tranches were issued to the three xecutive directars, as showen in the LTIP share option table above, ang also four semior members of staff
two of whom nad subsequently left the pus ness by 31st Decembe~ 2021 with no pay nert made under the scheme The performance critena of the eptions s

shown in note 22b of the financial statements.

As noted i the 2020 f nancal statements the 29,615 share options granted te Ceboran =rast in Lieu of an TIP in orevious years were awso announced in Aprl 2027,

There are ro performance conditiors atzached to these options otner than continued employment to the exercise date

A mew tranche s currently being finalised following tne principles outlaed n LTIP 2021 Tnis s exoected to be completed ir the second quarter of 2022 and witl be

announced as an RNS when firal'sed

Maria Darby-Walker
Non-Executive Jirector

28 March 2022
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

THE DIRECTORS PRESENT THEIR REPORT TOGETHER
WITH THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021,

Principal activities

Tne Group s proncipally engaged in orovcing
employee services, ncluding shart-term accident and
fealth insurance, benefits and platfarm progucts,
pay and rewarc consultancy and the provisron af
salary sacr fice technology products ntne JK

Results and dividends
Areview of the year's resultsis giver in the Chef
rinancial Officer's Statemens [see oage 32)

The orghit framcontnung opergtions far the year s
£4,342,000 {2020 £8,557000) nefore taxation of
£745000(202Q k1,5863,000) During the year ardirary
awidenecs of £3,244 0002020 £4147000 werepad

Directars

The membersnip of tne Boaraat the end of the year
1S et outir thng Remunerat on Report on pages
60-63. The Remuneration Committee epori also
ncludes details of the Directors’ re™unerat.onand
interests n the orgirary shares of the Company
Jurng the year all Directors ang officers werg
covered by Third Darty incemn ity :nsurance

Political contributions

Ne.tner the Company nor any of tssupsdiares
made any pol.t.cat donation or incurred any
oolitical expenaiture during the year {2020, £ril).

Charitable donations
Donatoens to cnaritable orgamisatiors amourted
to £100,000 {2620 £700,000)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The pmncipal risks anouncerzant es facing tne
Gropup, .0rg w th [T 5x maragement objectives
and polic &5 are d.scussed nthe Riscard Aucit
Commitzee reports ara Note 3 of these f-rancial
statemencs.

Capital requirements
See Note 4 of tnese firancal statemerts

Corporate governance

The Boarc of Personal Group Howdings Ble supports
the pninciples ard s cammitted to achieving high
stardards of corporate governarce and has
adopted the Quoted Comaan-es Alliance Corporate
Governance Code n'tsertirety TheBegard's "eport.
on the Group's corporate goverrance procedures s
selQulon pages 46-47,

Disclasure of information to suditor

Tne Directors who neld office at the date of
appravat of this Directars' Report canfirm that, s
far as they are each aware, there s no relevant,
auc t infarmation of which the Group's auditar 's
uraware, aroeach 0 rector has taken 3\l tne steps
tnat they ought to have taken as a Director to
nake thermselves aware of ary reievant aud .t
iformatian and to establish that the Growp's
auditor iIs aware of that information

Auditor

£Y L2 have expressed willingness to cantinde in
aff ce inaccordance with sect.on 489 (4] of the
Compan es Act 2006 a resolution to botk formally
appoint and reappoint EY L LP will be proposed at
the Annual General Meat ng 1o be held on
‘Wednesday 5 ™Moy 2022

Other information

Anind:cation of Lkey future developmenss » the
busiress ara pa=ticulars of sigr ficant events
which have pccurred since the enc of tne financial
year have been ircluged 1n the Strategic Report

Inarriving at the- conclusion that tne Group's
JCCOUNts sNow e Grepared Onago ng concern
Jas.5, the Direciors nave consicered the satentiat
impact of COVID-19 pver the next "2 monins based
o~ review of a variety of poss.ale stressanc
SCENAro Tests

3¥ ORDER Q- THE 30ARD
SV e

Sarah Mace
Chief & nanc al Off cer

28 Maren 2022
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

THE DIRECTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR PREPARING THE
STRATEGIC REPORT, DIRECTORS’ REFCRTAND THE GROUP
AND PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN
ACCORDANCE WITHAPPLICABLE LAW AND REGULATIONS.

In respect of the Strategic Report,
Directors' Report and the Financial
Statements

Tne Directors are respensible for preparing the
Strateqic Renort, Directors’ Reportand the Group
and parent Company Financial Statemenrts n
accordance with applicable Law and regulations

Company law requires the Jirectors (o prepare
Group ana parent Comgpany financial statements
foreach finarcial year, Under the AIM Ruies of the
_ondon Stock Exchange they are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with International Financia. Report ng
Standards as adopted by the EU {IFRSs as acopted
by the EJ) and applicable law and they have
elected to prepare the parent Company f'narcial
statements on the same basis

Under company law the D-rectars must not

aporove the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they gve a true and fair wew of the
state of affars of the Group and parent Company
and of their orofit ar loss for that peniod .n

prepanng each of the Group and parent Company
financial statements, tne Directors are required to

Select suitable accourting poucies and ther
apply them consisiently

Make Judgements and estimates that are
reasonable, relevant and reliable

State whether they have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU

Assess the Group araparent Company’s ab:ity
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicab:e, matters related o going concen

Usethe going concernaasis of account ng
unless they either intend to Liqu-date the Group
or the parert Company or L0 cease operations,
or Fave no realistic alternat ve but todo so

The Directors are respars.ole for keeping agecuzte
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the parent Company’s transactions and
disclose with reaspnable accuracy at any tme the
firarcial position of the parent Company and
erable them to ersure tna: ts finzncial
statements comply wth tne Companies Act 2006
They are responsibie for suchinternal controlas
they cetermung Is necessary to enable tne
preparation of financ-al statements that are free
from material misstatement, wnether due to
frauc or er-or, and have generalresponsidility for
taking such steps as are ~2asonably open to them
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud anc other irregulanties

Urce- applicable law and regulatiors, the Directors

are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report
and a Directors' Report that complies with that iaw

and those regulations.

Tne Directors are responsio.e for the mairtenance
ang integrity of the corparate and financial
information included on the Company's website
Legislation in the UK governing tne preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Financiat Staterments
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PERSONAL
GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Opinion
In our opinian

- Personal Group Holaings ple's grgup Fnancial stazements and parent comaany financ al statements ithe *financia. statements"i give a true ard far-
view of the state of the groun's eng of the parert company's affairs as at 31 Jecemper 2021 and of The group's orofit for tne year ther endeq,

- thegroup financial statemerts nave been properly prepared ' accorgance with UK aconied internanonal aCCounting stancards.

- the parertcaompany financial statemients nave oeen propery prepared inaccordance with Uk adopted internaucnal accounting standarcs as applied
accordance with sect.or 408 of the Companies Act, ang

the financia. statements have beer prepared in accorcance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have aud ted the firanc a szatements of Personal Group Hold 1gs pic (the 'parent campany’i and 1ts subsiciarigs (e ‘group’) for the year enced 31
December 2021 which comprise

Group Parent Company

Consol dated income statement for the year encec 3” December 2021 Balance sheet as at 31 December 2021

Cansatidatac raarce sneet as at 31 Oecemioer 2020 Starerment of changes in equity fa- the year
then erded

Cash flow statement for the year then ended

Consolicated statement of comprehens.ve income for “he year then ended

Consoudated statementof cnanges inequity for the year then ended Re.ategrotes 1to 32 to the financia,
statementsincluding a summary of s:ignif cant
accourtirg pougies

Corsol aated cash flow statement for the year then ended

Re.atec notes 1o 32 to the financial statements (excest for the solvency camtal posinion of the
Group's reguated comparues disclosed in ngte 4 which § markae as unauc ted) ncluaing a summary
ot sigr.ficant account.ng nol.cies

The f nancial repor’, ng framewaork that has been applied i rhe'r preparation s aoplicaole law and UK adopted internat-onal accounting standaras and, %
regards 1o the parent company firancal statererts, as appl ed in accordance with section 408 of the Comaanies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

we conductec our auditm accordance w T rternatiora; Standacds cn Audrg (UK 1545 (UK) and appl cable law, Cur responsibilities under those
srandards are furiner descnbed n the auditor's resporsibilizies for the audit of fre financial statements sect on of pur report e areircependent of the
group and oarent Compary Ir atco aance witk the etnica, "equ -ements that are relevant to ous aud f of the finargiat sTatements .» tne J including the
FRC's Sthical Stardacd a5 applied to Lsted enbibigs, 31c we nave fulf.uled our otner ethical respensibilities 'm accorgarce with These reguiremenrts,

we believe That the audit ev dence we have 901a ned s sutfic @t and aopropriaie to provice 3 2ass far our apiror
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Conclusions relating to going concern

In aucht g he financial statements, we have concluced that the directors’ use of “he gaing conce’ n basis of accounting .a the preparazion of the
financial statementsis appropriate. Our evaluaton of the cirectors’ assessment of the group and parent compary's ability 1o continue to adoprt i1e gaing
conce n pasis of accourtirg acluded the fo.cwing procedures

- confirmed our understarding pf MANAGAMENT's qOING CONCA M &3sensinellL HFOCess and obtainec managemenrt's assessment which covers 12 months
enaing 28 March 2023,

obtanec the financ al forecasts prepared by the Group ang assessed the apprapriateness of assumptions appledin the modelled stress scenar ¢S
pased on our understanding of the business and the Group's histor calperformarce, iIncuding since the start of COVID-19 pandemic:

- aerformed enguines of management and those cnarged with governance to idertify risks or events that may impact the Group's abilty To cortirue as
a going cancen. We alse revigwead management's assessment approved by the Board, minutes of meet ngs of tne Board and L5 Comim TTees, anc mage
enguiries as to theampact of COViD-18 on the bus.ness, and

assessed the appropnateness of the going concerr disclosures by comparirg the consistency with maragement's gssessment and for compliance
with the relevant reporting requiremens

Based on management's assessment, we have observed that the Group s able ta cantinue to have surplus cash and solvency above the sclvency
requirements wizsninits two egulated entities na numbe- of extreme downsice scena~os anc the Group Nas continuad Lo service customers anc meet
1L5 comruitments N tie current envirgnment.

Based on the work we have performed, we nave rolident:fied any matenal uncertainties relating to events or cordit ons that, indivicually or
collect vely, may cas® sigmificant caubt on the group and parent Ccompary's ab uty T continue as a going concern for the pericd end:ing 28 March 2023

Qur responsibiities and the responsibilibies of the directors with respect to going concern are gescribed in the rewevant sections of this report, Howeve-,
hecause rot auv future evenis or conditions can be predicted. this statement 1= noOt 2 quaraniee as to the group's ability "o continue as a gaag concerr

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope - wWe performet full scope audit of four components of the Group

- UK careirsurance (Persanal Assurarce Ple),

Guernsey core insurarce {Personal Assurance [Guernseyi L mited),

IT salary sacrif ce (PG Let's Connect IT Solutions Limted),
- Software as 3 service iPersoral Management Sclutiors Limited), and

In addinion, we parfor~ed audit prececures on specif c oalarces for nnecto 2eople Consulting Limited, ircluded in the
Group componert Software as aservice

- Thacompanents where we performed full or specific audit proceaures accountec for 98% of tne Group revenue and 95%
of the Group profit before tax

Key auc't matters - Waluation of PG Let's Conrectgoocw U

- Valuation of Innecto goodw . and ather intangible assets.

Materality - Overallgroup materality of £219,000 (2020 £430,000)which represents 5% {2020 5%) of consoligated prof £ netore tax.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT continuged

An overview of the scope of the parent Company and Group audits

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit nisk, our evaluation of materalty ana our allocation of performance matenality determine aur audit scope for each campany
witnntne Group Taken together, this enables us to form an comion or the consoludated firancial siatemerts We take Into account Size, nsk profle, the
arganisation of the group and effectiveness of group w.de controus, changes i the pusiness environment and otner factors sucn as recert Internal audit
resutts when assessing che tevel of work to e performedar each company.

In 33525540G [he nsk of material mrsstatement to tre Group finarcial statemerts, and to ensure we had adequate quanttative coverage of signficant
accountsin the finangia. statements, we ident.fied five reportirg componernts of the Group Of the five components selected, we performed an audi of
trecompeete fiaanaal infarmation of four comoanants | full Stopa companents”; which vare selected based on tner sriZe o risk characterstics The fuil
SCOPE COMPOnerts are LIK eore nsurance [Persanal Assurance plol, Guernsey core nsurance [Personal Assurance iGuernsey) Lmitec), IT salary sacrifice
(PG Let's Connect IT Soluticns Limited), and Software as a service (Persanal Managemnent Sowt.ons Limited onlyl. ir additucn, for tne remaining one
compaonent, Software s a service ('rnecta People Corsulting Limited: (specific scope componert’), we performed aud't procecures or soecific
accourts that we cops.gered had the potental for tne greatest impact o1 the s:grif cant accounts i the financial statements eicher because of the s.ze
of these accounts or therr risk prafile.

For the current year, the full scope components contnbutea 88% 12020 96%) of the Group's profit before tax and 98% 12620 28%; of the Groud's
Revenue The specific scope comopanent contributen &% of the Group's profit before tax 2020 3%)and 2% of the Groun's Revenue (20207 1% Tre audit
scape of these components miay not have .nciuded testng of all signif.cant accounts af the camognent tut witl have contrinuted ta the coverage of
significant accounts tested for the Group

The charts 2elow llustrate the coverage obtamed from the work performed by our aud't teams

Profit before tax Revenue
1l 88% Full scope compenents M 9B% Full scope compenents
036% Specific scope compenents [12% Specific scope compenents
B 6% Other procedures 0% Other procedures
Inval: with P t teams

I 25TA00 17 NG OUr GVeral. aporeacn *o the Group aucit, we determirea the Type of work tnat needed to be undertaken at each of the components hy us,
as the pr Mary audit engagement [8ar, OF by COMponent aumitors from otner £Y glopai netwok firms operal ng Lnger our Inst ucion

Cf the four ful. scope comporerts, audit procedures were perfarmec on three of these directly by the primary augt team, £Y U<, whilst audit
procedures gn tha remaming ¢gne corpenent (Pe~scnal Assurance (Guenseayi L mitea) were perfarmed oy [he comparent audit team, EY Guernsey. We
determireq tne goproprate .evel of ruolvement to enaple us 10 determyre et sufficent audir ev dence had peen sbraned as abas.s for our oo Por on
the G-oup as a whole 'We prowvided detalled andi® irs7ruct ors 20 EY Guernsey wnich nctudec gudance or areas of focus. inciud ng the ~elevant rsks of
matenat mvssiatement, 2nd setout the rformation “equired o be reparted Lo us We held discuss.ons with the companent team Lhrougrous £1e audit
anc mev ewec their cey Wwao'k ng 2apers. Due 1o tre dandenig, the Uk promary aucit Team cid ngtvisiz Guernsey and corcucted the aud Lwitr the gV
Guernsey teariremgotey This together with tae adaitional orecedures perfermed atGroup 'evel, gave us 2dproprate evidence for cur 0pnIcn or the
Group fimanc a. siztements

Climate change

Taere ~as been ncreas ngirteresl oM siakenoidens as to how Camate chargew [ Mpact compar-es e Group nas ceterm ~ec t~at the pnysica.and
Lr3nSnon N5es from £l mate charge £o rot CuTTartly pose & matenal ©sk 1o the Group Thisis explaned on page 83 nthe Accountng Do.ies, whiea form
nariof tneOther aformat on’rather tnan “re aucited faarca. siatements. Our procadures pn tnese a.sclosures Tnerefore cars sted sowely of

cors.cer ng wnether they are mateniauy reanssientwitn Tnet narcial stetements 0 our <now .eage oblz ned N the causse of the aud.t or otherwise
apoear Lo pe mate- ally Tusstared
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Qur zudit effort In considering climate change was fecused on challenging management'sr sk assassment of theimpact of physical and Transition « sks
and the “esulting conclusion that there was no mates al mipact frem climate change and the adeguacy of tre Group's dsclosures on page 83 of the

finzncal statements which explain the rationdle

Key audit matters

Key audi matzers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most s gficance ir our auait of the finarcia. statements of the current
period and include tne most significant assessed risks of material russtatement fwaether or wot due to fraud) that we dentified These matters included
those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strateqy, *he al.ocation of resources nthe audit, and direct ~g the efforts of the engagement
team Tnese matters were addressea in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awbcle, and in our opinion tnereor, and we do 1ot

provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Risk

Qur response to the risk

Key observations communicated to the
Audit Committee

Valuation of PG Let's Connect Goodwili
(2021: £10.6m, 20:20: £10.6m)

We consider the risk associated with the
vafuation of PG Let's Connect goadwili to
have incregsed os g result of increased
uncertainty over the future cash flow
projections due to the COVID-13 pandemic.

Refer to Accounting policies {page 84); end
Note 14 of the Consolidated Financial
Stotements (pages 92 to 101).

The PG Let's Connect goodw iLarising or
consol:dation rearesents the excess of the
costs of acquisition over the Group's
nterest in the fair value of the identified
assets and liab Lt-es at the date of
acquisition of PG Let’'s Conrect in 2074

The PG Lets Connect goodwill balance as at
31 December 2027 s significant based on ' ts
size relative to tne total assets of the Group.

Based on our ororyear expenence and the
updated current year cansiderat grsincluding
the impact of the COVID-19 pandem ¢ and
global supply cnaininterruptions, we consider
che followwirg key 2ssumptions Lo nave the
mast sigrificant mpacton the PG Let's
Connect goodwili valuaticn

- Discountrate
- ~uture cask flow forecasts

These key assumations invo ve signif cant
Judgement about future events forwnich
smell changes carresult :r a material mpact
to the resultant valuation and therefore teads
tc a greater risk of materal misstaternent

To obtain sufficient audit evidence ta conclude on the
vatuatign of PG Let's Connect goodwill, we performec the
fol.owing proceagures

- £xamined ang assessed the aporoanateness of
management's impairment model, including an
wdentification of the cash generating unit (CGUY and
attributable cashflows, an assessment of discounted casn
flows, and understand'ng of the sign-Ficant assumptiors
used In zhe mpairment test for the igent f-ed CGU,

- Considered the increased uncertainty in the urderly ng
forecasts and challenged the future cash flow projections
of the CGu, includirg the appropriateness of the apolec
short-term and long-term growth rates and estimates
CONversion rates;

- Engaged EY valuation sperial.sts [o a5sess the
reascnableness of the discount #ate by considering the
CGU's specfic crcumstances as well as comparable
companies,

Performed sensitivity analysis to assess the impact of
certain key variables on levels of headroom, including
discountrate anc growth assumptions, and

L

audit'ng standard - |54 540 {Rewvised; duditing Aczounting
Estimaotes and Related Drsclosures

Considered whether the applied accourting treatmenrtisie
compliance witn the applicable sccounting framewo k and
tne Groun's accounting policy and the Group disclosu e 1$in
iirewith the required reporting framewo « and the revised

Wwe are satisfied that there 1s no impairment
and the car-ying value of the goodwill 1s
aporopriate as at 31 December 2027
However, this assumes the ongoing ‘mproved
future trading af PG Let's Connect foliowing
the COVIZ-1G aandemic and global supply
chaininterrupions. The Ziming and scale of
the CGU's future growth s currently
urcertain, particular.y wth respect te e
speed at which the business' cash flows will
revert to pre-CovID-18 levels and historicac
growth trends [disclosed in Note 14 of the
financialstatements) Delay Ir this recavery
could have a significant adverse impact on
the future cash flows of the PG Let's Cannect
CGU and may affect the future carrying valug
of the goodwill

We have -ev.ewed the related d.sclosures anc
concluded that these accurate y “eflecr tne
uncertairty associated with the future cask
flows of the Let's Conrect CGU, as wellasthe
sensitiyities and key assumptions
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT continued

Risk

Qur response to the risk

Key observations communicated to the
Audit Committee

Valuation of Innecto goodwill and other
intangible assets (2021 £2.6m, 2020: £2.8m)

We consider the tisk associated with the
valuation of Innecto gocdwill and other
intangible ossets to hove incregsed as o
resulr of incregsed uncertainty over the
future cash flow projections due to the
COVID-19 pandernic.

Refer to Accounting policies (puge 84); and
Naote 14 of the Consolidated Financig!
Statements {pages 99 to 101).

The Inrecto goodwalarising gn
Conselication represents the excess of the
costs of aCquismion aver the Group’™s
inrerestir the fair vawe of tae wentifed
assets and labilinies at the gate of
acguis.t o1 of Innectoin 2019

We cons der Ihe valuation of Inrecto
gocew lland otherintangible assetstone a
significant ~sk for the Groun Specifically,
discount raze and short-term and long-term
g owthrates nave the most significant
impactan the vawanon

Tne value of the nrecto goocwill was migst
sensinve Lo “ne discourt rate and The
short-term growth rates of the gigtal sales
The forecastec casn flows were depencent
ontnhere patform-ng of Innecro's d.qital
pay managemert suite 12020, which was
delayed further rto 2021 due to COVIE-19.
Tne applied ciscount mate Took into accourt
heexistirguncestainties aroung the future
casn flows Cu’rert 20271 forecasts show a
more positive outlogk for Irnecto, but due
o COVIC-19 5t (Limpacting the business's
abty To geErerate nevy business,

uncerta 1ty related to the future casn f.ows
and sers.tivity o tne d:scount rate cont nue
Lo remannr

Tre dent fied key assurmpl ors Wwo.ve

s gficant judgment about futu-e everts
for wmicn smal cnanges can resuit in a
mater al moact to L1e resulidnl valuatc
anc trerefare leads to a greater ~isk of
matenz. msstarement

To obtain sufficient audit evicence to concluge o™ the
valuation of Goodwill at the yedr end, we perfoimed the
follow:ng proceaures

Examired and assessed the appropriateress of
~anagement’s imparrment model, ‘neluocing en
dentfication of the cash generating uniz ‘'CGL ) and
attributable casnf.ows, an assessment of discourted cash
flows, and uncerstanc ng of tne signif cant assumpriors
usec ' the imparment test for theicentfied CGU;

Consicerec the ingreased uncertanty in the uncerlying
forecasts and cna.lenqed the future cash flow projections
of the CGU, including tne aporoprialeness of the aoplied
sngre-termand long-termgrowth “ates and estmatec
convers Gnrates,

Engaged F¥ vgluation special $175 T0 assess e
regsonableness of the discountrate and ¢rowtnrates oy
caonsiderirg tne CGU's specif ¢ crcumstances as well as
comparasle cormaan es,

Pecformed sensitiviTy analysis to assess the mpact of
certan key variaoles on .evels of neadroom, rcluding
d scount rate anc growth assumplions, and

Considered whether the appliec acCourting treatmentis in
compliance with the applicable account ng framework and
e Group's accounting pol Cy and the Group disc.osure 15 1n
une w th the reguirec report ng framewok anc the revised
auditingstandard 154 540 {Revised) Auditing Accounting
Estimates and Related Disclosures.

Wi are satisfied that there1s "0 1mpairment
and the carryrg value of the goodwill s
appropriate as ot 31 Deceriber 2027, However,
this assumes ongoing grow th witnip the COU
following the COVIR-"8 pandemig {d-sciosed n
Note 14 of tme financal statemerts) Jelay in
the post COVID-19 recovery could have a
significant adverse rmpact or the future cash
flows of The Innecto CGU and may affect tne
future carry ng value of the goodwill,

Wwe have reviewed the relatec disclosures arca
corclicec that these accurately refiecttne
uncertairty associated with the future cash
flows of the Innecta CGU, a5 well 25 the
sensitiy ties and key assumprions
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Our application of materiality
we apoly the concept of matenality nplanning ard oerformung the aumt, in evaluatng tre effect of idenufied misstatermnents on the audit and in
forming our audit oginion

Materiality
The magnitude of on omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of the users of the financig! statements. Materiality provides o basis for determining the nature and extent of cur audit procedures.

we determ.ned materiality for the Group to be £219,00C (2020 £430.000), whith s 5% 12020 5% of the consolidated profit oefore tax. The Group has
been profitable gver a number of years ard we judge tne focus of shareholders to be the Group's profitabuity and earnings per share While COV'C-18 nas
impactec the profit before tax, we consider that it remains the most appropriate bas:s to determire mateniality for the Groun.

We ceteravaed maternality for the Parent Company to be £250,000 12020, £260,000), which 15 1% {2020 1%) of the Parert Compary equity We nave used
tne capital based measure for dete miring materiality due to the Parent Company n8ing a nolding company

Dur ng tne course of our audr’, we reassessed INitisl material ty and concluded that mater ality assessed at planring stages of our audit remaired
appropriate.

Wwe 3,50 reassessed imit.al matenaaty for the Group from £244 000 to £2°9,000 due to a cecrease in the Group's profit before tax oetwesn the
intenm forecast amount (uoon which the imitial materal was basec) ana the year-erd actual. We reassessed our audit procedures as a "esult of the
decrezsed materiabity

We also reassessed Ir tial matenauty for the Parent Company from L266,000 to £250,C00 cue to a decrease in the Parent Company's equity between
30 September 2021 {upon which cur initial materiality was based] and 31 December 2021 We corsidered tne.mpact of this on the extent of our auc't
orocedures

Performance materiality
The application of materiality at the individual aooount ar balance {evel. §t1s set gt an amount to reduce to an apprepriately low levei the probability that
the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiglity.

Onthe basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group's overall cont ol environmant, our pudgment was that performance
materality was 75% (2020 75%) of our plarning matenality, namely £165,000 (2020 £323,000) We have set performance matenality at this percentage
as we have notidentified any s greficart errors in the Drior year audits

Audit work at compenent locatiors for the purpase of obtain ng audit coverage over sigmficant finarcial statemert accounts 1ISundertacen based on a
percentage of total performance matenality The performance materality set for each component s based on the relative scale and nsk of the
compenent b the Group as & whole and our assessment of the nisk of misstatement az that component Inthe current year, the range of performarce
materiality allocated to componerts was £33,0600 to £765,000 (2020: £32,000 o £275,000].

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Cammitiee that we would repo T ta them all uncorrected audit aifferences in excess of £11.000 (2020 £22,000) for the Group
and inexcess of £12.000 (2020 £°3,000) for tne Parert Company, wh ch s set at 5% of planning materality, as well a5 d fferences below that threshold
"nat, Inour v ew, warrgnted reportirg or qualitative grounds

we evaluate ary uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of mateniality discussed acove and in Lght of otner retevant

qualitative consideratiors .0 form ng our opinion

Other information
The cther infarmation comprses the information included in the annual report set gut on pages * Lo 62, other than the financial staterments and our
aud tor's repert thereon The cirectors are responsible for the other irformaton withn the anrualrepor T

Cur opinien on tne finarcial siatemerts coes not cover the other nformatior and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated ir this reoort, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereor
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Our -esponsibility 15 10 reaa tne otier informat on and, 1IN doing s¢, consider whethes tne other nformation s matenialy nconsistentwetn the f nancia.
staternents or our knowledge obtaned .n the course of the auait or therwise 30pears (o e matenaly misstated If weicentfy such maternal
INnconsistenc es or apparent maternal missiatements, we are required to determire whether this gives rse to a material misstaterent in the financiay
statements themselves, If, based on the wor< wa have performed, we conclude that tnere is a matenal nsstatement of the ather information, we are
requred toreaort that fact

We have nothing to report e thes regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
nour opinion, pased on the work undertaken in the course of the audit
- theinfermatior given in the strategic report and tne directors' report for the fingncial year for wnichk tne financ.al ststements are prepared Is

consistent wirh the financial statements, and

- thestrateg ¢ renort and directors' report have been prepared ir accordance with applicable legal require™erts

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the Lght of the knowledge and understanting of tre group and the parent Comp4dny ana s environmertobtained in the course of the audit, we have

notidentifiec material misstatements in the strateqic recort.or the d recrors' reoort,

We have 1otming Lo eport inrespert of the fallowng matters in relation o which the Comoanies Act 2006 requires Us to réport to youf, nour opinicn

- acequate accounting records have rot been kept by Tha parent company. or "etuns doequate for our aucit nave rot been recerved fombranches not
viIs ed Jy us, or

- the parent company financ'al statements are no%In agreement with the accountirg records and returns, of

- certan disclosures of directars' remunerat on specified by law are not made, or

- we have nctrecewved all the nformation and explanations we ~equire far our audit

Responsibilities of directors

£5 explained more fully in the directars’ cespansibilites statement set cut o0 0age 65, the airectors are mesponsible for the preparation of the firancial
statements and for beirg satisfied that they gwve a true and fair view, and for suctinternalcortrol as the cirectors determing 1s necessary to enab.e the
oreparation of financ.al stazements tnat are free from matenial misstatement, whethe' due to fraud or errer

In prenaring the financal statements, the directars are resporsible for assessing the group and parent company’s atili™y L0 cont 1ue 85 a go.ng concerr,
aisclosing, s applicable, matters relaten to gong concern ard Usng tne 4 ng ConCerm Dasis of accountirg unless te directors eitna intenc o Lgu-date
trg group Or the ga-ent company 4« Lo cease operat ons, o7 hiave Po reaustic aiternative but 1o do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our object ves are 10 ohtain 72asonanie assurarce about wnethes tne firarcal staterients as a wnole ate free from materal m sstatement, whetner aue
o fraud of errgr, and 0 issue an auditor's report that inclugces our ooimon Reasonabie assurarce s anigh level of assurance. butis not 4 guarantee that
ar auchit conductec naccordarce w th ISAs (UK) will aiways detect a mater.al missZatemantwhen 12 ex sts

M ssratements car arse from Frauc or error and are cansicered mater alif, nd.w dually of in the aggregate, they could reasonabiy De exoected 10
irflugnce TNe ecoromic deqisions of users taken on tne dasis of these f nancial statements

Explanation as to whot extent the audit was idered capable of detecting irregularities, including froud

We cbtaired an undestanaing of the lega: and reguiatory Framewarks that a7e aopucab.e te the group arg determined ITnat the directlaws 2nd
regu:ations related o elemensts of Compdry :aw ard tax .egis.ation, and the finang a "eocrt.ng framevwsork, Du- cons.ceranions of Grner .aws and
eqgulations that May rave 3 Matera, effect or the f nanc.al statemerts Inclucad permissions and supe visory -ecwremerts of the Bruderial
Regulatior Autronty (PRAY, t1e Firancia. Concuct Authanty 'FCAY and the Gue nsey Firanc al Sy cas Co™Mmiss o 1'GFSCh

- weurderstood now the Campany s comaly.ng wTh tngse framaworks oy makirg enquiries of managemert, ard through d scussiors w th those
chargedw Ingoverrance. We alsg rev ewed correspondence betweaen tre Comnany and tne egulalory boC es, rev.ewed mrules of sne 3carg and
“he R sk and Comaaance Comm™ TTee; anc ga 1ed an understard ng of tThe Company's 3pproacn Lo govertarce, cemarsiratec oy the Boarc’s aporova.
of mhe Compary's governznce framewok
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- We assessed “he susceptibiity of the Groun's finannial st atements to materia. rmisstatement, including how fraud might occur by corsideing the
controls that the Compary nas establ shed to andrass risks dentified by the entity, or that gtherw se seek to prevent, deter or cetect fraud Wnere
frauansk, Incluging the nsk of management overnide, was considerad to be higher, we pe-formea audit procecures te acdress each dantified - sk
These procedures inrcluded:

- Zeyewing estimates for evidence of management 5ias. SUpperied oy our valuation spec alists, we assessed if there were awy indicaters of
mManagernent ias i1 Lhe vdluat on ot goodwill
Testing the appropriatensss of journal entries recorded ntne general ledger, with a focus on manual ournads ard evaluat ng the busingss ratianale
for s gificant and/or unusual transactions

Inadditior, we considered the ongoing iImpact of Cowvid-19 on the Group, Including an assessment of the conssténcy of cperations and group-wide
contros 0 place as trey continued to operate remotely for a significant proportion of 2027, and making enquings with management via use of
videccorferencirg We performed analytica. review procedures to assess for unusual movements theoughout the year, Qur 2udit procecures also
incoroorate unprediciabiliny nto the nature, timing and extert of our test ng

We designed our aucit procedures toicenrtify non-compuance with both direct and gther Laws and regulations including those at the components. Qur
procedures iInvolved making enguiry of those cnarged with governance and senar management for their awareness of any non-compnance of Laws of
regulabors, nguinng about tne po! cigs that have been established to prevent ron-complance with 1aws and regulations oy of ficers and employees,
IrquIr-g abeut the company's methoes of enforaing and monitonng compliance with such nolicigs, inspecting signficant correspanderce with the
FCA, tne PRA and the GFSC.

The Company operates ir the insurance Indusiry whichis a highly regulated envirgnment. 45 such the semor Statutary Auditor considered the
experience and expert.se of the engagemert team [0 ensure that the team had the aporopriate competence ard capaibities, which mc.uded the use
of specialists where appropriate.

A further description of our respensibiuzies for the audit of the financial statements s located 61 tne Financial Repor ting Counail’s webs.Te at
notps, Swww.fre org.ux/auditorsrasporsiblities, This description forms part of our auditor's report,

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the compary's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames ACt 2006, Our audit work has
been undertaken so thal we rmight state to the company's membears those matters we are regu red Lo state 1o themin ar auditor's report and for no
otner purpose To the fullest extert per~utted Dy 3w, we do Nt accept or assume respons.ility to anyone other than the company @na the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Robert Bruce {Senior statutory auditor)
for and on benalf of £rrst & Young LoP, Statutory Auditor Londen

28 Marcn 2022
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CONSCLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Restated*
2021 2020
Note £'000 £'000

Gross premiums written 25,050 29,285
m;ard réinsurance premlums_— - - (163} (—187]
Change In unearngd premums (203) T (245)
age n re:‘nsurérs' share of r;nnearned pr;em:ums ’ T (1)) i8)
€arned premiums net of reinsurance 57 24,670 ZS‘E
Employee henefits and services Income 5 22,753 19,649
Voucherresale income T 5 26,852 22,735
Otherincame T - 5 - 215 ;1;
anestmentmcome—— T - !—;—— 23 T
Group revenue 74,513 7524
Claimsincyrred 7 (6,049) (70371
Insurance Oﬁeratnﬁg expenses T 8 {3.B6D) !4E
Emplo;oenTﬂts and services expenses T 5 {22,370) —79,890]'-
7Vaucher resale expenses - - {26,894) (22.9979]
Other expenses T - T 82 (E
Grou:; adrministration e;penses T *—5—— E? _—(S,FL\
Share based payments expenses - 22 169) E
7@&[& donatlo;m\\ T T (100} (1OT)
Group expenses (70,139} 162,884)
Operating profit 4,374 8630
me casts T (321 E
-Pruﬁt before tax S - 4,342 8‘5?
Taxation n (745) 1,663)
Protit for the yaar 3,597 &894
The profit for the yeas 15 attrautab.e to equity howders of Sersona. Group Helc.ngs Pic

Earnings per share Pence Pence
Basic 12 s 221
Eluted T T T 12 —;TS 221

Trare s rgcther comorenensye income for Tne year ang, as 3 -asult, no statemert of comorebens ve ircome ras been procuced

* while treresu s remar unchanged, the presertal on of the pr or year 13s been mestated o add clarty o the "eader See hate 2.23 for fu ther cetails

The accomoany ng accountirg pol cies ard retes form an ntagrs. part of trese financ a. slatements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET at 31 becempe- 2021

2021 2020
Mote £'000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets ) o
Goodwill o W'Z‘Lﬁ - 12,696 12,696
Int‘a:gﬁjle as-s?t;_ T 15 1,637 1,254
Property, plant and equwpmen£ ' 16 5,033 5 456
7 i 19,366 19,406
Current assets
Financial investments T 17 2,596 2587
Trade and other receivables ’ T 19 14,035 18,346
Reinsurance assets 20 108 78
Inventones 18 N 7":9—3— B 261
Casn and cash equivalents 21 720,291 17,589
Current tax assets 310 55
) & 38,238 39,576
Total assets 57,604 58,922

The accompany:ng accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET continued for the year endec 3* December 2¢2°

2021 2020
Note £'000 £'000
EQUITY
Equity attributable ;.n equity holders of Personal Group Holdi;\gs Plc
Share capital N B 22 1,561- 1,561
Share prerium ) 22 1,134 1134
Share based payment Vr;serve 7 ’ 158 -
Capital redemptn;n reserye 24 24
Other reserve T {32) 21
Profit and toss rese.r-veﬁi B 18,436 38,076
Total equity 41,281 40,774
LIABILITVES
Non-current liabilitl;s
Deferred tax labilties ) 23 478 39¢
_1-'|:ade and other payables 24 402 352
Trade and other p-ayawbles | 24 12,356 14,274
(nsurance contract luab;l-it;és ) - 25 3,087 7 3123
15,443 17,387
Total liabilities : ) 16,323 18148
Total equity and Liabitities 57,604 58,922

The firancial statements were aoproved by the Board o~ 28 March 2022,

SV Ce

5 Mace
Chef Finarcia: OFficer

»’,”/( %J’i_,,
D Frost
Chef Executive

Compary number 3194391

The accomparyirg acccunting po.c es and notes form ar niegraloart of Tnese frnarcia. statements




Overview Strategic Report Governance P FinancialStatements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note £'000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-curvent assets“ B
Investment in subsidir.rar;f undertakings 26 25,203 25,045
25,203 25,045
Current assets
Trade and other receivabies o 'g - 192 1278
Cash and cash equivalents - 21 19 T 92
n 1,370
Total assets o 25,514 ) 26,415
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity l\older; of Personal Group Holdings Ple
Share capital ) - 22 1,561 1,561
Share premium 3‘27_“- 1,134 1134
Share based payment reserve o o 158 -
Capital redemption reserve o i - 24 24
Ozh;r re;erve _(3;) (21)
;r—o—’fif‘aunél fpssreserve 22,;':;2 23142
Total equity 25,017 25 840
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities B
Trade and other payables o 24 497 575
Total tiabilities 497 575
Total equity and liabilities 25,514 26,415

The parent Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 ard nas not -ncluded its own profitand loss accountin these financial
szatemerts. The oaert Comoany's profit for the year was £2,278,000 (2020 £2,885,000).

The financia: statements were approved by the Board on 28 Maren 2622

Ay
SWNICACs J b
SMace D Frost
hiet Financia: Officer Crief Executive

Company number. 3794591

The accompanying account ng policies 2nd notes form an nzegral part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQU'TY for the year erded 31 Decemper 2021

Equity attributable to equity holders of Personal Group Holdings Plc

Capital Share Based

Share redemption Payment Other Profit and Total

Premium reserve Reserve reserve loss reserve equity

£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £'000

Balance as at 1Januwary 2021 1134 24 - 21 38,076 40,774
Dividends paid - - - - (3,244) (3,244)

Employee share-based compensation - o 158 - il 169
Proceeds of SIP* share sales - 7— - - 24 27

Cost of 5IP shares sold o - - 7 - 28 (28] -
Cost of SIP shares purchased o - - | - (39 - (39)
Transactions with owners - - 158 m) (3,237} (3,090)

Profit for the year - - - - 3,597 3,597

Balance as at 31 December 2021 1134 224 158 {32) 38,436 41,281

Equity attributable to equity holders of Personal Group Holdings Plc
Capital

Share Share redemption Other Profit and Total

capital Premium reserve reserve lossreserve equity

£'000 E'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Balance as at 1 January 2020 1,561 1134 24 (230} 35,526 38.015
Dividends paid - - - - {#147) {4.147}

Employee share-based compensation - - - - 8 8

Proceeds of SIP~ share sales - - - - 26 26
Cost of SiP shares sold - - - 231 (2371) N_—
Cost of SiP shares purchased - - - - {22} - 72727}7
Transactions with owners - - - 209 4,344) (4,135)

Profit for the year - - - - €894 6,894

Balance a5 at 31 December 2020 1,561 1,134 24 (21 38,076 40,774

©Nsshae lwnen b dar s

Tne accomparying 3ccount ng 2oliKigs 310 agtes forman ntegra. par: of these fnarc.dal stetemerts
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the year endec 31 Decemoer 2021

Equity attributable to equity holders of Personal Group Holdings Plc

Capital ShareBased Profit and

Share Share redemption Payment Other loss Total

capital Premium reserve Reserve reserve reserve equity

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

Balance as at 1January 2021 1,561 1134 24 - 127 23142 25,840
Dividends paid - - - - - (3,244) (3.244)
Employee share-based compensation - - - 158 - 7 - 158
Praceeds of 5IP* share sales - - - - - - ) 24 24
Cost of 5IP shares sold - - - - 28 28) -
Cost of SIP shares purchased T - - - __tr : {39) - 7 "139]
Transactions with owners - - - 158 1) {3.248) {3,101}
Profit for the year - - - - - 2,278 2,278
Balance as at 31 December 2021 1,561 1134 24 158 {32) 22172 25,017

Equity attributable to equity holders of Personal Group Holdings Plc

Capital Profit and

Share Share redemption Other loss Total

capital Premium reserve reserve reserve equity

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance as at 1January 2020 1,561 1,134 24 {230) 24,601 27,090
Dividends paid - - - - 14,147) 14,147)
Employee share-based compensation ) - - - - B g8
Proceeds of SIP* share sales -— ‘ - - - 26 26
Cost of SIP shares solg -_ o - - 221 (231) -
Cost of SIP shares purchased ’ - - - {221 - 221
Transactions with owners - 209 (4,344) (4,135
Profit for the year - - - - 2,885 2,885
Balance as at 31 Decémber 2020 1,561 1134 24 21 23,142 25,840

I anare D i 2lan s, o)

The accomp2nying accounting pol cies and notes form an ntegral part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2021 2020

Note £000 £'000

Net cash from operating activities {see next page) 7,588 8,100

Investing activities

Additions to property, plant and e_qmpment T 16 '(236) [347)

:ddvtmns to intangible assats 15 (981) (424)
7Dr0-:eeds from disposal of propert-y,plant and equipment 1 3;
Purchase of ginancial assets - - {9) [2727
?terest recewe-d - - i ) 6 23 74—
Net cash from nvesting activities {1,202} (337}

Financing activities

Férest paid 7 V V - 2 (21_
;ur:nase of own shares by the SJP*- ‘ - [35) [227
-Droceeds from dispos-alaf own shares by th;SID' 20 ;
?ayment aflease liabilities ) 7 30 (42;1} {511)7
EI\HGEHGS paid ) - ) 14 {3,244) - (4,‘\4;

Net cash used in financing activities {3,684) (4,658)

MNet change in cash and cash equivalents 2,702 3713
?ash and casl; tquivalents, beginning of year 21 17,555 14,47;

Cash and cash aquivalents, end of year 21 20,291 17,589

BEShigire s ey e shIL lgr s

The accompanry ng accourting policias and rotes form anintegra: part of these Fanc al statements
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2021 2020

Note £'000 £'000
operating activities
Profit after tax B 3,597 6,894
Adjustments for B T
Depreciation 15 966 B 1,003
Amortisation of intangible assets 15 585 —.E
Profit or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment " [1§J
Interest received 23) (74}
Interest charge ) 7 32 73
Share-based payment axpenses 5 169 8
Taxation expense recogmnised In income statement n 7 745 1663
Changes in working capital )
Trade and other recaivabies B ;,;BD 247
Trade and other payables (1,817} N ;87
Inventories 37) (115}
Taxes pad {920) (2,303)
Net cash from operating activities 7,588 8,100

The accompanying sccounting a0ucies anc 1otes form anintegral part of these firancial stalements.
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COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2011 2020
Note £'000 £'ooc

Net cash from operating activities (see below) 786 1570
Investing activities T

Dividends recaived - 2,500 4,000
Net cash used ininvesting activities 2,500 4,000
Financing activities

Purchase of own shares by the SIB- “(35) (22}

Proceeds from disposal of own shares by the SIP* 20 26

Dividends paid 12 (3,244) 14,147}
Net cash used in financing activities (3,259) (4,143}
Netchange in cash and cash equivalents 27 (73}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 21 92 165
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 21 119 92
Operating activities
Profit after tax 2,278 2,885
Changes in working capital

Trade and other receivables 1,086 1,792

Trade and other payables {78) (607)

Dividends recerved {2,500) 4.000)
Net cash from operating activities 786 1,570

EORAr e neePug kan s

The parent Company has cash and cash equivanerts a2 310ecember 2021 irClucing £50,000 (2020 £7.000) of Company’s owr cash anc £69.000 [£85,000)
resating ro the purchase and sale of SIP snares by the employee berefit trust,

Tne accempanying accounting pelicies anc notes farm anintegral part of these fmancal statemenss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statements

Governance

1 General information

Tne principal activities of Persaral Group Holdings 2lc ("the Company " and
subsid-aries (tegetner "the Group”linciude transacting short termacoident
ard nealth nsurarce and provicing employee sevices in the LK

The Campary s aumited Labiuty company mworparatec ana aom ciled in
Zngland. The address of its ~egisterad of f ce s John Ormond House, 899
Silbury Boulevard, Miton ¥eynes, MK 3XL

The Cembany is Listed on the alternative Investment ¥a-ket of the _ondon
Stock Zxchange.

These financial statements Fave been approved for issue by the Board of
Crrectors on 28 March 2022

2 Accounting policies

These financial statements of Persorat Group Holdings P are for the year
ended 31 Jecember 2021 The finarcial statements are prepared ir
accordance with U< ercorsed IFRS nconform ty with the reguirements of
Companes Act 2006.

The Group s 2ware that IFRS 17 - Inzsurance Contracts s to e e™%ective for
penogs from A Jansary 20223 2ased cnareview f she current cubuc
information tisrotbeaeved t-at the accou-ting for the Group's nsurance
conzrz2ts will change matena.ly due to the sho-; tas nature of those
contracts tweth the exception of employee default insurance whichis
unlikely to be mater alj although disciosures are expected to be adjusted
for new terminclogy and adait anal disciosure requirements Likely to

be required

2.1 Basis of preparation

The functional anc presentational currency of the Group s sterling These
statements and the prior year comparat ves have been aresented to the
nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated

In preparing these consglidated financial statements, management has
made judgements, estimates and assumpnions that affect the

acphication o the Group's accown™mg policies and ths recorted amount of
assets, labilities. iIncome and expenses Actualresults may differ from
these estimates

Estimazes and underlying assumptLions are reviewed on an ongoing basis
Rev siors to estimates ate recognised praospectively.

Climate Risk

In preparing these firancial statements the directors nave considered tne
impact of the physicat and trans tion sks of climate change, but Fave
concluded that 1t does not Fave d matenalimpact on the recognit onand
measurement of the assets anad Liatii-ues ir these financial statements as at
31Decemoe” 2021 This 1s necause the assets are reported ot fair value under
Uk endorsed IFRS Market onices weloinclude the current expectations of the
raact of cimate change an these invesiments, Insu-ance .abilities are
accrued pased on past nsurable events sowill not be impacted by any future
mpact of cimate change. However, we recognise that governmert ard
socetal responses to climaze change r sks are still developing anc tne future
impact cannot be oreciczed Future valuat ons of assets may therefare differ
a5 TNe marker responds o (hese Cnarg.ng Impacts or assesses the, Mmoact of

current requ ~ements ¢ fferently and the freguency / magnituce of furure
rsuranle events anked to the effect of camate risks cou.d charge

Judgements

Intermatior apout judgements made . napplyirg account ng poagies that
nave the most s anificant effects or o amounts recogrisedin the
consolidated firancial statementsisincluded in tae following notes.

- Agenivsprincipal (Note 2 22) - whether the sale of discountec vouchess
stiould be treated as a principal or agency transactian

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information apout assumptions and est matior uncertairties that have a
sign ficant r.sk of resulting .0 a material adjustment to the cary ng
amounts of 3s558ts and Labilities wizhin tne year ending 31 December 202715
included in the following notes

Goacwill vawatior (Note “4) - key assumptions underlying recoverabie
amourts

- Estabushing the value of clams ocutstanding iNote 23); - key assumptions
~egarding the provisions for cla ms

Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on a gong concern basis. In
considering going concern, e Directors have reviewed the Group's and
Company's future cashreguremants, earnings projections and capital
projections over the next 12 moentns endirg 28 March 2023 Various stress
and scenario Lests have taken place to assess the potentialr mpact on the
Group of CCVID-19, considering The potentiat impact on premiums, cla:ms
and sowercy ratios for the insurance subsidiaries, together wath iguidity
and gther nor-irsurance act'vties for the w.der Group. The Directors
be.leve these forecasts have beer prepared on a prudent basis and have
alsz consicered treimpact of 8 -ange of pote~tial c—arges Lo rrading
performance aver the aext 12 maonths encing 28 March 2023, includ ng the
impacts of climate risk discussed above

Having prepared and cons.dered these stress scenarios the Directors have
concluded that the Group and Company will be able to ooerate without
requiring any external furd ng and therefore nelieve 1t 1s approprate to
prepare the financia: statements of the Group and Compary 0nagoing
concern basis. 1515 supported by tne Group's, and Company's, iguidity
position at the year erd.

2.2 Basisof conselidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities centrolled by the Group. The Group controlsarentity
when it s exposed to, or has r gnts to, varable returns from i2s nvolvement
with the entity and has the ab.lity to affect those returns through its pawer
over the entily. In assessirg cortrol, the Group takes into consideration
potential vol ng AIghts That are currently exercisable. The acquisition dates the
date or which cortrobs transferred to the acgu rer. The financial statements
ot subsidiaries are ircluded in the consolidated financial staternents fromthe
date that contrgl commences untl the date that control ceases
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2 Accounting policies continued
2.2 Basis of consolidation continued
Transactions eli don
Intra-Group balarces and transact:ons, and any unrealised income and
expenses arising from these transactiors, are el minated on consolidati.on.

1id

2.3 Goodwill and acquired intangibles

Goodwill representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over tne fa.r
value of the Group’s share of the dentifiable ret assets acquired, 15
cagital sedanc “eviewed anrually for ‘mparrment. Goodwillis carried at
cost less accumu.atea mparrment losses Negative goodwill 1s recognised
mrmediately after acquisition In the income statement

Intangibte assets meeting the relevant recogni gn critenagre intally
rISESUred at Cost NG amaorhised an a systemate 3as:s over their useful uves

2.4 Revenue

Revenue s measurey by refererce 1o tre far value of consiceration
received or receivable by the Group for goods supplied ang services
provided, excluding VAT, IPT and Trade discounts,

Whilst IFRS 15 considerations have been noted for the most significart
revente streams to wh.ohitis appucaile, the Insurance prerum reverus
stream s out of scope for IFRS 1S

Earned premium

—armed premiumis recognised in the penod inwhich the Group s legally
bound trough a contract to orQvide risurance caover, which s Typically a
week or amonthin length and renews at the enc of gach cover ner o, 1L
represents the earrec amount of gross writter premiu™s recaivable under
the contract. The remainder of g-oss wrhiten prepuums are deferred as a
provisicn for unearned premiums untl recogrised as revenue comouted on
amonthly or davy pro-rata basis. The uneared premiurm reserve 15 [yDicatly
small as z large prodortian of 300C es are weekly renewals

Netearned premiums are statec net of amounts passed to reinsurers
Premiums are shown pefore deducten of cemmission and exclude 2ny
sales-based taxes or dunies.

Other insurance related
Commissigr recavable on the renewa, of preyv ously so.d f nancizl services
arerecognised 3y tne Group as the rerewal taxes place witk tThe urce writer

1T salary sacrifice
icamig from the Jrgv-si0n of $ald-y sacrifoe technacyy products s
recoqnsedwhen the goocs are cispatched

1FRS 15 ~ IT salary sacrifice income

Performance
Cbhigations

provision of IT goods to employer companies Goods are
acquired by the Group from various suppliers and heid as
inyentory until sold to customers at an agreed price

Transaction Price  Purchase price vanes dépendant onproduct purchasad
butis clearly indicated

Allocation of Price  Prices are allocated by product, volumes and values

Satisfaction of
Qbligations

Revenue s recognised on dispatch as Group has metits
performance obhgation as per the cantracts in place

Platform income
Blatformincome, including that derived from Hao, s recognised on a
stragit- tine Basis gvar the length of the contract

Where a proporaon of this income and costs, credited or charged ir the
current year, re.ate to the provis.on of services provided n the foilowing
wyear, they are carniec forward as deferred ircome or costs, Calculated ona
daty pro-ratabass.

IFRS 15 - Benefitsincome

Performance
QObligations

Ongarrig access ta Hapt ptatform with each relevant
month access (s provided being considered a separate
performance abligation

Transaction Price  Prices are set on a by employee rate and are agreed with
each chient individually

Allocation of Price  Price altocated evenly to each period/performance
opligation.

Satisfaction of Recognised straight-tine over penod of agreement of
Qbligations sarvicg as the performance obligation is deermed to be
met each manth as the contra<t progresses

voucner .nceme denves from customers ardering retail vouchers through
the Hap p.atform Z-vouchers ace fufilled and made available Instantly 1o
the customer while, for reloadabie cards, customers receive these several
working days af .er placng tne arder. Income from the saie af reloadable
cards anc e-vouchers s recognised as orde~s ara fulf Led by the Group in
the vast major ty of rnese transact ons the Group acts as prircipal. Refer ta

2.22 for further derails of agent vs arinc.pa. assessrment

IFRS 15 - Voucherincome

Performance
Qbligations

Provision of voucher toindividuals/companigs

Transaction Price  Prices are based on each retaller's discount on purchase
Into the Group.

Allecationaf Price Whole price allocated to the sole perfarmance obligation.

Satisfaction of
Obligations

Recagnised on dispateh of voucher as thisis the point at
which the Group has fulfilled its part of the agreed
contract,

The Group receves income formits orovision of IR corsultancy se vices to
corporate cuents Corsutancy Ncome srecogrisec N the profs and oss
aCCouUNt at the -elevart charge out "ates of the Consu.Tants and basec on
thechargeabls Tirmne soert ar eacn client proect
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IFRS 15 - Consultancy income

Provision of consultancy services, typicatly based onan
agreed number of consultant hours.,

Performance
Obbigations

Transaction Price  Prices are based on each contractueal client agreement,
Adgpendant on the level and duratian of cusullant
hours spent,

Allocation of Price  Each chargeante hour will have an agreed price depandant
on the level and experience of the consultant,

Satisfaction of Each consultant hour charged is considered a separate

Obligations perfarmance obligation and recognition is recorded
periodicaily (typically monthly) based on chargeabie
hoursin that period.

Otherincome

Prope: ty rentalincome s "eCodrised on a receivaole bass when the nght
"0 receve CONSICeratior has beek estabushed

Government grants

Grants are accounted fo-under the accruals model as permitted by IFRS
Grantincome relating to the ob retentior sche™e s recogr.sed in lire with
furnough costs incurred. and therefore the accrued element 6f The grant s
inctuded in debtors as accruec iIncome

Granzs are recognised In the rCome Statement in the same perod as the
related expenaiture and netted Off aga:nst payroli costs within
administrative Costs

Costs incutred to fulfil a contrace

Costsincurred to fulfila contract under IFRS 15 are ~ecognised as an asset
under ce-tain condinons laid out in IFRS 15 95 Tne cap talised contract
COSLS are amartisec on d systemMatic basis that s consistent with the
Cempany’s transfer of the relateg goods or services ta the customer

Capetalised confract CosTS are subject to an impair ment assessment at the
erdofeachreporting penod Impairment losses are recogrused in the profic
or lass There are NG CoNTracts n the Group for wnich these corditiors are
met and, as such, N0 assets have been recognised.

Investment income
Interest income 15 recognised or an effective interest rate method.

2.5 Reinsurance

Qutwards reinsurance premiums are accounted for In the same accounting
period as the premiums for the related direct or inwards busingss beirg
reinsured. Rensurers’ share of techmical “eserves 15 shown as ar asset in tne
balance sheet.

Amounts recoverable unaer reinsurance contracts are assessed for
mpairmenrt at each oalance sneer date, If objective evidence of impair—ient
ST rensurance assets are reduced to the leve!l st which they are
considered to be recoverable 204 animpa-ment Loss 15 recogrised in the
ncome statement

2.6 Claims recognition and claims provisions

The provision for claims represents the gross estmated Lianility arsing
fror c.aim episedes in the current and prececing finarcial years whicn have
Aargiven rise to ¢la mis paid. Tne provis or ircludes an allowance for claims
~arage~ent ard hanaung expenses

The provision for clams s est mated based on current irformation, and
the ultimate L 2bilmy may vary as a “esuil of subseque~tinformarion
and averts.

Adjustments to the amourt of claims arovision far prior years a-e included
1 the income statement ir the f nancial year in wiich the ¢nange s mace.

In setturg the provisions for c.ams outstanding, a best estimare s
ceter-nned an an undiscourted bas.sand tner a margin of prudence s
added such that there s confidence that future claims will be met from the
previsions The level of prudence setis ane st provides ar appropriate
cegree of configence,

The .1ability agequacy test s pe-formed at each reported balance sheet
cate, This requires tne estimate of future cash fiows under tsirsurance
contracts to be measured agairst the ~ecagnised insurance Liablities

2.7 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Sroperty, plant and equipment and software irtangibiles are statec at cost,
ner of deprecation, amortisation ard 2~y prov sior for impairment Ng
depreciatign or amartisation s chargea during the perod of construction

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities 's recaqrised in the income statemenrt as
an expense as incurred

Expenditure on development activities s capitalised If the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group intends, and
has the rechnical ability arc sufficient resources to, complete
development, future economic benefts are probable and if the Groua can
measure reliably the expend.tures attributable tc tne intangible asset duing
15 development, Development activit esinvelve a plan or design for the
production of new or substartiailly mproved products or processes.

The expenditure capital sed includes the cost of materials, externa:
consuttancy costs and salary costs wnere a distinct procuct bas been
created. Cther development expenditure 1s “ecognised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred Captalised development expendifure
15 stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and ess accumulated
Impairment losses

Disposal of assets

The gain or loss arising or the disposal of an asset 's determined as tne
differerce between the dispgsal proceeds and the carry:ng amaunt of tne
asset ang s recognised in the iIncome statement.
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2 Accounting policies continued

2.7 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets continued
Amortisation and depreciation

Amortsation and deprecial-on are calculated townte aown the cost or
valuat an less estimated residual value of all 'ntangible assets, and tang ble
assets otner tnar freehold land excluding investment properties by equal
annual nstalments over therr esumated economic usefu,, ves

Resicual value s reviewed annually and amerded if matenal. Tnerates
generally applicasle are

Freehold properties 50 years
Motor vehicles 7 ) 3 -4 years
_Computer equlpr-nent T 2 -4 years
_Furmture, ﬂxtu.res and fittings —R years

Computer software and development 2 -4 years

Internally generated intangibles 3-Syears

Intangible assets 3 -5years

Right of Use Assets Term of Lease

2.8 Leases

Under IFRS 16, with the exception of sho t-term or low value leases, al.
ope-ating ana finarce 1€ases are accounted forin the balance shest. On
INCention of the lease, the future paymenrts, ncluairg any expeciec ena of
ufe costs, are discounted based on the mpucit interest rate in tne spec fic
lease. A "Right of Use"asset s created at an equal value depreciatec over
the life of the lease which 1s determined Dy the ContracT with any break
clauses veing reviewed as to the expected use gt tne ome of wwception and
at each followirg year end Payments made to the lesso”are debited to the
balance sheet and the iIncom™e statement s charged with montnly
deprecar onand intecest which 1s1nc.uded as fingnce costs In tne accounts,

Low value leases ar short fe leases of less than one yea- are expensed
arrectly Into thencome statément CCount on a straight une over the ufe
at the lease

2.9 Impairmaent of non-financial assets

Far the purposes of assessing imparrment, assets afe grouped at the

lowetr=1 st Dy wbic B b e Cro Are selaraieoly elent Jigs b b fones s
qgererating un tsh As aresulr, some assets are testes ind vidually for

MIR3 FMENT arc some are tested at casn-generzirg unit level Goodwil s
a.ocated to (Nose cash -gererat ngurts that are exoected 1o beref t

FOm sy arGes ot Mg relzled Dus Tess CurhingUon ard e resent e Lveest
levalwith nine Group 2t whcn maragemenr, Mgritors tha related cash flows.

Goodwil, otherindividua. assets o cash-gererat nc un 15 Tratircluce
goodwilianc those intang ble assels rot yet avallab e for use 2-e tested for
mMparmert at lgast znrually Al othernd v dual gssets 0-casn-gere-as rg
urtsare testec for mparment wherever events or cna~ges n
Creumsiancas:ng £ate trat the C2arrying amgounl may rot D8 recoverab.e
Seehgre S for further cetails on the mparmact resting of gosow: .

210 Taxation
Current tax s the fax current.y sayabie nased on taxable orof ©for the year

Geferred ncome taxes are calcuiated using the lability method ar
temaora-y c.ffarences, Deferrag tax $ gererally provided or the gifference
between the carrying amounts of assets ard .abilit es and their tax bases

However, defer-ec tax 1s not provided on the imtia! recogr-tion of goodwil.,
no”on the inr a.~ecogr.non of a1 asset or tiability unless tne related
Lransactions a ousiness combinatior ar affects tax or account.ng prof ¢

Ceferred tax on temparary differerces assacated w th shares i
subsiciares and jpint ventures s not provicded if -eversa. af these
Temporary differences can he contrailed by the Group and ris probable
that reversal wil- not occur in tne foreseeable future Inaadition, tax losses
avd lable to be carried forward as well as other ncome tax credits to the
Group are gssessed for recognit an as deferred tax assets

Deferred tax latiuties are provided ir full, with no discounting. Deferred
[ax assels are “eCognised ta the extent that its probable that the
underlying deductible temporary dfferences wiit be able to be offset
aga:nst future taxas.e mcome. Current anc ceferred tax assets and
labilites are calcu.ated at tax rates that are expected to aoply tatheir
respective peried of realisat on, proviced they ae enacted or substantively
enacted at the nalance sheet date.

2.11 Financial assets

Fifancial assets include; bank cepasits (3s cefned be.ow], 10ans and other
receivanles Financial assets are assignea to the different categories by
management onnitidLrecagmtion, depending on the purpose for whiek
they wee acquired.

Afinancial asset 1s measured at amortised castif 115 botn neld within 2
busiress mogel whose objechive 1s to rold assets to collect contractual
cash flows, and s cortractual terms give rise to casn flows that are solely
payments of principal and intecest oh the amount gutsiand.ng ~or the
Jurposes of thig assessment, “p- 1C pat” s defined as the fair vdiue of the
financial asset amimitial -ecogninion, and "interest” 1s definec as
consigeratior for the t.me vawe of money and for the credit nsk assoc atec
with the princinaramount outstanding  r assessing whether tne
contractual cash f.ows are solely payments of prircipal and interest, the
Group considers the contraciual temns of the insTrument, including ary
terms which may affect tne timing or amount of cortractual cask f.ows,

Loars and recelvames are ngn-cerivative firarc.al assets with f.xed or
ceterminalie cayments tatare Nt cuoted n 3 acinve market Loansand
recevables are measured subseguent to N talrecognit o1 atamaert seg
costusirg the effectve rteres: methoo, 1ess provisior for mpairmenrt Any
crange Ir their yaige tnrough moad sment or reversal of impairmients
recognised i the rcome statement

Sixec nlerest tate Date depos Lswith a matur ty date of Tiree monIns or
more from tae cate of acqu sit.on are classifed as finarcial assets

Tnereare ro frarc al assets caregorsed as at far va.ue througr prof © and
Lo3s fodow ng te salg of the equity nvestments
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M A55e551Ng 1IMOArMent requiremants on finarcial assets, the Graup
consicers the rate of histor closses onsimilar assets in conunction with
expected future .gsses and credit 1osses as a resuls ot potentiar defaults.
This wil., as mandated by 'FRS 4, continue to be reassessed as and wner
further informat on becomes available o wnen conditigrs cnange

Afinancial asset s de -recognised aniy where the contractuad nignre fathe
casnh flows from the asset expire or the financial asset s transferred. and
that transfer qualifies for de-recogrition A financial asset s transferrec if
the contrac-ual NgNts to receive the cash flows of the asset have been
transferred or the Group retains the contractua: rights Lo receve the cash
fiows of the asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
f.ows To ore or more recipients A financial asset that s transferred
qualifies for de-recognizion fthe Group transfers substantialy al: the risks
and rewards of ownershep of the asset, or if the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantally 21, the risks and rewards of owrerstup but does
trarsfer control of that asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forwarc-looking basis, the expected crec t losses
{ECL) asscoiazed w thits debt nstrument assets carried at amortised Costs
The Group ¢alculates the ifetime ECL as & practicat expedient for short-
termrecenvables Aloss allowance isrecogrsed for such losses at each
reporting date The Group measures ECL on eacn bd.ance sheet cate
3ccording to a three stage ECL impair~ient model

Stage 1 - fromirtialrecogmor of the financiay asset to the date orwhich
the assel has experienced g significantincrease incredit risk (SICRjrelative
toits mitalrecogrition, aloss allowance 1s equa: to the credit loss
expected to result fro~ zefau toccarr ~gover 12 menths foliowing the
report'ng date

Stage 2 - following a s gnificant increase ir credit risk -elative to the irtial
‘ecognition of the financ al asset, a loss allowance 1s recogrused equal to
the credit .osses expected over the remaining Lifetime of the asset Wnere
an SICR 15 no longer obiserved. tne instrument will move back to Stage 1.

Stage 3 - when the financ.al asset is considered To be credit impaired, aloss
allowance 1s recogrised equal to the credit iosses expected over the
remaining Life of the asset. Interest and revenue s calculated based on the
gross carrying amourt of the asset, ret of the lass allowance

The measurement of the FCL reflects anunbiased and probabil ty-
weighted amount that s determired by evalualing 4 range of possib.e
outcomes, tne time value of morey and reasonable and supporzable
informatior tnatis availabie without uncue cost ard effort at the ‘epo ting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic condit ons

nsurance ~ece vables, whicn are outside the scope of IFRS 9, are subject to
alapse provision calcu.ated based on historic loss data

2,12 Financial Uabilities

F nancial Labiities are classified as measured at amartisec cost or fair vaiue
through profitand loss(FYTRL) A financial lability s classifiea as at FV IPL
ifitis classif ed as neld-for-trading or itis designated 4s such aninial
recognition,

Financial Labilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using tne
effectve nterest method, w th nterest “elated charges recagrised as an
expenser firarce costin the income statement Firance charges,
ircluding premiums payable on sett.ement or redemption and direct issue
Costs, are charged Lo the Income statement ¢n ar accruals basis using the
effect-ve interest methoc and are addec to the carrying amount of the
nisLidrtient ro sne extent that they ate not setiled - the per oo 'nwhich
ney arise

There are no financial Laty 1nes categarised as at fair value through prefit
orloss,

A finarcigl lability 1s ge-recognised only when tne oblgatior s
extinguisned, that s, when the obiligat onis cischarged or cance.led
Qr exp ey

213 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalerts comprise cash on hand and demane deposits,
together w tn other shart-term, bignly Ligu d 'nvestments thatare readily
convertible nto known amaounts of cashand which are sub.ect 1o 2n
nsigrificant nsk of cnanges invalue

Asstategin Note 217 fixed interest rate bank deposits witn the maturity
cate of three months or mere from the date of acquisitian are classified as
financiat assets

2,94 Investmentsin subsidiary undertakings
Company Investments nsubsidiary undertakings and jaint ventures held n
the Company Balance Sheet are shown at cost less impairment prov-sions.

impairment testirg s completed on ar annual basis or as and when an
ind.cator far mpairment under 1AS 36 arses,

2.15 Equity
Equity campr ses the folicwing:

- "Snare capitai” represents the nomina value of eguity shares

“Snare premium account” represents the amount paid or1ssue for egu ty
shares in excess of tneir nominal value

- "Captal redemption reserve” -epresents the rominal value of 1ts own
eguity shares purchaseq. and then cancetled, by the Company.

“Share Dased payments reserve” represents the equity value of the
accumulated share nased payments expenses in LT.P 2021

- “*Otherreserve” represerts the irvestment im own Company shares by
the Employee Benefit Trus®.

- “Profit 2nd loss reserve” represents retained praf.is.
216 Employee benefits

Definec contribution group and self-invested personal penson schemeas,

The pension costs cnarged against arofits are the contmibutions payae o
the schemes ir respect of the accounting perod.
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217 Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment

Allgocds ard services recaived inexchange for tne grant of any share-
hasad paymert are measured at therr fair values where employeas are
rewarced using share -based payments, the fair values of empoyees’
services ae defermined indirectly by reference to the f3- value of the
nstrument as at the date 'tis grarted to the emoloyee.

All equity-sett.ed snare-basad payments are ultimate.y recogmised as an
expense In the income staternent with a corresoonding credit to "profitand
lossrese ve”

If vesting pericas or othe” non-makes vesting cond L1ons apply, the
expense s alocated avar tne vesting oericd, based on the best avalable
estimate of The number of share options expectec to vest Estimates are
subsequently ey sedif there s any indwcatuon that the number of snare
options expected to vest differs from previous estimates Ary cumulat.ye
adjustmenrt prigr to vesting s recogised in the current pericd. No
adjustment s mace to ary expense recognised in prior periods if snzte
aptions ult.mately exercised are d fferent to that estimated on vesting,

Upon exercise of share opt ons, the orgceeds received net of attnbutasie
transaction costs are credited to share capital, and where appropriate
share prermiu™m

2.18 Employee benefit trust

The assets and l'abilities of the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) have beer
ircluced 1n the Group accounts. Ary assets nelo by the E37 cease (o be
recognisec on the Group ba.ance sheet wher the assets vest
unconaizioral.y nidentified benefic aries

The costs of purchasing own shares held by tne ERT are shown as a
deducrtion aganst equty. The proceeds from the sale of own shares neld
Incregse equ ty. Neitner the purcnase nor 5a.8 of own shares leads to g gar
0" loss seing recogrised in the Group income statemenrt.

At present the Company aperates a pian whereby all employess are
entitlec to make morthly payments to the trust via payroll deductions The
current a.locat gn penod is six months and shares are allccated to
emoyees af Zhe end of gach allocation perod, The shares are aliocdtedas
“he lower of the mid-market price at the 2eginnng ard end of the
zllocation perind. The trust Comoany nas nol waived 12s 1Ight to d vidends
cruraliocated shares Any prof tor .ass or allocatien of shares to
ndyiduals s taken d recty 7o whe "other "eserve” withinequity

2.19 Shares held in an employee benefit trust
Trarsactigrs of tne Co™ipary spensgred BT are treated 83 2e ng trose of
tne Company arc are therefore, "eflected in these fnarc a, statements

2.20 Inventories

Imvertones a'e valugd al the 'ower of Cost are ret rea. satle value of rer

mak ng due alowarce for chseete and slow-mowing “ems Castircuces !
drrectcosts ang ar aga conate preacrsor of f xed ardveriable gverheads

2.21 Provisions
A 0rgwis 00 s "ecog™ sed i [he balarce sneet wnen The Group Nas a 27esert

legat, o construct ve, obl.gation as a cesult of a past evert, tnat can be
relably measured, 2nd 115 proadbie that an outflow of economic 2erefits
will e required o settle the oblgation Prov.sions are determired by
discounting the expected future cash flows at 2 pre-tax rate tnat reflects
nisks specif ¢ rothe L abiliny

2.22 Agent vs Principal

The sele of discounted vouchers, be it ohysical or electrond, represents the
majerity of Saas revenue for the Group The Grouo nas a mixture of
relationsnips with retallers and third-party suppliers, depending or the
cffering Some offerings requ.re purchasing invertory inadvance while
athers require the mairtaming of cash floats witk supoliers and others
requre the settiement of supplier invgoices as they a e receved

Deperding on toe cont-actual “elat:orshio and the nature of the

transact ons wiih the relevant sunp.aers, the Group has mace a judgement
on whetner the of ferings const.tute agercy or princ pal transactiors This
juagemenrtis signficans nnature as thasa materialimpact or the reverye
31¢ costof sales of the Grcuo

‘n the mejon.ty of ciIrcumstances, the Group. either physically ar via £s1T
sysiems, takas possessior and owrersnip of the vouchers, has control over
thesr use anc “esaie proe and, a5 aresult, these transactions are deemec 1o
be principal in ~ature. in such cases, the sale of vauchers and ther relevant
cost of sales, are oresentec gross 1 the .ncome statement for the year.

Where 3 contractual "e ationshIp exists w tathe suppuear that classifies the
relationship as that of an agency, this s deemed to supersede the factors
discussed above Asaresull, the voucher sale ana therr relevart cost of
sales Nave been presented net as agency Ircome in the inceme staterment
for the perod

2,23 Rest it of seg tal information

As cascribed on page 34 during the yadr mandgement tack the decisiar ta
change the format of the segmental aralysis to better ~eflect the Group's
DUSIFESS ACTvINES.

As aresult, while there are ng ad,usting entries 1o the financial ~esuitsin
rnese firancial statements, the layout of both the conscldated Inco™e
statemert arc the segmental aralysis nave Deenamercec, w.th prnior year
resu.ts restared 0 zhis new formar to ensure ccmpanatility across the two
repcring periods

3 Risk management objectives and policies

The Board recognises that the effectve maragementof risks and
opporturt: es s furcgmental 10 achievirg the Group's $orateq ¢ ooject ves,
Ag aresult itisimportant thete s astrong risk maragement cutue
througrout the Group, and tnat we igertify, assess and aparcoriately
mMitigate the ey 1isks [o the Groud acniewviry 1 sirategy

To ach eve 15 00jecives as wel. as sustainad.e prof tabil ty, zne Groun may
pursue the ppoortunit es jnat gave nse tonsk The~efore, we nave agopled
ar Entersrise R s¢ Maragement S-amework as part of Sur decs 01 naxng
and bus "ess management Jrocess As 2 result of tuisr gorcus aoproach.
the GroU3 can Mainta A £13003: secun ty, rGAUCE gooc GURComes and Tne
fair ~reatment of custermers. and meet thea neeas of Ciner 2ast essuch as
srarenc.Cers, emn.Cyees. SUPD. Brs 2n0C 7egu.ators
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We review the r s« maragement strategy reqularly, narticu.arly afte any signif cant charge to the change ervironmert anc, each year, after the apprcvat of

the Group's strategy and bus'ness puans

The mgs: significant financia. rises to wnich the Group and Company are exposed under "orma. circumstances are described ir this section

I addinion ta those risks iden” fied, the ongoing COVID-13 cutoreak continued toimpact operatons of the susiness duning 2021, Government imposead
lockdowns amited the ab ity to urdertake face-to-face .msurance sales in the early parts of the year, but the Group has seen aratiirn ranormal tradng in

15 sy gk busitess in the second halt of the year.

Credit risk

Tre Group's and Compary's exposure Fo credit nsk includes Tne carry ng value of certan financia. assets at the balance sheet date, summar sed as follows

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Insurance recevabtes 1665 2,295 - -

Reinsurance asséts o 108 78 - -

Trade debtors T o 10,592 14 712 - -

Accrued interest B T 10 6 - -
Cash and cash equivalents o 20,29 17,58% 19 .9-2_
Bank deposits o 2,596 2,587 - —7—7

Total credit risk 35,262 37,267 119 9z

Aarge proportion of the Group's revenue is generated fram tre sae of nsurance poacies toindividual custamers, wit~ most of the premums collected.
and pa d over to the Group, by theind.v duals’ employer via payroll deductior. The vast majornity of employe~s pay over day-cl deductions made. within one
month, on a regulas basis, thereby minimising the credit risk exposure to the Group wWith very few exceptions, COVID-19 has not had an.mpact on debtor

recovery across the Group

Due to the seascnal nature of the PG Let's Connect ausiness, the year =na recelvanlas balance 1s heavily weighted towards salary sacrifice goods These
recenvables are due from t-e ermoloyers of the ind viduals who place the order The vast majority of these emplayers pay the recervaole balance within two
maonths of recenving the consolidated irvoice for ther scheme. Incuded within trade debters are £8.4m (2020: £10 1mirelatirg to PG Let's Connect sales.

The use of payrolidecuct ons by a "nost comaany employer” would not be perrutted where tne Board believed there may be asign ficant credit risk

Recervables nast therr due date are summarnsed with: Note 19 The credit r.sk for uquid funds and other short-term f nancial assets s considerad negligible,

s.nce the courterpartias are all “egulated ir the UK by the PRA.

AL 31December 2021 the counterparties were as follows The Ca-operative Bank pic, Santarder UK plc, HSBC 8anx Ple, Lioyds Bank 2lc, Close Brothers Ltd
and Abergeen Stancard Investments. Long -term rate credit ratings for these counteroarties range from AA to 8 (ratmgs sourceqd from Fitch, ana Stancard &

Poor's) (2020 AA to Brating range)

The Group s also expesec Lo the recoverab. ity of ~eceivables from reinsurers, At 31 December 2021, the Group utilised Two remnsurances counterpdrues,

namely, Swiss Re Eurcpe 5 A, Jnited K-ngoom Branch and AXA XL Insurarce uife Syadicate 3002. Credit ratings for this rensurer range from A+ Lo AA

4| subsid.ary undertak ngs are 100% ownad hy [he Company o subsidianies thereof. There s at least one Cirector of Personal Group Haldings on each of the
larger subsidiary comparias' Beards and all ooerations are controlled from within tne registered office in Milton Keynes, The Company Directors have a

good understandirg of the operat onal nerformance of each of the subsidiary undertakings The Company Directars are satisfied that te subsidiary
undertakings have suffic ent future Incere strea™s to erable the batnlit es to be repasd in fullin the foreseean.e future,

nformation relating to the farr value measurement of firancial assets can oe found in Note "9,



9 O Personal Groug Hoidings Ple Annual Repart and Accounts 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS continued

3 Risk management objectives and policies continued
Interest rate risk
Tre Group s not exposed to any financial | abiuties witn aninterest e.ement aside from tne interast element it nsic 0 l@ases

Ar 3" December 2021, bank deposits and cash and casn ecu valents exceeded borrowings by £22 887 000{2020 £20176,C0C) If JKinterestrates 1creased
by 2%, ret firarce income would increase by approx-mately £458 000 wiln @ corresponding nL ease To equity

Liquidity risk

Cash balarces are managead internally by the Firangial Controlier and amounts are placed on short-te-= deposits jcurrently not exceeding six months) Lo
ensure that sufficent furds are ava.able at all imes to pay au Liabilimigs as and when they fall due

As at 31 December 2027, the Group's and Company's 1ab Lities have contractual maturtes including interest payments wnere appucablel as
suTmanised tertws

Within6 6-12 Non-cash
months months 1-5 years items* Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Group
At 31 December 2021 e S S
?a.c;;dother payables - —;‘11,535 ihﬁ? - 43 12,46;_
Insurance Contract Liabll\twres 2,188 - - 899 T 3‘08?
Total liquidity risk 13,723 182 - 1,642 15,547
At 31 December 2320
Trade and ather payables - ‘14;356 83 - 187 - 14,626\
Insurance Cantract L\ablllthES 2,428 - - 695 3.12;
Total liquidity risk 16 784 a3 - 882 17,748
Company
At 31 Decémber 201 T T T
:mounts -c;wed to Group undertakings T 257 o -gg \‘¥ ¥f 2;
Total liquidity risk 257 - - - 257
A3 Decerﬁ ner 2020 249 -ﬁl - - 245;
Amounts owerd to subsickary undertakings T 249 - - - 249

T ONGA Zast tems elale o utedted 218t LTS ST uned e TEYeTIUE A0 e e TR Bt Sus RES SEgTIENT S
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Currency risk
Tre Group 1s not exposad 10 any currency risk as al business 's conducted n
GBF and all bank accourts were neld in GBP 'n noth 2021 anc 2020

Insurance claim and related risks

During the year, Persaral Assurance Plc [Paj underwrote two categones of
Business and Personal Assurance (Guernsey! Ltd |PAGL) a third, which a-e
descnbed ir detal below

Hospital cash plans and other parsonal accident and sickness policies
Tnese have been PA's core prodycts since 1984 and, at 31 Decemper 2027,
represent 98.8% (2020 98.8%) CF Pa's gross premiums written The vast
majority of these po. c1es are sold to irdividuals at therr place of work as
part of anemployee benefits package introduced by PGH on behalf of the
amployer, The gross 1oss ratio iexcluding claims handling casts) on these
oolicies at 31 December 20271 was 10.2% (2020 19 2%). Te lossratio has
remained relatively consistent over tne perigd of ime that these policies
mave beenunderwrtten ard therefore the Board has taken the deCisior to
accept the ungerwr ting nskin fy|| ard ol to use reinsurance as a way of
mMandaging msurance claim risk,

AT present the maxirmum payable on any one sing.e claim s £91,375{2020
£81,375) and would orly be payaole after a period of hospital confinement
of two years. The total number Gf these indivicua. palicies in force at 31
December 2021 was 172,829 (20207 193,465) and the Latal annualised
premiur value of these poicies was £19,227,000 (2020: £21.336 000) The
average amount aid per Claim . 2027 was £205 (20719; £197),

Voluntary Group Income Protection policies {(VGIP)

In sy 2072 PA commenced the underwrniting of vGI2 policies. In order ta
manage this insurarcerisk, tne Board toox out @ quota share reinsurance
pol oy to exclusively cover th's part of the nusiress. Under this reinsurance
policy 30% of *ne vawe of eack ¢.aim s recoverable from the reinsurer

At 31 December 2021 these policies represent 1.2%(2020 12%) of PA's gross
prermiums written The gross 16355 ratip {excluding claims hardling costs) or
tmese policies at 37 December 2021was 50.8% {2020 381%) The -otal
number of these ndividual policies in force at 31 December 20271 was §92
(2020 BoOlard the average amaunt paid per clam in 2021 was £11,716
12020 £9,910).

Death benefit policies

Death berefit policies have baen underwritten by PAGL since Marcn 2015
These policies are sotd o7 marily to incviduals at their place of wor< n the
samme wdy as the bospital cash D.ans

The gross oss ratio fexctuding Claims handling costs) on these poligies at 31
December 2021 was 32.6% (2020: 30,7%). 4 570p (035 reinsurance policy 1s ir
place to cover claims over £3.000.000 at any given location The total
number of these indwicual polices in force at 31 Cecember 2021 was
52,482 12020:66143) arc the average ameount paid per deathin 2021Twas
£9,5"8(2020. £9,504)

Employee default policies

‘N February 2020 PAGL commented tne underwriting of employee cefault
aolicies 1N re.at on ko salary sacrfice sales made by Let's Cannect. These
polic.es provided cover to Let's Connect's .argest customer ir the evert,

that employees left owing salary sacr fice deductions to their employer
and these monies were unable to be recovered by a.ternat ve means

At 31Decem™ber 202° these aclicies represent 110% (2020 7.0%) of PAGLS
gross premiums written The gross 1oss ratio (excluding claims handling
costsion tnese pol.cies 2t 3° Dece™ber 2027 was 82.3% (2020, 78.8%) and
“he average amgurt 2aid perind v:dual defaultin 2021 was £750

(2020 £722)

Group loss ratio

For the yedr enced 31December 2027 t¢ 9055 Cl2ims ratio of the Group
was 24 9% (2020 24 0%). A 2% increase N the clams ratio would .ncrease
claims incurred by approximate.y £56°.000.

Tnere are no material ndivigual claims and apen claims over 12 months old
are alsoimmatenal Asa -esult, the Group nas elected to rot d.sclose clams
development tables.

4 Capital management and requirements

The Group's capital maragement objective s to mantain sufficiert cantal
to safeguard the Group's ab-ity to coninue as a goINg Concern anc Lo
protect the interests of all of its customers, investors, regulator and
trad:ng partners wh e a.sg efficiently deploying cap tal and managing rise
Tosustan gngoing business development. The Group manages ts capital
resources in lire with the Group's caortdal management Policy, which s
reviewed on anarnual basis The Grouo's capital posinion Is kept unde-
constant review and .s repartec monihly to the 3oard.

Since 1 January 2016, Personal Assurance Olc {2A) hasbeen subjectto the
requiremants of the Solvency Il (SN Directive and must no:d sufficient
capital te cover its Solvency Capital Requrement (SCRY m acdition, P4
maintains abuffer in excess of This capital requirement, specif ed .nune
witn the capital fisk appetife agreed by the Board. The SCR s calculated in
accordarce with Lne Standard Formula specified in the Si_egislat on

Af least annually, the Group undertakes the Own Risk and Solvercy
Assessmeant {ORS5A). This process enables tne Group to assess how wéll the
Standard =ormula SCRreflects the Group's actual risk prafile, and
comprises all the activizies by whicn Da establishes tne leve: of capizal
recuired ta meet its solvency needs aver the plarring per.cc giver the
Company’s strategy and risk appetite. The conclusions fram these activitigs
arg summansee in the ORSA Report whichisreviewed by the Risk
Committee, approved oy the Board and submitted to the Prudentia
Regulat.on Authority (PRA] at leastanrual y.

PA's unaud ted Elig:ble Owr Funds. determired in accordance with the Sl
valuation rules, were £12 6m 2020 £12.4mywhich was in excess of tng
estmated SCR of £3 52020 £4.0™;, This represented an estimated

S0 vency coverage rato of 357% (2020 308%,; The movementyear on year
remans consistent and is in Lire with the Baard's risk aopet te of holding
greater than 20C% of tne requirement.

Otner than disclosed above tnere have been no changes towhat is
managed as capital or the Group's capite. management obyectives, polic es
or procedures during the year
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4 Capital management and requirements continued
AL 31December 2021, tae requirements of the Group's regulated comaanies were as follows

Surplus
Capital over capital
FesoUrces Capital TESOUTCeS
Relevant requirement resources requirement
regulatory dited dited unaudited
body £'000 £000 £°000

Company
Personal Assyrance Plc FCA, PRA 3,521 12,588 9,067
Personal Assurance Sgrvices Limited FCA a8 3,908 3,862
Personal Group Benefits Limited FCA 155 292 137
Berkelay Morgan Limitad FCA 25 348 323
Parsanal Assurance (Guernsey) Limited GFSC an 2,010 1,008

Personal 455037 2€ R ¢ and Parsonzl Assirznce (Goernsay uiriteZ maintains “he maior Ly o° ther assets ncash and sho--term fixed interest -ate deposits
The cap-tal resources and correspording capital resource requirement for each PRA regulated enlity 1s calculated i accorcance with PRA regu.ations,

Tre capital rescurces and cotresponding cap.ta! resgurce ecu rement for each FCA regulatea entizy 15 calcu.ated = accordarce with FCA requlations

The Group's capital comprises al. components of eqinty

The Group's "equlated en? ties have compled with al externally imogosed capital reGuirements dunng the year.

5 Segment analysis
Asnoted on page 34, the fornat of the segmenta aralys s has neer changed n 2027 The segmenrts used by management Lo review tne operatiors of the
busiress are disclosed bewow

1) Affordable Insurance

Personal Assurance PLe 124, a suns diary with.n tne Group, s 4 PRA requlated general insurance Compdany and 1S authorised ro trarsact accident and sickness
nsurarce 1t was estaplisnea n 1984 and has Deer unce wnting Dusingss since 198%. 101997 Personal Group Howlirgs Plo (PGAH) was Created and became the
ult.mate parent undertaking of the Group

Persona. Assurance iGuernsey) Limited [PAGL), 3 sunsiCiary with.m the Group, 1s regulatec by the Guernsey F nancia. Services Commission arc has been
uncerwninng geath henefir polic es since March 2015

Tnis operat ng segment derves the maonty of .15 “evesue from tne unde wnt 7g Dy PA and PAGL of nsurance poucies that Mave peer bought by employees
of host companies wia bespoke benef t programmes Dur A9 2020 PAGL began underwntirng employee defauit -nsurarce for a orodertion of LC customers.

2) Other Owned Benefits
This segmert canst tutes any goods Or services 1n =he ne~ef ts platform supply chaim wh ch are owred by the Group. At preseént 2wsis made un of a
tecnnology satay sacnfice busimess trading as PG Let's Connect, purchased by the Group 12014

3) Benefits and Platform
Revenua:r tn:s segmen’ "e,a1e8s 1o the arnual subsc” pt ar ngome and otner related Irco™e a’15ing from tha agens g cf Hap  the Group's emao.oyee
senefit patform Tk s ncaces saites to poth the large corporate and SME seciors

4) Pay and Reward
Pay and Rewarc refers ¢ 1ne trade of Inpecto, a pay anc "eward consultarcy Company purchased n 2079 evenue ir this segment "elalas 1o corsultancy
arducerse.rcome des vec fromse.ing nnecto cigital platform subscript 00s
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5) Other

Tne gther ope-anng segmert cansists exclusively of revenue genarated by Berkeley Morgan Group IBMG) and tssubsidary undertak rgs along w thany
nvestmert and rentalinco=e obtamed by the Group. This segment alse inc.udes revenue generated from the resale of vouchers (Note 2 22)

Restated
202% 2020
£'000 £'000
Revenue by segment
Affordable Insurance 24 670 28,830
Other Owned Benefits . B 18,214 76,420_
Benefits Platform o - 6057 4,901
I;ernefits Platform - Group Elmination - T (2,748) (2,547
D;y & Reward - - 1236 875
Other Income
Voucher resale S - 26,852 - 22,735
Qther - - 215 o 236
Investment iIncome B - 23 _74—
Group Ravenue 74,513 71,524
Adjusted EBITDA" contribution by segment
Affordable Insurance 1,012 15,082
Other Qwned Benefits - 730 469
Benefits Platform - B 2‘09[:!- 2,092
Pay & Reward 303 (255)
Other 279 (212}
Group admin and central costs* - o (8.228} (GE
Charitable Donations o {100) (mﬂ_oa
AdJusted EBITDA~ 6,094 19,111
Depreciation** (966) (1,003}
Amortisation** o (58%) {470}
Interest ‘ 132) 173
Share Based Payments Expenses - N {163) - 8}
Profit before tax 4,342 8,557

- agusted CRITDA 5 de' ned aseatq g3
rastuctu g o5t sand elease Brax

Atatest, “ax, deater at 00, 3710 15dl 3na’ 1lang Ye astals Jesdw [l MzarMEal sha e Jased 3ay™E 1L 8xIeN5es C1TI0AMe acqu s L
501

o Trese o=t Lule Graus a0 val Al onexaenses 00 78 Tace 07 198 Do nsol datéd 1S Y Slalement
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5 Segment analysis continued
Segmental assets and liabilities

2021 2020
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£°000 £'00¢ £'000 £'000
Insurance 28,205 8168 26,218 7564
Other Owned Beneﬂt? 10,910 6,176 11.748—_ 6,95;?
Benefits Platform 2,055 1,400 2526 T '\‘277
Pay & Reward - - 471 T - 543 -
_Oﬁ T T T 15,863 579 17,885 2_37:
Total segment assets and liabilities 51,604 16,323 58,920 18,146
5a Further segmental analysis
The fo.owing rote Srovides adoitiona: analysis on Groud segmental income and expenditure.
Employee benefits and services income
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
IT Salary Sacrifice 18,214 16,420
;the( aQwned Eenﬁs—;—;—;¥ T 6,051 T‘Q‘DTV
?l.é;i.ts—li‘?atfurm Group elimination* - o (2,748) (2577](
Pay & Reward o 1,236 B?s
Total employee benefits and service income 22,752 19,649
insurance operating expenses
201 2020
£'000 £'000
Operating expenses 7608 6,718
Group elimination®* - o o - {2,748) (2547
Total income operating expenses 4,660 4,171
Ty AR3RSs e sagTents ad « dudl 5 M s &l mgl SIS LITe AN AT et Lae | L0 Tiagleszierse At ad srounl treluta T asrane el maionitun L es g
T 5 walye = o adged Lz Beras (s Plgt T 5 &30t 1 eXIRNET 128 e ng el 1 maled Ut
Employee benefits and services expenses
2021 2020
Cost of Operating Total Costof Operating Total
sales expenses expenses sales expenses expenses
£'000 £'3000 £'000 £000 £'300 £'600
IT Salary Sacnifice 15,818 1,666 17,484 14,325 1640 15,965
Bengfits Platform%i o ‘7,;06 2,847 3,953 o 416 2,293 2,808
Cay & Eewarr T I 933 933 4 1126 1130
Total erployee benefits and services
expenses 16,924 5,446 22,370 14,745 5159 19,904
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Gross transactional value

Gross transact'enal value renresents the total va.ue of revenue generated from both principal and agency arrangements, Gross transactional value from
the sa.e of goods andg yvouchers 15 recognised 2t the nes value when signif cant rises and rewarcs of ownersh-p of the goods and vouchers nave been nassed
to the puyer, usually on 2ne aispatch of the goods and voucners The Company 1S Cons.cered to be anagent for voucher sa.es of £6,668,00012020
£3,692,C00) of the total transacton value of £33,096,00012020: £26,143 000}

201 2020
£'000 £000
Voucher revenue recognised as principal 26,428 22,463
vau:he-:r‘esate for reyenue recognised as agency o - 6,668 3692
Gross transactional value 33,096 26,155
6 Investment income
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Interest income fram cash on deposit 23 B
Total investment incame 23 74
7 Claims incurred
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Claims pasd 5,884 5,588
Reinsurers' share ofiglaims paid {63) (80
Claims handling expenses paid - - 542 73?
6,363 6,229
Increase in claims prayisian (275) 767
R_eu-'nsurers‘ share of movements in claims provision ‘ 139) EL]
{358) 802
Total cialms incurreq 6,049 7,031
8 Insurance operating expenses
Restated
201 2020
£'000 £'000
Incurred acquisition Gosts 3,472 2915
Administratian expenses ‘ 1,388 1256
Total Insurance Opetating Expenses 4,860 41M

Tetal commission -ncurred duning tne year i -espect of cirect. nsurance was £762.000{2020 £879.0C0!
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9 Directors’ and employees' remuneration
2) Staff costs [excluding Non-Executive Directors' fees} during the year were as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 7,151 9,876

;:are—based nayﬁents expense T T 162 8
;;cxal Security costs ) T T 1,278 Ticoms__

Eer pension co.sts V T 504 489

Total staff costs 13,102 11,476

Juring the year the Groun ~eceived £526 000 from tne [0 7eTertion schere (26207 £595000) These government grants nave beer offset against the

salary costs nthe tathe above.

Average number of emp.oyees Traugh the year was as fahows

202 2020

Number Number

Admnistraton 60 138
Es and marketing - - 13 F

Total number of employees 33 228

b) Directors' remuneration:

201 2020

£'000 £'G00

Emoluments 1024 1,002
Amounts paid to thurd parties inrespact of Directars' services o -72\ ?
Pensian contributians to Group a-nd self-mves{ed personal pension schemes 26 T 2?

Total Director's remuneration 1,062 1,066

During the year, Three G rectors (202C. four Directors) participated n Group and self- nvested personal pens.on schemes.

The amounts set gut above INcluce remunerat or nresgect of the higrest paid Director as fol.ows Allemoluments "elate to payments ~ace by subsidiary

underrakirgs

2071 2020

£'000 £000

Ematuments 16 300

;hare—based payments gains on exercise of options - - -
Pension conmbu@toﬁun and self-invested personal pension schemes 10 10

Total 436 310

Details of nd vdua, Cirector's -eruneranicn are g ven n the Remuneratgn Repcrtor 0ages 5C 63 The Company dogs ot ncur employee "emungrat on,

Koy managemen: of 2ne Group ate The Drrectors of Dersona. Group Hoic 1gs PuIC together w t- tne mermjers of tne Senior Leace sk Team <ay

mMaragement persoarel femuneraticn neluges the fOLnL’J‘N'r\q EX0ENSES
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2021 2020
£'000 E'000
Short-term employee henefits:
Salaries including bonuses ) 2,052 1,638
Social security costs N i 283 226
Share-based payments expensre B - _
2,335 1,864
Post-employment benefits:

Defined contributign pension plans o ) 56 - 47
Total remuneration 2,401 1,911

10 Profit before tax
2021 2020
£000 £'000

Profit before tax 15 stated after:
Auditor's remuneration (inclusive of nDn—reeoverable VAT
Audit services )

Audit of Comeany financial statementsféurrent Year 172 124
Audit of Company financial statements - Prior Year - 40
Audit of subsidiary undertakings i 120 122
Non-audit services - - -
Depreciation of property, plantiand equipment 966 1,003
Amartisation of ntangibles - 585 470

Rentalincome recejvable o i
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11 Tax

The relationsnin setween the expecten tax experse Dased on tne effective tax rate of Zersonal Group Hald ngs Ple 3t 20% 12020 19%) and the tax expense

recognised N the .ncome statement car e recorciled as fellows

2021 2020
E£'000 £'000
Profit before tax 4,342 8,557
; rate T ) 15% 19;
;ﬁpected tax expense - 825 1,6;
Idjustmem. for non-deductible exp;.‘ﬂses S T 68 2?
Iiustment for tax exempt réevenues T 101 (58}
aeradjuscments . - S o o
gVEfm;:te changes on deférred tax T - &7 o
Tax creditin respec} of prior years - T - {109) (151
Tdiustment for p%ewously non-deductible expenses o - (5) 5
;tua!tax expense o o T 745 1,6;
Contf;‘lurng operatrons——- T 745 - 1.663
ELr-rent tax expen;e T S 775 ‘\.7;_
\nrésnectof prior yaars - T (109} 1157)
Deferred tax - ]
7or<g|nat|on and reversal of temporary d\fferencesii 12 ;?7
Effect of tax rate changes - 67 :7
Total tax 745 1,663

During the 3 'March 2021 Budges, it was anrourced that the rate of corporation tax w il increaseo to 25% from Aonl 2023 which has bean sybstantively

enactec

12 Earnings per share

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
average average number
Earnings number of Pence per Earnings of Pence per
£'000 shares share £000 shares share
BasIic 3,597 31,205,375 15 6,894 31164,809 221
Dilutive effect of shares in Emplayee
Share-based schemes - 8162 Q.0 - pAall g0
Diluted 3,597 31,213,537 M5 6,894 31172720 221

Tre weignied ave’age rumiber of shares shown above excludes ynallocated own Comdany shares Feid by 2ersoral Group Trustees (oo
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13 Dividends
2021 2020
Pence per Pence per 2021 2020
share share £'000 E'000
Equity dividends
Ordinary shares paid in year - ST o
March T - 5.900 - ;8;2_
June T 5.100 1500 1.591 469
September o - 5.900 - 1842
Deacember o 5300 - 1,654 -
10,400 13300 3,245 4,153
Less amoul:gs paid an owr;;n.a—r-e; - [0} (&)
Total dividends 10.400 13.200 3,244 4,147
The dividerds listec above were paid in the ca.endar year, Dividends of 18.4p pe- share were paid re.atirg to the 2020 firancial cericd and an irter™
aayment of 5.3p has been paid relating ta the 2021 financ-al vernod.
14 Goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill which has been allocated to those cash-generating units can be analysed as foilows
PG Let's
Connect Innecto Total
£'000s £'000s £'000s
Cost
At 1January 2021 T 10,575 2321 12,696
Additions in the year - - - -
Disposal - - T -
At 31 December 20271 10,575 2121 12,686
Impairment charged
At1Janua-ry 2021 - - -
Impairment charge fér;,'ear - - -
At 31 December 2021 - - -
Net book value at 31 December 2021 10,575 221 12,696
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14 Goodwill continued

PG Let's
Connact {nnecta Totat
£000s £'000s £'000s

Cost
At1January zozoﬁﬁ_ii 10,575 2,121 12,696
Agditions in the y;R -
Dispasal - - - -
At 37 Decernber 2020 10,575 221 12,696
Impairment charged
At1January 2020 o - - - -
Impairment charge for year T - - -
At 31 December 2020 - - -
Net book value at 31 December 2020 10,515 2,321 12,696

The net carry'ng values at 31 December 2021 have been «eviewed for imparrmenrt.

PG Let's Connect

The frrst cash gererating unit jCGUY consgered was the PG Let's Cornect busness as awnoele ard 'ts recoveradle 3mount was baseq on valle 1n use,
deterrirmed by Ciscounting tie futune ¢asn f.ows to be generated from contirued trading of PG Let's Cannect As the value ir use was faund o e n excess
of the car-y'ng amourt of £10,575,000. noimparment was recordea in the year

For the our pose Of the value 1n use Mode|, the CGU vale 1s comprised of the Goodwill allocated, the carrying vaue of the miangid!é asset recogmised on
acquisition arc the assets of the CGU such that the carrying amount of tne CGLU nas been determ nea or a basis consistertwitn the way fhe recoverable
amountof the CGU s detarrmired

Five years of future cash flows were ncluged in the discounted cash fiow model, The long-term grow th rate Lo perpetuiny was determined a5 2.5%
130-year average of UK consumer proe iIndex] The cash flows were then discounted using a post-fax Ciscourtrate of 13%:12020, "3%) based on PG Let's
Conngct we ghted average cost of capital, using the capital assel aricing mocel.

Inane with previgus years, an expected casn flow approacn, based on five different scenangs, was uses, a5 management bel eve this method to most
gopropriazely sadress the fact that the Irmirg ard scale of Let's Connect's future growth cutrertly remans unceriaim Zacr of the scenanos was given a
probability expectaticn, basea or managerent's pest view and histanc performance, anc the weghted average net present value (NPY) derived from tnese
calculanions was ther deter mined as the vawe muse Budgeted EBITDA was based on expectar.ons of Future cutcomes cons.Qenry pas: expenence as well
45 8x.50NG CoNL acts .« dlace

Key assumptions
Giver that NPY IS sensTive To sevarai key assumphians which have been used. the followirg nave neen nighlighted as bemg the most sersitve with
sensitivities performed

Discount rate
Manageent's approsch 1o geterrun rgthe 13% cistourtrate mo apay [athe value M use Mode. 5 exy.aned ancve.

Cash flow revenue projections

Management anp eg ar expecied cash flow 3oproach Lo the value 'n use model for revenue forecasting, usirg tne weighted average of a number of
SUENaros (G delerming the expectas futurs reverugs of Let's Corrggt The scenanosused, ard Mhe probadui es apoued. take 'm0 aCCount TNe curenrt
market cone Lors. rolud Ng §.00al SsupDy Chain rrerunzIons, apc represent the possible future GuICo™es ancd Maragement's Dest esumate as [o the-
Leel noad

1455855 N9 Tne sens Lvity of th 5 assumanian, 1T was faura trat woen gross INCO™E was assumec [0 02 £27 1owe” Tham the weignied average ncome of
TNE SCEranas, dr radrmert was st L 1ot required Maragement canswders tPe £ash flow scenar as used suff cient 1o 2dGress 118 fi5Ks sUrrourcng the
JusImess currerty and tral tnis sersitivity further suppo s the valuaar of tre CGu
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Gross profit margin
Management applied an expected gross margin of 3% or 1ts future “evenue oroectians, an increase an aciuasl results for the year ended 31 December 2021
where sToCc availability bmitations have continued to nave an impact o cost af sales

1ne recoverable amount was based on value in use, determined by ciscourting the future cash flows to be generated from cortinued trad ng of Let’s
Connect Asthecarry'ng amountof £10,575000 was lower than the recoverable amount, na impairmenrt was ceemed necessary

As the econamy starts 1o recaver post COV-D 19, and stock avanadilty britazions stars to reduce, there is an expertanon tnat future cash projections wiil
retlect *\mproved gross profit margins in ine w th pre-COVIC levels

Below .S a tabe showing the sensitiv.ty of the key assumptions and tneimpact of changes nvanous key assumptions (in oase percentage pont termsi have
on the neadroom. The Base column refers to the head-gom on thempairmant review model combletea by maragement

-% Base +%
Sensitivity Analysis - Impact on Headroom £'000s £'000s £'000s
Discount Rate( +/- 2%) 6,019 2,531 198
Gross Income ( +/- 2%) 688 2,531 5136
Gross Profit Margin { +/- 2%) 102 2,531 4,940

Innecto

The second cash generat'ng ur t{CGU} considered was the Innecto business as a whole, For the purpese of the valye inuse mode,, the CGU vawe is
compr.sed of the goodwill allocated, the carrying va.ue of The Intangiole assets recogmsed on acquisiiion and the assets of the CGU such that the carrying
amount of the CGuU has been deterrined on 4 bas:s consistent witn tne way tne recoverable amount of the CGU s deter~ured.

anexpected cash flow agoroach, simila” 10 that appued to PG Let's Cannect, was used apply ng mulTiple scenanos and affixed probabilivies that were
deemed to be appropriate under management's best urderstanc'ng of the business

Key assumptions

Five years of future casn flows were Includec ir the discounted cash flow maode! including along term growth rate of 2.5% (30-year average of UK
consumer price index], idertica. ta the rate used n PG Let's Connect workings, These cash flows were then ciscounted using a risk mitigating posi-iax
discountrate of 22.4% (2020 25 2% based on Innecto's weghted average cost of capital, using the caprmal asset pricing mocel with a risk premium nbline
with the risks associated w ththe uncertainties arcund the farecasted growth, Tne decrease 'n the discount rate year an year ref.ects the additigra.
certa:nty within the Group around the operatigns of Innecto as well as the sgmificant decrease in the risks ncorporated Lo the future cash f.ows
rmodelled when calculating tne value nuse of the CGU.

Sensitivity
while management are confrdent that ifnecto w .l generate forecasted Ncome, 1115 recagnisec that there s an nherent uncertanty within the forecasted
cash flows usec Ir the mparrmert mocel due to Tne expected growth,

Below s a table show'ng tne sensitivity of the key assumptions and the impact of various cnanges (1 base sercentage point terms) has on the headroo™.
Ine dase columr reters ta the headroom an the impa-ment review mode: compieted by managemént

-% Base +%
Sensitivity Anatysis - Impact on Headroom £'000s £'000s £'000s
Discount Rate (+/- 2 5%) 1,492 404 450
Variable Proportion of Costs (+/~ 10“%:) T 916 a04 893
TerminalGrowth Rate (/- %) - 787 S04 ’ 1,033

Maragemert 1s canfident that there 1s no cause for animpairmentir either PG Let's Connect of Innecte i addition o the future benefits owllirto each
LGy, there are benefits of each te Tne wider Group as a resuit of improved market penetration, marketing expertise and additiona. cross-sellirg
appertunities made avaalle
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15 Intangible assets
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Customer Innecto Customer Innecte Computer software internally Generated
value value and trad hnology and develop Computer Software WIp Total
E'008 E£'000 £'000 £'000 £'D0D £000 £'000
Cost
menuanﬂ‘om—\ \TG:BRQH—\& 736 \298 T 1,520 T 506 - 4,698
radivans - T s T T e e
osposats - T @ - - 16)
At 31 December 2021 1,648 726 258 2,287 5086 198 5.663
Depreciapion
Attaenuary202) | aeas 286 w0 e ass - 3245
Towded inthe year T 7-;;.;-_:;*-;7-;-;7 ‘;—;Eig—_‘;-sro— ““;;i‘h“higi“t—'ﬁh:;_si
Dispasal e e e
At 31 December 2021 1648 4am 70 1,293 504 - 4,026
Net hook amount at
31December 2621 - 315 128 294 z 138 1,637
Net book amount &t
31December 2020 - 469 188 598 8 ~ 1,254

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Custemer Innecto Customer Innecto  Computer software  Internally Generated

value value and tradename  Technology and develop t [« Software wip Total

£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000
Cost
;;Uanuary 20;0 - 1‘6484_ Aﬁ 298 - 973 nhjﬁi_“”l;h 4,275
Acquistion o o : - 259 T s
:ﬂdincns T - - - 288 AT¥‘1?‘\ 424
omposats - T
V—;E‘I Decermnber 2020‘\\ﬁ 'I,E;\\“M\\;“‘E 1_520“““— 506 - * 4,598
Depreciation
At Tdanuary 2020 1648 1 sa e a1 - zam
;Emed meear - N 145 60 234 £l - 470
Disposat - - -
At 31 December 2020 1648 266 170 923 498 ~ 3444
Net bogk amount at
31 December 2020 - 460 188 598 8 - 1254
Net book amount at
310Decernber 2019 - 665 248 285 9 124 1,307

Tre rnecto custo™mear values, trademark and tech o109 s are berg amortsed th-ougr tre consoucatea ncame statement over & five-year paroc Tne net
zatyirg value or 31 Jecember 2021 has peen assessed for imparmert and 0D Mparment wias Ceemad necessary. The assels wWere 3558558410 LoMunch.en
w1 tne gagcuad valuye i Ngte 14 The tatad value of 3mior {isat ¢ ra.atng t0 accured miardghles was L2054 12620 £205%)
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16 Property, plant and equipment
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Furniture
Freehold land Motor Computer fixtures & Lease Right of use
and properties vehicles equipment fittings Improvements assets Tatal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
AL 1January 2021 5037 157 1,085 2,303 38 1,459 10,079
Additions - - 208 27 - 307 543
Disposals - - {182) (20} - {562} (764
At 31 December 2021 5,037 157 1112 2,310 38 1,204 9,858
Depreciation
At 1January 2020 1742 102 774 1,064 34 [07 4,623
Provided in the year 86 23 194 221 3 439 066
Elirminated on disposals - - {182} (20) - (562) (764)
At 31 December 2021 1,828 125 786 1,265 37 784 4,825
Netbook amount at
31 December 202t 3,209 32 326 1,045 1 420 5,033
Net book amount at
31 Decerrber 2020 3,285 55 3N 1,235 4 552 5,456
For the year ended 31 December 2020
Furniture
Freehold land Motor Computer fixtures & Lease Right of use
and properties wvehicles equipment fittings improvements assets Total
E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000

Cost
At TJanuary 2020 5,290 Loy 831 2,357 38 1432 10,050
Additions - 55 260 25 - 367 708
Disposals [253) - {€) {80) - (340) (679)
At 31 December 2020 5,037 157 1,085 2,303 38 1459 10,679
Depreciation
At1Jdanuary 2020 1713 77 612 881 29 754 4,066
Provided inthe year 87 25 1686 251 5 469 1003
Eliminated on disposals 58} - (4) {68) - (316) (446)
At 31 Decamber 2020 1,742 102 7714 1,064 34 907 4,623
Net book amount at
31December 2020 3,295 35 mn 1,239 4 552 5456
Net book amount at
31 Decemper 2019 3577 25 219 1,476 9 678 5,984

Ir bine with IFRS 16, night af use (ROU) assets reats to motos vehicles and buileing leases, a preaxdown for wich can be fourcin Nore 30,
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17 Financial investments

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Bank deposits 2,586 2,587 - -
Total financial investments 2,596 2,587 - -

FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement estabusnes a fair value hierarcry that categorses Into three levels the inputs o valliat.on technmigues bsed to measure fair
value The fair value mierarchy gives the higiest pricrity to auoted prices junadjustedtin active markets for dentical assets ar Liabilities (_evel ©inputsiand
The lowest prionty to urobservable puts | eve. 3 INpurs)

- Leve, 1 quated pr ces {unadjusted! in act.ve markets foridentical assets or ugbiities
Level 2 'nputs other thar quoted prices included within cever 1 that are observable for the asset or udmit . ty, either acirectly (e 3s orices; orindirectly
jie decved from brices)

- Level 3 inputs for tne asset or liaoiuty that are not based an obse-vadle market data {ungaservasle irput)

Bank ceposits. held at gmort sed cost, are due w.tn'r sx Moitas ard the gmortised Cost s 2 reascnab.e approximation of the farvalue Tnese would be

mcluced within Level 2 of the fair va.e hierarchy

18 Inventories
MVENTores In the Group relaze pr mar.y to salary sacrfice technology products held for sale as partof tne PG Let's Conrect|T sacrfce busingss anc
wvoucners (poth digital ara ohysicad hed for sale ir the 5aas diy sion of the Dusiness

Invertores 1e'c are classified as the below

2021 2020
£'900 £000
’ Finished Goods - IT Salary Sacrifice 835 820
‘ Vouwrersforresae T T T e a
Total 598 861
19 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 E'000 £'000
Loans and recevables
Insurance recewablesﬁ T T ‘_7—#**1_‘5;5 ;ZQS*R *kfk T
Other receivables due within one year T v - 10,592 14712 T - i_
Amounts due from subsidiary unc\ertarngr T - - Al 1‘1077
Accrued interest S o 10 6 - —7
ﬂr urepaym;ts and accrLErEne—_ 1768 1,333 m ‘-‘-TJT
Total trade and other receivables 14,035 18,346 192 1,278

4liof the Group's nsurance receivan es ard other recevap.es due witr ore year have peen “ev.ewac for ndcators of moaasrmert IFRS G complartcred £
055 PrOVISONS "ave Beer Made witene 2Jf. Cabue dnd Lhe vawies staw above are ret of those arav 59 1s
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2021 2020
Trade/ Trade/
Insurance Wweighted Credit Loss Insurance Weighted Credit Loss
Debtor Average Provision Debtor Average Provision
£'000 Provision E'000 £'000 Provision £'000
Mol Invoiced 6,633 0.3% 16 7851 0.3% 19
Current o 4,357 0.1% 4 6,983 0.0% 2
30 Days 723 1.0% 8 ) 1,691 1.0% 17
60 Days 25‘7‘ 2 1% 5 177 B 21% 4
'90 Days 153 - 7.8% 12 207 B 5.7% 12
;;0 Days 217 - 17 9% 39 212 o 28 4% 60
Totat 12,340 0.7% 84 1711 0.7% 14
Credit Loss Provision
200 2020
E'000 £'000
Stagel - -
Stage 2 - 84 ) 9-:
Stage 3 - o - - 23
Total 84 14
Selout beww s the movement in the allowance for expected credit .osses of trade receivables ard contracted assats
201 2020
£'000 £'000
At 1January "4 62
Pravision for expectad credit losses i 84 o 4
Provision release o ma 62)
At 31 December a4 14

insurance recenvahes and oraer recevables are also neld at amortised cost and The carrying amount 1s areasonabe approximation of fair value whichin the
case of the Insurance recevables contains a lapse provision of £160.000 {2020 £120,000),

nthe past, the Group kas not ncurred significant bad debt wiize offs ang consequently whilst the above may be overcue, the risk of credit default is
cersdered to be low, The Group has no charges or gther security over any of these assets.

20 Reinsurance assets

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Reinsurers share of claims incurred 57 8
Reinsurers share of Unearned premiums ) 51 o 60
Total reinsurance assets 108 78
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21 Cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020 2024 2020

£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 14,945 13183 ne 92
Short-term deposits T T 5,346 - 4,406 - ‘“—

Total cash and cash equivalents 20,291 11,589 119 9z

22 Share capital

2011 2020

E'00D £'000

Authonsed 200,000,000 ordinary shares of Sp each 10,000 10,000

Ilate\d,c\alle\dl;;fully paid 31,219,207 (2020 31.2‘1;;)7) ordinary shar:s of Speach T o T 1,561 T 1,561

Share bramum 1,134 1,134

Sach ordmary snare s entitled to ane vote m ary circumstance

The tota. numiper of owi shares held by the Employee Berefit Trust at 31 Decemper 2021was 87,288 (2020 87,366). Of th's amount, there are 76135
{2020 80,787 5iP shares that nave been urconditionally sliocated ta emp.oyees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group mamtaned “wo share-based payment schemes for employee compersation.

a) Company Share Ownership Plan {CSOP) and unapproved options
For the opt'ons granted to vest there are no performance oritera obigabions to be fulfilled other than tont nucws employment Gurng rhe three-year
penied, excent for early termyration of emplayment by attaining normal retremert age, Il healtn o regundancy.

Al share-based employee comoensaton will be setted ineguity The Group has N0 egal or constructive abligaticn to repurchase or seLt.e tne ophions

Shigre oplior and werghied gverage exercise grice are as fotlows fo~ 7he “sparimyg Geiods presentad.

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
Number Pence Number Pence
Gutstanding at 1 January 205,559 384 5 161657 446 0
Options granted in year 63,968 3430 42,902 23500
Qptions exercised in year - - - -
Options cancelled ar (apsed (48,784) 368.9 - -
Q ingat1 0 226,743 3844 205,559 394.5

The weighied average exerc.se price of 95,294 (202C "20,873) share ool.ons exercisahe at 3" Deceamber 2021 was 472 35 perce per share ;2020 47183)

Tae farr values of cot-ons wihch were granted duning 2021 we e determirec by using the Black-Sthowes valuaton model Tae far vawue of trese ooticrs was
45 9ence pershare Sgnificant mputs Moe Tne Cacu.at nn include @ weignied average share orce of 343p arc exercise or.ces a5 illustrated above
Curthermere, the calculatior takes nio accourt future d v dends of 4 2% and 2 vawatiuty rate of 20%, baseq on experted snare Jrice. R-5s-free interest rate
wias cetermined at 0°% The 0ot ons are exernisadle netwean tnree a4 ten years after tha date of tre grant and nave an exerc se price of 343 pence

L g7 dr

Tne weaighted average remaimirg cortrac tec ofe of cuistanding oatiens a: 3" Decemper 2027 was s'x years and three monins 2022 f ve yeass ara

L ialastelal fuly)
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The undarlyirg expected vo.atilty was cerermined by reference to histoncal data No special features 'mmanent to the optians granted were ncorparated
ntothe measurement of fair value.

intotal, £1°,000 of emaloyee campensatior by way of sndre-hased payment experse hes beenincluded .n the conselicated income statemens for 2027
(20207 £5.000;, The corresponding creditis taker to equity No Labil T es were recogniset cue toshare-based transactions

b) Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

LTIP 2021

Tha Nomunéralion Cumm.ttee approved ¢ new LT'P on & Apnil 2021 Under the scherme share ophions of Persoral Group Howdings P.c are granted Lo senior
executives wth an Exercise Prce of Sp(nomiral vawe of tne shares) The share opt.ons have vanous market and nor-markes performance concragns which
are required 0 pe acnieved for the opuians to vest. The optiors also contan sery ce condimions that recuire opt on nolders to remain in employment of

the Grodp

Total shareholder return (market condition)
50% of the awards vest under this conditior Subject tc Compound Annuzl Growth Rate (CAGR) of the Total Shareholger Return [TSRjover the
Rerformance Penod

EBITDA targets (non-market condition)
35% of tne awards vest under this condition Subject to cumulative EBITDA over the Performance Period

Environmental, social and governance targets (ESG) {non-market condition)
Up to 15% of the awards vest urder this condit.on The awards shall vest unon the Remuneratior: Committee determining that all ESG targets have
haen met

The far value of the share opt 00515 estimated at the grant date using a Monte-Canto bincmial optior pricing model for the market conditions, anc a
Black-5cho.es pricing model for non-market cond tiors, However, the above performance condtion s on.y cons.dered in determining the rumber of
instruments that witl ultimatety vest

There are no cash settlements alternatives. The Group does not have g past practice of cash settlement for tnese share options. Tne Group accounts for the
LTIP as ar eguity-settled olan,

As rated .nthe 2020 f nancial statements, the 28,615 share options granted to Deborah Frost inLeu of an LF-P I previgus years were alsc announced in April
2021 There are no performanrce conditions attached Lo these options otner than continued empuoyment Lo tne exercise date

In tota:, £758,000 of empigyee share-based compensation has been included in the consolcated 'nceme statement o 31 Jecember 20271{2020 Lril) The
carrespording credrt 1s taker to equity No ugbilines were recognised trom share-based transact.ons

23 Deferred tax

2021 2020
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets and liabilities
Praperty, plant and equipment h 17 429 20 14
Intangible Assets T - - 56 - _ 105
1?7 485 20 419
Offset B B a7 (17} 20 120}

Totat deferred tax - 478 - 199




1 08 Personal Group Holdings Pl¢ Annual Repart and Accounts 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

23 Deferred tax continued

2021 2020

£'G06 £000

At1January {399} {302)
Jﬂtyear mavemnent T hhh“f‘_“"\\——(m— —‘E;
mment mn prnvv;r:due to u?x:me chang;: " T ‘___‘-__‘___‘-E_ﬁ_”‘-__ﬁ__ﬁ__?
At 31 December (278} (399}

At 31 December 2027 the Group rad tax losses of £945,000 {2020 £950.00C avalable to Carry forward to offset against future profits of the same trades

& deferred tax asset nas not been recognised inrespect of the carred forward tax (0sses as thete s uncertainty as w0 whether they will be uulbised gwven the
trade s o longer a sigrificant component. of the Group

24 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Current £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Financat tiabititres measured at amortised cost
)A_r;\cIrEowed to subsidiary undertakings vv*iv*iv—_q“-“““ ,“__—257“__249_
“Other creditars T T T T Taees tge s 38
Right of wecredtor 7 304 - -
acowais T T T T T Thme Tmes zw as
Deferredncome @  sos - .
Total trade and other payabies 12,356 14,274 497 575
Groug Company
20 2020 2021 2020
Noh-Current £000 £'000 £'000 £'¢00
Right of ysa creditor 402 352 - -
Total 402 352 - -
These labilities are not secured agaimst any assets of the Group
25 Insurance contract liabilities
2621 2020
£°000 £960
Provision for claims 2,081 2,336
Et_a?n_s?eze:e:t Bxpanses - 127 82
7Uneamed premums - 899- 6957

Totalinsurance contract liabiities 3087 3,123
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The provision for cla™s represents the gross estimated uab. ity ansing fram claim episodes n the current and preced-ng finarcia: years which have not
given rise to claims paid 1tis estimated based on current ~formation, and the ultimate Lability may vary as a result of subsequent .~ formation and events
Adjustments ta tne amgurt of claims provision for prior years are incluced in the Income Statement n the firancial year in which the change s made.

The valuaticr of the provisen for claims outstang:ng in the Group's supsic ary, Personal Assurance Plc, of £17121,000 (2020, £1,485,000) s est'mated by

us g a Chair Ladcer metnod and the main assumption underlying this techmque s that the Compary's past ¢laims Arvelepment exper ience tan be used Lo
project futurs claims development ard hence ulhimare claims costs A chdnge of 5% 1n the past claims gevelonment experience would result -nachange of
LLE.DCOI2020 L 4,000y in the provision of outstanding claims for Persanal Assurance Plo

Due to the COVID-19 sandemic the Group has adjusted its claims provis.ons T include an uplift associated with theincrease .n both hosptalisatiors ard
death claims expererced by the country 11 the latter part of 2020,

"Tis estimated tnat the majonity of all claims will be paig within 12 months and therefore clams development information 1s not drsc.osed

Insett ng the provisior for ciams cutstanding, a best estimate s determined on an undiscourted basis and then a margin of orudence s addec such that
thereis confidence that future claims wil be et from the provisions The level of prudence set 1s one that provides an sppropriate degree of conficence

a) Claims
2021 2020
Grass Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000
Prevision for claims at 1January 2,336 {18) 2318 1,569 (53) 1,516
Claims paid during the financial year (5,884 &3 (5,821) (5,588} 132 {5.456)
Increase/{decrease) in Liabilities: _
Arising from current year claims 6,469 (43) 6,426 6,325 (9} 6,316
Arising from prior year claims [860] (59) {319) 30 (88) {58}
Total movement [275) [39) {314} 767 35 802
Provision for claims at 31 December 2,061 (57) 2,004 2,336 (18) 2,318
b)Unearned premiums
2021 2020
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 E£'000 £'000
AL1January 695 (60) 635 450 68) 382
Increasein the financial year h 25,050 (163) 24,887 28,265 (182) 29,083
Release inthe financial year {24,846} 172 {24,674) (29,020} B 190 (28,830)
Movement in the financial year 204 9 213 245 o a 253

At 31December B99 {51) 848 695 {60) 635
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26 Company investment in subsidiary undertakings and joint venture

Shares in subsidiary undertakings

20 2020
£'000 £'000
Cost
actgeniay - 37943 7939
Acouiresintheyear o T - -
Share-based expenses o T T - 158 o 4
At 31 Decemher 38101 37,343
Amounts written off
EJanuary T T o T T ¥12,898 12,898
Tr;;alrrnent pro;;n inyear -
AL 31December 12,898 12,898
Net book amount at 31 December 25,263 25,045

AL 37 Decermper 2021 1ne Company nei 100% of the aliotten share capital of the following trading companies, all of which were incorporated in Englang
ang wales. with the excéplion of Persaral Assurance (Guerrsay) Limited which 15 Carporated 'n Guernsey, and have heen consohigated in the Group
financa statements Tne registered address of ali Groun entites 1s Jonn Grmond House, 899 Sitbury Bouevard. Central Mitor Keynes, MG 3XL, wilh fhe
exceptior of Personal Asslirance (Guernsey) umited whose registered andress s Level 5, Ml Court, La Charrotene, St Peter Port, Guerasey, GY11E4
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MNature of business

Intermediate hold:ng Company

Personal Group Limited

Persona: Assurance Prct

Generalmnsurance

Jersonal ASgUranre Services cimted 4

Adm.NIsIralan servicas

Personal Group Berefits Limitec s

Employee benefits sales and marketing

2ersonal Group Trustees Lirutec*

Trustee for empicyee share cotions Persoral

Management Solutions Limited”

Emoloyee benefits sales anc marketing

Berkeley Morgan Group Limited*#

Berceley Morgan Group Holcirg Company

Berkeley Morgan Lym.red-

Independert financial advisers

PersanadcAssurance {Guernsey) 1 imited

Death insurance urderwrnting se-vices

wet's Connect T solutiors Limited”

Employee benef ts salary sacnfice technology products

nnecto Peome Consulting Limited*

HR consultancy and technology prov ders

Muttiplehsting Limited Dormant

Mutual Benefit Limited o Do mant ) )
Dariake Serwce::mted Dormant

Sersonal Assu'én—ce;mancwat Services Ple Dormant o

Berkeley Morga;»;a‘tr_ﬁcare Liritad+ Dgrmant )

8 MaAgency Services Limited+ Daormant

erkelgy Morgan Property Limited+ Jormant

Summit Financial Solutiors Lnized + Jormant

Summit Financial Holdings Pue+ Dormant )

Berkeley Margan Trustees L'mited+ T Dormant

_DersonalGroup Mopile cmited” o Dormant o
Jv;versatprovwdenc Limited+ o Dormant o

*Indiectly owied oy Personal Growl Held 105 21 v g Personar Sroua L fed

- rectly swed oy Personal Grouz Held 1gs P v d Pariona, & suo L ted end Bereeley MO gan Trauz L Mt

g Exemot '"0MAug L under darental gudrsnles

The following supsid-ares of the Group are exempt from the requirernents of the Companies Act 2006 ("the Act”) relating to the audit of indivicual accounts
by virtue of 52794 The parentungertak-ng, Personal Group Holdirgs 2Le, gives a guarantee to these subsidianies under section 479C nrespect of the year

ending 31 December 2021

- Personal Assurarce Serv.ces Limited - 3194988
Personat Group 3enefts - miteg - 3195037
- Berreley Morgan Group L~ited - 3456258

27 Capital commitments

Tne Group has fig capral comm tments at 31 December 2021 and 3" December 2020.

28 Contingent liabilities

There were no Contngent Labiiit.es at 31 December 2027 ang 31 December 2020
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29 Pensions

Group and seif-i personal
The Group operates a aefined contrnibubion Group persena, nensign scheme for the penefit of certair Jirectors and employees. The scheéme s ad~vristerad
Dy Aegon UK alc ana the funds are held independent of tne Graup 0 addimon. the Graup makes contnbutiors Lo certair Directors' self--nvested persoral
pension schemaes.

These scheres are admimsterad oy indengndent trurd-party adminisiratars and the funds are had ndenendent of the Graup

30 Leasing commitments and rental income receivable

A recegnised inthe bal sheet

Folowing the adoption of IFRS 16 the balance sheel at 37 December 2021 mcludes 45581 ang uabilies relating to Fight of Use 1IRG U} assels 25
detailed telow

2021~ Right of use assets & lease Habilities

Net Book Vilie Lease

of Assets Liabitity

£000%s £000’s

Motor vehigles 178 222

Buildings 242 252

Total 420 a7a
2020 - Right of use assets & lease liahilities

Net Bogk Value Lease

of Assets Liability

£000's £000's

Moter Vehicles 224 327

Buldings 328 329

Totral 552 656

The ntal valust'on of tre asser s equa to the discounted lease lability on the nception of the ease ang this s cepreciaied over tre shorter of gither the
ute of the asset or the lease term

Amounts recognised in the ¢ i d of profitor loss
Depreciation Interest.
Charge Expense
£000's £000's
Maotor vetucles 353 27
Buldings 86 5
Total 439 32

Totdloperatng lease paymerts aue uril the end of the ease, or the frrst break clause, tota. £388,000 12020 £4°8.000).
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an analysis of these oayments due s as folows

201 2020
£'000 £'000
Total lease payments falling due:
Within one year T - 19; T 21
Within one to twao years T 9 102
wWithin two to five years T e 105
Total 3as8 418
Total operating rent -ecevable payments due urtil the eno of the lease or the hirst breax clause, total £13,000 (2020 £74,00C). An analysis of these
recewable payments due is as forlows
2021 2020
E'000 £'000
Future minirmum lease payments:
Within one year B ) 13 14
Within one to two years T o _ -
within two to five years T - - -
Total 13 14
Below 15 & reconciiation of charges in Liabil ties anising from f.nancing activities:
1January 31 December
2021 Cash Flows New leases Other 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current lease liabilities 304 (427) 251 94 222
Non-current tease liabilities 352 - - {100} - 252
Total liabilities from financing activitias 656 {427) 251 {6) 474

The "Other” column includes the effect of reclassification af non-current 18ases 1o current due to the passage of ume, the effect of the disposal of 1ease
assets witn therr related creditors and the effect of the unwinding of the d.scounted ROU ¢reditars over time.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

31 Related party transactions
Personal Group Holaings Pic fiolds a pank account with Lioyds Sane PLE wmicn it uses for payments to Groun campary specific creditars Qunirg 2027arc
2020 the Company paid Its own dividerds and expenses.

AL'stof intercompany ba'ances that are pursiand ng at the balance sheet gare with subs.gia”y undertakings s 2s faliows

2021 2020

Receivabte Payable Receivable Payable

E'000 £'000 £'000 £Q00

Parsonat Assurance Pl 1Q - - -
ersonatassurance sececesLed - s - -
ersomatAssurance Francal Sercesfle - wm - w
‘wsvplelsing Lmies -~ w0 - 100
‘MutoslBeneftimites . N R
Gortokeservicesumed 3 3 T
bersoralGrowsLemea T T e -
Berkeley Morgan Group Limited 4 - - -
inngcto People Group Consulting Limited 4 - - -
Total 21 254 1166 248

all baiances are repay 2hue an demand hone of the nalarces sre secured. Al oawences relate to miercompany furding galances

Transactions with Directors
Curing the year, na Lransactiors were undestaken with DIrgcars, or Companies ' mwmicn DIrectors were key Cecision makers

32 Paost halance sheet events

There ngve Deen ne post balarce sheet events,
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Company registration number:
3194991

Registered office:

Personhal Group Holdings Ple
John Grmono House

£99 Silbury Boulevard
Centrag Miltaor Keynes

MKG 3xL

Telephicne 01908 605000
WWWoaerspnalgroup.com

Directors:

0 =rost - Chief Executive

M Bennert - Non-Executive Director

SMace - Chief Financial Officer

3 Heag - Nor-Executive Director

UMeGrath - Chief Operating Officer

M Dartyy-Walker - Senior Non-Executive Ditecto
ALothign - Nor-Executive Direczor

Secretary:

DKane

Solicitar:

SNR Denton UK LLP

The Pinnacle

170 Mizsummer Boulevard
Miltan Keyres

MKG1F=

Banker:

The Lloyds Ban« plc
25 Gresham Street
Landan

EC2V 7THN

Auditor:

EYLLP

25 Churchill Piace
Canary wharf
ondon

S1A5EY

Nominated Broker and Adviser:

Cenkos Securities

& 7 8 Tokenhouse Yard
London

EC2R 785
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